
 

NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
AGENDA 

 
 
 

FEBRUARY 20, 2012 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted By 
The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov�




 

 

TO: The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda. Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members. I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 



 

 

 

 
VISION: 
To honor the legacy of the past and build a strong, vibrant future and be an 
attractive place to live, work, and grow a business. 
 
GOALS: 
Provide a safe, clean, and livable city 
 Practice good stewardship of infrastructure  
 Maintain high quality professional community oriented police and fire protection 
 Conserve resources in an environmentally responsible manner 
 Encourage development toward a walkable, livable community 
 
Provide effective and efficient local government 
 Demonstrate excellence in community services 
 Maintain fiscally sustainable government 
 Attract and support a committed and innovative workforce 
 Develop and maintain efficiencies with internal and external partners 
 Conduct city business and engage in public policy formation in a clear and 

transparent manner 
 
Build a sense of community 
 Communicate internally and externally in a timely and accurate manner 
 Develop platforms for transparent, deliberative and meaningful community 

conversations 
 Involve all stakeholders in communication and engagement activities 
 Encourage volunteerism and new methods for community involvement 
 Implement the connectedness of community outlines in the Master Plan 2008 
 
Attract and retain business investment 
 Clearly articulate an economic development plan 
 Create an inclusive, entrepreneurial culture internally and externally 
 Clarify, reduce and streamline investment hurdles 
 Consistently enhance the synergy between existing businesses and growing 

economic sectors 
 Market the advantages of living and working in Troy through partnerships 

 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 

VISION STATEMENT AND GOALS 
Adopted: Monday, February 7, 2011 

 



 

 

 

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
February 6, 2012 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers 
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION: Father Philip Pavich – St. Lucy Croatian Catholic Church 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Tiger Cub Scouts Pack 1712 from Wattles Elementary 
School 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 1 

C-1 Proclamation – Heart Healthy Month – February 2012 – Presented to Michele 
Boertman, Manager of Preventative Cardiology/Cardiac Rehab – Beaumont 
Hospital 1 

C-2 Proclamation of Appreciation – Troy Family Daze Festival 1 

C-3 City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program - November and December 
2011 – Presented to ARC of Oakland County 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Carryover Items 1 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

E-1 Public Hearing – Michigan NextEnergy Exemption 1 



 

 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT: 2 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 2 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 2 

H-1  No Postponed Items 2 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 3 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – Board of 
Review; Planning Commission; b) City Council Appointments – Building Code 
Board of Appeals; Liquor Advisory Committee 3 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations - Downtown 
Development Authority; b) City Council Nominations: None 4 

I-3 Closed Session 6 

I-4 Bid Waiver – Purchase of Police Radio Batteries and Chargers 6 

I-5 Application Regarding Class C Liquor License for El Charro Restaurant 7 

I-6 Boyd Street Issues Relative to Baker Middle School and International Academy 8 

I-7 Adoption of Rules of Procedure 8 

I-8 Approval of MDOT Subcontract with Tooles/Clark for Construction Manager at 
Risk Services for the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility 8 

I-9 Application Regarding New SDM License for Kamel Management, Inc. (Troy 
Smokers) 9 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 10 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 10 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 11 



 

 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 11 

a) Special City Council Meeting of February 6, 2012 .............................................. 11 
b) Regular City Council Meeting of February 6, 2012 ............................................. 11 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 11 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 11 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution #3: Exercise Renewal Option – Transit 
Mixed Concrete .................................................................................................. 11 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution #3: Exercise Renewal Option - Aggregates ... 11 

J-5 Milano Development Company, Inc. v. City of Troy et. al. 12 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 13 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 13 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  
some future point in time): None Submitted 13 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 13 

L-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 13 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 13 

M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 13 

N. REPORTS 13 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 13 

a) Civil Service Committee-Final-December 8, 2011 .............................................. 13 
b) Liquor Advisory Committee-Final-January 9, 2012 ............................................. 13 
c) Planning Commission-Draft-January 10, 2012 ................................................... 13 
d) Zoning Board of Appeals-Draft-January 17, 2012 .............................................. 13 
e) Civil Service Commission-Final-January 19, 2012 ............................................. 13 
f) Liquor Advisory Committee-Draft-February 13, 2012 ......................................... 13 
g) Civil Service Commission-Draft-February 14, 2012 ............................................ 13 

N-2 Department Reports: 13 



 

 

a) Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – January 2012 ................. 13 
b) Final Reporting – Greater Detroit Auto Auction Services – Auctions for 

Calendar Year 2011 ........................................................................................... 13 
c) Quarterly Financial Report – December 31, 2011 .............................................. 13 
d) Tax Abatement Policy......................................................................................... 13 

N-3  Letters of Appreciation: 13 

a) Letter of Appreciation to Troy Police Department from Rose Weber Thanking 
Officer Bordo for Assistance ............................................................................... 13 

b) Letter of Appreciation to Officer Breidenich from Peggy Willockx of Troy 
People Concerned .............................................................................................. 13 

c) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Bonnie Bostelman Thanking 
Officer Cooney for Assistance ............................................................................ 13 

d) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Rhonda Berger Thanking Sergeant 
Szuminski, Officer Barrows, Officer Villerot, Officer Bordo, Officer Denny, 
Officer Linton and Officer Piper for Assistance .................................................. 13 

e) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Elise Arndt Thanking Officer 
Fitzpatrick and Officer Zagacki ........................................................................... 13 

N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 14 

N-5  Economic Development Update Information 14 

N-6  Allowable Restrictions on Public Comment 14 

N-7  Super City Smoker’s Express, LLC. SDM Liquor License 14 

N-8  Article from Michigan Humanities Council 14 

O. STUDY ITEMS 14 

O-1  No Study Items 14 

P. CLOSED SESSION: 14 

P-1  Closed Session 14 



 

 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 14 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 15 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 15 

Monday, March 5, 2012  Regular Meeting ............................................................. 15 
Monday, March 19, 2012 Regular Meeting ............................................................ 15 
Monday, April 2, 2012  Regular Meeting ............................................................... 15 
Monday, April 16, 2012 Regular Meeting .............................................................. 15 
Monday, May 7, 2012 Regular Meeting ................................................................. 15 
Monday, May 14, 2012 Regular Meeting ............................................................... 15 
Monday, June 4, 2012 Regular Meeting ................................................................ 15 
Monday, June 18, 2012 Regular Meeting .............................................................. 15 
Monday, July 9, 2012 Regular Meeting ................................................................. 15 
Monday, July 23, 2012 Regular Meeting ............................................................... 15 
Monday, August 13, 2012 Regular Meeting .......................................................... 15 
Monday, August 27, 2012 Regular Meeting .......................................................... 15 
Monday, September 10, 2012 Regular Meeting .................................................... 15 
Monday, September 24, 2012 Regular Meeting .................................................... 15 
Monday, October 8, 2012 Regular Meeting ........................................................... 15 
Monday, October 22, 2012 Regular Meeting ......................................................... 15 
Monday, November 12, 2012 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 15 
Monday, November 26, 2012 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 15 
Monday, December 3, 2012 Regular Meeting ....................................................... 15 
Monday, December 17, 2012 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 15 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 15 

Monday, April 23, 2012 Special Budget Study Session ......................................... 15 
Monday, April 30, 2012 Special Budget Study Session ......................................... 15 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 20, 2012 
 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION: Father Philip Pavich – St. Lucy Croatian Catholic Church 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Tiger Cub Scouts Pack 1712 from Wattles 
Elementary School  

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 
a)  Mayor Janice Daniels 

Jim Campbell 
Wade Fleming 
Dave Henderson 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 
Doug Tietz 

 
b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-02-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of                at  
the Regular City Council Meeting of February 20, 2012, due to                     . 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 Proclamation – Heart Healthy Month – February 2012 – Presented to Michele 

Boertman, Manager of Preventative Cardiology/Cardiac Rehab – Beaumont 
Hospital  

C-2 Proclamation of Appreciation – Troy Family Daze Festival 
 
C-3 City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program - November and December 

2011 – Presented to ARC of Oakland County 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items  

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 Public Hearing – Michigan NextEnergy Exemption 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 20, 2012 
 

- 2 - 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-02-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy AFFIRMS the Michigan NextEnergy 
Exemption of Alternative Energy Personal Property located at 1857 Technology Drive, Troy, 
MI., as certified by the City Assessor, in an amount not to exceed $2,458,258, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk of the City of Troy shall FORWARD a copy 
of this resolution and attachments to the Michigan NextEnergy Authority at 300 N. Washington 
Square, Lansing, MI. 48913. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  
In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 – Members of 
the Public and Visitors: 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if 
you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 
 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with 

the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 

(5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 

minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent Agenda items or any other item 
as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment portion of the agenda. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City Council 
members. 

• City Council may wish to schedule a Special Meeting for Agenda items that are related to 
topics where there is significant public input anticipated. 

• Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public Comment may be 
limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to speak either on a Public 
Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of the agenda. 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1  No Postponed Items 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 20, 2012 
 

- 3 - 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – Board of Review; 

Planning Commission; b) City Council Appointments – Building Code Board of 
Appeals; Liquor Advisory Committee 

 
a) Mayoral Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated:  
 

Board of Review 
Appointed by Mayor 
3 Regular Members 

3-Year Term 
  
Term Expires: 01/31/2015 Frank Strahl 
 Term currently held by: Frank Strahl 
  
  

Planning Commission 
Appointed by Mayor 
9 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

  
Term Expires:  12/31/2014 Gordon Schepke 
 Term currently held by: Lon Ullmann 
  
Term Expires:  12/31/2014 Thomas Strat 
 Term currently held by: Thomas Strat 
   
Term Expires:  12/31/2014 Robert Schultz 
 Term currently held by: Robert Schultz 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

b) City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-02- 
Moved by 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 20, 2012 
 

- 4 - 

Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Building Code Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council 
5 Regular Members 

5 Year Term 
 
Term Expires:  01/01/2017 Gary Abitheira 
 Term currently vacant  
 

 
Liquor Advisory Committee 

Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Term Expires:  01/31/2014 Max Ehlert 
 Term currently held by: Max Ehlert 
  
Term Expires:  01/31/2014 David Ogg 
 Term currently held by: David Ogg 
 
Term Expires:  01/31/2014 Timothy P. Payne 
 Term currently held by: Timothy P. Payne 
 

Yes: 
No: 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations - Downtown 

Development Authority; b) City Council Nominations: None 
 

a) Mayoral Nominations 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action:  
 

Downtown Development Authority 
Appointed by Mayor 
13 Regular Members 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 20, 2012 
 

- 5 - 

4 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name 
M I or 
Nickname 

App 
Resume 
Expire 

Date to 
Council 

Appointment 
Expire Notes 1 Notes 3 

Daniels Janice    9/30/2012 At large  
Frankel Stuart   2/3/2012 9/30/2011 In district NO Reappointment 

Hay David R 11/16/2013 2/3/2012 9/30/2011 In District 
Requests 
Reappointment 

Hodges Michele  2/6/2014 2/3/2012 9/30/2012 In District  

Keisling Laurence G. 12/15/2013 2/3/2012 9/30/2012 At large 
Requests 
Reappointment 

Kiriluk Alan M 11/18/2013 2/3/2012 9/30/2012 In District  

Knight P. Terry 1/4/2014 2/3/2012 9/30/2011 At Large 
Requests 
Reappointment 

MacLeish Daniel  11/14/2013 2/3/2012 9/30/2012 In District  
Randol Ward Jr. 10/12/2013 2/3/2012 9/30/2014 In District  
Reschke Ernest C 9/21/2012 2/3/2012 9/30/2014 At large  
Schroeder Douglas J. 9/30/2012 2/3/2012 9/30/2014 At large  
Weiss Harvey  8/6/2011 2/3/2012 9/30/2012 In district  
York G.Thomas  9/8/2010 2/3/2012 9/30/2012 In district  
 
Nominations: 

  
Term Expires:  09/30/2015  (In District) 
 Term currently held by: Stuart Frankel 
  
Term Expires:  09/30/2015  (In District) 
 Term currently held by: David R. Hay 
  
Term Expires:  09/30/2015  (At Large) 
 Term currently held by: P. Terry Knight 
 

Interested Applicants: 

Last Name First Name 
M I or 
Nickname 

App 
Resume 
Expire 

Date to 
Council Notes 2 

Beck Paul R 10/10/2011 2/3/2012  
Campbell James K 3/9/2013 2/3/2012  
Carnago Gregory  2/1/2014 2/3/2012  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 20, 2012 
 

- 6 - 

Chambers Barbara A 2/9/2013 2/3/2012  
Gallardo Rosemary  3/6/2011 2/3/2012  
Hoef Paul V. 11/21/2013 2/3/2012 EDC exp. 4/30/2015 
Howrylak Frank  2/1/2014 2/3/2012  
Kempen Edward  2/1/2014 2/3/2012  
Knight Barbara  1/4/2014 2/3/2012 EDC exp. 4/30/2015 
Kornacki Rosemary  11/15/2013 2/3/2012  
Mallin Aaron  10/10/2013 2/3/2012  
Sawyer Jr. Thomas G. 2/3/2014 2/3/2012 Municipal Bldg. Authority exp. 01/31/2013 
Scott Bradley R 1/19/2011 2/3/2012  
Spillers Edmund  2/5/2011 2/3/2012  
Swartz Robert D 7/25/2013 2/3/2012 Brownfield Redev. Auth. exp 4/30/2014 
Van Dyke Earle  1/31/2014 2/3/2012  
Vassallo Joseph J 12/6/2013 2/3/2012 Brownfield Redev. Auth. exp 4/30/2012 
Wilberding Bruce J 2/8/2014 2/3/2012 Brownfield Redev. Auth. exp 4/30/2013 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
I-3 Closed Session 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-02-      
Moved by        
Seconded by       
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL15.268(h) (MCL15.243(g)). 
 
Yes:  
No: 
 
I-4 Bid Waiver – Purchase of Police Radio Batteries and Chargers  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-02-      
Moved by        
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, Global Technology Systems Inc. of Framingham, MA, is the manufacturer of 
Honeywell Batteries and Tri-Chemistry chargers; and   
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 20, 2012 
 

- 7 - 

WHEREAS, Honeywell Batteries Lithium Polymer Technology is superior to the battery system 
that the Police Department is currently using and will maintain consistency between the Police 
and Fire Departments;    
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council DETERMINES it to be in the 
City’s best interest to purchase directly from the manufacturer and hereby WAIVES formal 
bidding procedures and AUTHORIZES the purchase of Honeywell batteries, retrofit kits, and 
chargers from Global Technology Systems, Inc. of Framingham, MA, at an estimated cost of 
$18,362.50, in accordance with the quote dated January 24, 2012, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
   
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-5 Application Regarding Class C Liquor License for El Charro Restaurant 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-02-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
(a) Transfer Class C License, Food Permit, Sunday Sales Permit 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL, above all others, a 
liquor license request as indicated below, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk 
to EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 

Liquor License Applicant : Marty Martin Enterprises, Inc.--El Charro Restaurant 

Type of License Requested : Transfer Class C License, Food Permit, and Sunday Sales 
Permit. 

Located at : 3651 Rochester Road, Troy, MI 48083 
MLCC Request # : 625705 

 
and 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter into agreements with applicants 
for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 20, 2012 
 

- 8 - 

 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES, above all 
others, an agreement with the liquor license applicant named in the approved resolution above, 
and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE the document, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-6 Boyd Street Issues Relative to Baker Middle School and International Academy 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-02-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That the north side of Boyd Street, from Rochester Road to the school entrance 
on Boyd Street, be POSTED as a “No Parking – Tow Away Zone” during the morning arrival 
(7:15 a.m. to 8:15 a.m.) and evening dismissal (2:00 p.m. to 2:45 p.m.) times on school days 
only for the remainder of the 2011-12 school year. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the issue be RE-EVALUATED in the fall of 2012 to 
determine the need for these signs after the school district changes the start times for Baker 
Middle School and the International Academy, which is expected to considerably reduce traffic 
on Boyd.   
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-7 Adoption of Rules of Procedure 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-02-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS the Rules of Procedure of the City 
Council of the City of Troy as recorded by the City Clerk in the Minutes of the Study Session of 
February 6, 2012. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
I-8 Approval of MDOT Subcontract with Tooles/Clark for Construction Manager at 

Risk Services for the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-02-      



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 20, 2012 
 

- 9 - 

Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy received a $8,485,212 federal grant for the construction of the 
Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility through the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) 
High-Speed Intercity Passenger Rail (HSIPR) Program, Federal Rail Administration (FRA), as 
secured through a TIGER grant; and 
 
WHEREAS, On January 17, 2012, City Council resolved that the total cost of the Troy Multi-
Modal Transit Facility shall not exceed $6,272,500; and  
 
WHEREAS, Construction Manager at Risk (CMR) proposals were received and the CMR team 
of Tooles/Clark was selected in accordance with the Qualifications Based Selection process. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS the MDOT 
subcontract between the City of Troy and Tooles/Clark to provide construction manager at risk 
services for the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility at an estimated cost NOT TO EXCEED 
$648,731, a cost which is included as part of the total estimated Transit Center cost and within 
budget for CMR services; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT UPON Tooles/Clark’s 
submission of properly executed proposal and contract documents, including agreements, 
insurance certificates and all other specified requirements and MDOT approval; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are DIRECTED to execute the 
agreements once in acceptable form as approved by the Michigan Department of 
Transportation.   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
I-9 Application Regarding New SDM License for Kamel Management, Inc. (Troy 

Smokers) 
 
Resolution A: Denying Liquor License Approval: 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-02-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, Kamel Management, Inc. requests a New SDM License to be located at 186 W. 
Maple Road, Troy, MI  48084, Oakland County  {MLCC Req. #614894}; and  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Police Department conducted an investigation into this application, and 
did not discover any reasons for disqualification of this particular applicant; and 
 
WHEREAS, Based on past experience, the Troy City Administration is concerned about the 
increased probability of liquor license violations for those businesses that primarily sell tobacco 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 20, 2012 
 

- 10 - 

products to patrons, including those between the ages of 18 to 20 years old who are 
considered minors under the liquor laws; and  
 
WHEREAS, Based on this increased probability of illegal sales of alcohol to minors in these 
establishments, the Troy City Council finds that tobacconists are not favorable locations to sell 
alcoholic products, and reaffirms commitment to the prevention of access to and consumption 
of alcohol by persons under the age of 21 as an established community norm which is 
consistent with the community’s established priorities and dedication to public safety.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby RECOMMENDS 
DENIAL of the application from Kamel Management, Inc. for a New SDM License to be located 
at 186 W. Maple Road, Troy, MI  48084, Oakland County {MLCC Req. #614894}.   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
Resolution B: Granting Liquor License Approval: 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-02-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, Kamel Management, Inc. requests a New SDM License to be located at 186 W. 
Maple Road, Troy, MI  48084, Oakland County  {MLCC Req. #614894}; and  
 
WHEREAS, The Police Department conducted an investigation into this application, and did 
not discover any disqualifying factors related to this particular applicant; and  
 
WHEREAS, The Liquor Advisory Committee, an advisory committee of City Council 
recommended approval of the request, since it complies with all applicable Troy City 
Ordinances and Michigan Liquor Control Commission Rules, and it is likely that the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission (MLCC) will grant the requested SDM liquor license, even if City 
Council objects. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby RECOMMENDS 
APPROVAL of the application from Kamel Management, Inc. for a New SDM License to be 
located at 186 W. Maple Road, Troy, MI  48084, Oakland County {MLCC Req. #614894}.   
 
Yes: 
No: 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-02-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 20, 2012 
 

- 11 - 

 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of Item(s)  ______________      , which SHALL BE 
CONSIDERED after Consent Agenda (I) items, as printed. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-02-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 

a) Special City Council Meeting of February 6, 2012 
b) Regular City Council Meeting of February 6, 2012  
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution #3: Exercise Renewal Option – Transit Mixed 
Concrete  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-02-      
 
WHEREAS, On April 18, 2011, Troy City Council awarded one-year contracts to provide transit 
mixed concrete with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to the low bidders, McCoig 
Materials/Koenig Fuel & Supply of Plymouth, MI as the primary supplier, and Superior 
Materials, LLC of Farmington Hills, MI  as the secondary supplier (Resolution #2011-04-085-J-
4a); and 
 
WHEREAS, McCoig Materials/Koenig Fuel & Supply and Superior Materials, LLC have agreed to 
exercise the option to renew their respective contracts for one (1) additional year under the same 
prices, terms, and conditions; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the option to 
renew the contracts to provide transit mixed concrete with McCoig Materials/Koenig Fuel & 
Supply of Plymouth, MI, as the primary supplier, and Superior Materials, LLC, as the secondary 
supplier, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened March 22, 2011, with the 
contracts expiring April 30, 2013. 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution #3: Exercise Renewal Option - Aggregates 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 20, 2012 
 

- 12 - 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-02-      
 
WHEREAS, On April 18, 2011, one-year contracts to provide Aggregates with an option to 
renew for one additional year was awarded to the low bidders, B&W Landscape Supply, 
Boulevard & Trumbull Towing, Novak Construction, Osburn Industries, Inc., Richmond 
Transport, Inc., and Tri-City Aggregates at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened 
March 22, 2011(Resolution #2011-04-085-J4b); and 
 
WHEREAS, After the award of contract, Richmond Transport withdrew their bid for 6A Slag 
due to a calculation error; and on May 9, 2011, Troy City Council rescinded with prejudice the 
award to Richmond Transport and re-awarded the contract for 6A Slag to the next lowest 
bidder, B&W Landscape Supply of Clinton Township (Resolution #2011-05-094); and 
 
WHEREAS, All suppliers with the exception of Osburn Industries have agreed to exercise the 
one-year option to renew their respective contracts under the same prices, terms, and 
conditions; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the 
option to renew the contracts to provide one-year requirements of Aggregates with the following 
low bidders – B&W Landscape Supply of Clinton Township, Boulevard & Trumbull Towing of 
Detroit, Novak Construction of Almont, and Tri-City Aggregates of Holly, under the same 
contract prices, terms, and conditions expiring April 30, 2013. 
 
J-5 Milano Development Company, Inc. v. City of Troy et. al. 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-02-      
 
WHEREAS, The February 5, 2008 Consent Judgment in the Milano Development Company, 
Inc. v. City of Troy, et. al. case, (Oakland County Circuit Court Case No. 06-079401-CZ) allows 
for the City of Troy to agree to an extension of time for the presentation of a revised plat for the 
Square Acres Subdivision plat, that vacates the 43 foot easements for roadway purposes and 
allows for a new residential development; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council GRANTS its consent to 
extend the time within which to file a revised plat for the Square Acres Subdivision for good 
cause; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES the revised plat for 
Square Acres Subdivision, as attached and incorporated into the original Minutes of this 
meeting; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to send a copy of this 
Resolution to the State of Michigan and Athens Parc Developers, LLC. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 20, 2012 
 

- 13 - 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time): None Submitted 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

L-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 

N. REPORTS 
N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Civil Service Committee-Final-December 8, 2011 
b) Liquor Advisory Committee-Final-January 9, 2012  
c) Planning Commission-Draft-January 10, 2012  
d) Zoning Board of Appeals-Draft-January 17, 2012 
e) Civil Service Commission-Final-January 19, 2012 
f) Liquor Advisory Committee-Draft-February 13, 2012  
g) Civil Service Commission-Draft-February 14, 2012 
 
N-2 Department Reports:  
a) Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – January 2012  
b) Final Reporting – Greater Detroit Auto Auction Services – Auctions for Calendar Year 

2011  
c) Quarterly Financial Report – December 31, 2011  
d) Tax Abatement Policy  
 
N-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Appreciation to Troy Police Department from Rose Weber Thanking Officer 

Bordo for Assistance 
b) Letter of Appreciation to Officer Breidenich from Peggy Willockx of Troy People 

Concerned  
c) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Bonnie Bostelman Thanking Officer Cooney 

for Assistance 
d) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Rhonda Berger Thanking Sergeant 

Szuminski, Officer Barrows, Officer Villerot, Officer Bordo, Officer Denny, Officer Linton 
and Officer Piper for Assistance  

e) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Elise Arndt Thanking Officer Fitzpatrick and 
Officer Zagacki 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 20, 2012 
 

- 14 - 

N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 
 
N-5  Economic Development Update Information 
 
N-6  Allowable Restrictions on Public Comment 
 
N-7  Super City Smoker’s Express, LLC. SDM Liquor License 
 
N-8  Article from Michigan Humanities Council 
 

O. STUDY ITEMS 
O-1  No Study Items 
 

P. CLOSED SESSION:  

P-1  Closed Session 
 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 20, 2012 
 

- 15 - 

 
FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 
 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
Monday, March 5, 2012  .................................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, March 19, 2012 ................................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, April 2, 2012  ..................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, April 16, 2012 .................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, May 7, 2012....................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, May 14, 2012..................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, June 4, 2012 ..................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, June 18, 2012 ................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, July 9, 2012 ....................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, July 23, 2012 ..................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, August 13, 2012 ................................................................................ Regular Meeting 
Monday, August 27, 2012 ................................................................................ Regular Meeting 
Monday, September 10, 2012 .......................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, September 24, 2012 .......................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, October 8, 2012 ................................................................................ Regular Meeting 
Monday, October 22, 2012 .............................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 12, 2012 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 26, 2012 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, December 3, 2012 ............................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, December 17, 2012 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
 

 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 
Monday, April 23, 2012 .............................................................. Special Budget Study Session 
Monday, April 30, 2012 .............................................................. Special Budget Study Session 

 
 



 
PROCLAMATION 

HEART HEALTHY MONTH - FEBRUARY 2012 
 
WHEREAS, Heart Disease is the leading cause of death for both men and women. Approximately 1.2 million 
Americans suffer a heart attack each year in the United States, including an estimated 700,000 who will have a first 
heart attack and 500,000 who will have a recurring heart attack; and  
 
WHEREAS, In the U.S. someone has a heart attack every 34 seconds; each minute, someone dies from a heart 
disease-related event; and in 2010, heart disease cost the United States $316.4 billion. This total includes the cost 
of health care services, medications, and lost productivity; and 
  
WHEREAS,  About one in five people who have heart failure die within one year from diagnosis. Early diagnosis 
and treatment which includes education on taking medicines, reducing salt in diet, exercise and self-management 
of this disease can improve quality of life and life expectancy; and.  
 
WHEREAS, It is important to recognize the signs and symptoms of a heart attack and to act immediately by calling 
911. A person’s chances of surviving a heart attack increase if emergency treatment is administered as soon as 
possible. Prevention and education is crucial to understanding this disease; and 
 
WHEREAS, Beaumont Hospital knows that the key to cardiovascular disease prevention and management is 
education.  They are to be commended for their numerous programs including the Heart & Vascular Screening 
Program - 7 tests for $70 - screenings to identify one’s risk for heart & vascular disease and the Healthy Heart 
Check - student heart screenings to identify future heart  problems; and  
 
WHEREAS, Beaumont also targets women with the American Heart Association’s Wear Red for Women Campaign 
Day; people trying to quit smoking with their smoking cessation classes; as well as the entire community with 
Health Fairs, AED education/training and speaking presentations; and 
 
WHEREAS, They have developed other programs including PATH - a new six-week program for anyone with any 
known chronic disease; a Heart Failure Workshop for physicians to refer patients to educate them on disease 
management, exercise, medication and diet to improve their quality of life; as well as a Community Support Group 
for people and families of those who have been diagnosed with heart disease;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Council of the City of Troy take this opportunity 
to proclaim February as Heart Healthy Month in the City of Troy, Michigan; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That we invite all Troy residents to recognize the importance of education in 
preventing heart disease within our community and our homes and encourage everyone to participate in Beaumont 
Hospital’s valuable programs and workshops supporting the prevention and management of heart disease. 
 
Presented this 20th day of February 2012. 

 

 

 

 

bittnera
Text Box
C-01



PROCLAMATION OF APPRECIATION 
TROY FAMILY DAZE FESTIVAL 

 
WHEREAS, During the economic downturn, the City of Troy engaged in a massive restructuring 
initiative which streamlined all City Departments.  While protecting the core competencies of 
police, fire and infrastructure maintenance, unfortunately many quality of life venues were lost, 
including the City’s Troy Daze Festival; and  
 
WHEREAS, After a year hiatus, a group of dedicated community volunteers worked hard to 
bring back the Troy Family Daze Festival from September 15-18, 2011 at Zion Christian Church 
on its 43-acre site on Livernois with games, music, entertainment and carnival rides, to the 
delight of the Troy community; and   
 
WHEREAS, Festival attendees of all ages were also able to sample food from local vendors, 
visit community booths, participate in contests and games, attend a special pancake breakfast, 
and watch a spectacular fireworks display; and  
 
WHEREAS, The North Woodward Community Foundation, with the support of Zion Christian 
Church, were the driving force behind the return of Troy Family Daze.  Zion Church’s members 
had participated in the festival for many years and were thrilled to step up their involvement as 
well as providing a location which was perfect for this kind of community activity;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT KNOWN, That the Mayor and City Council of the City of Troy takes 
this opportunity to express its appreciation to the North Woodward Community Foundation,  
Zion Christian Church, and the local businesses for sponsoring the Troy Family Daze Festival; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER KNOWN That the Mayor and City Council, on behalf of themselves and the 
Troy community, extends heartfelt appreciation to the many dedicated volunteers who worked 
tirelessly to make the festival a very successful event. 
 
 
Presented the 20th day of February 2012. 
 

 
 

 

bittnera
Text Box
C-02



From: Cynthia A Stewart
To: Aileen Bittner; Beth L Tashnick
Subject: Feb. 20 City Council
Date: Thursday, February 16, 2012 2:40:09 PM
Attachments: image001.png

On behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program for the months of November
& December 2011, Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart will present a check in the amount of
$986 to Thomas Kendziorski, Executive Director for ARC of Oakland County.
 
 

 

          
 

mailto:/O=CITY OF TROY/OU=CITYOFTROY/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=STEWARTCA
mailto:BittnerA@troymi.gov
mailto:TashnickBL@troymi.gov
http://www.facebook.com/TroyMI
http://twitter.com/CityTroyMI
https://service.govdelivery.com/service/multi_subscribe.html?code=MIOETROY

bittnera
Text Box
C-03



 

 
 
February 20, 2012  
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT:   Agenda Item – Public Hearing – Michigan NextEnergy Exemption 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 The Michigan Next Energy Authority (MNEA) was created by Public Act 549 of 2002.  The 

Authority is charged with certifying alternative energy businesses, and alternative energy Personal 
Property. 

 
Under provisions of the Act, alternative energy Personal Property (as certified by the local 
Assessor) purchased between 2002 and 2011 (since amended to extend to December 31, 2012) 
may be exempt from taxation through the process of eliminating all, or some, of the millages 
levied against its Taxable Value. 
 
The Act provides that the local taxing authorities may ‘opt out’ of the exemption process by failure 
to pass a resolution approving the exemption at a public hearing, within sixty (60) days of receipt 
of the MNEA certifying resolution.  (Local taxing authorities include:  Transportation Authority, 
County, Zoo, Intermediate Schools, Community College, City {township, village}, and Local 
Schools). 
 
Compact Power (now known as LG Chem, Inc.) has received certification from MNEA as an 
alternative energy company.  They have current Next Energy exemptions in Troy.  They have 
applied for further exemptions of 2012 Personal Property totaling $2,458,258 in Market Value. 
 
LG Chem, Inc. is located at 1857 Technology Drive. 

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 As shown on the attached chart, the City of Troy’s total exempted taxes for the two (2) years 

available to the companies is estimated at $22,201.22, including administration fees.  This 
amounts to $11,100.61 per year, on average. 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

bittnera
Text Box
E-01



Along with United Solar Ovonics, these companies have exemptions dating back to the 2005 
assessment year.  All exempted taxes for the City of Troy, through 2013 now total $227,695.59.  
($22,201.22 in 2012, $43,682.72 in 2011, $60,321.36 in 2010; $19,529.60 in 2009; $21,573.34 in 
2008;  $13,018.96 in 2007;  $35,368.39 in 2006;  and $12,000.00 in 2005).  

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations attached to this item. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 This item is in keeping with City Council Goals: 

 
U.  Utilize available economic development tools and partnerships in order to compete for quality 
businesses 
 
W.  Develop “green” philosophies to reduce demand on natural resources 
 

 
Options: 
 
 City Council may continue to participate in the MNEA program by passing the suggested 

resolution, or City Council may ‘opt out’ of this exemption process by its failure to pass the 
suggested resolution. 

 
 
NL/nl  H:\Next Energy\2012\CouncilPakPH 02.20.12 



Taxing Authority Millage 
Rates

Estimated 
Exempt 
Taxes 
2012

Estimated 
Exempt 
Taxes 
2013

Totals

City of TROY 10.1900 11,272.34 10,145.11 21,417.45
Admin Fee Warren 0.3729 412.51 371.26 783.77

Transportation 0.5900 652.67 587.40 1,240.07
Oakland County 4.6461 5,139.59 4,625.63 9,765.22
County Zoo Tax 0.1000 110.62 99.56 210.18

Macomb Intermediate 2.9430 3,255.59 2,930.03 6,185.63
Community College 1.5844 1,752.69 1,577.42 3,330.11
Warren School Debt 2.4400 2,699.17 2,429.25 5,128.42

Warren Hold Harmless 7.4057 8,192.30 7,373.07 15,565.38
Warren Sinking Fund 0.9964 1,102.23 992.01 2,094.24

School Operating Warren 0.0000 0.00 0.00 0.00
State Education 0.0000 0.00 0.00 0.00

Totals by Year 34,589.72 31,130.75 65,720.46

Est'd Taxable Value Warren SD 1,229,129 1,106,216 995,594

Market Value Exempted Warren 2,458,258 2,212,432 1,991,189

Total Troy Exempted Taxes 2 Years 22,201.22

City of Troy - Assessing Department
Estimated NextEnergy Exempted Tax Calculation - 2012

01/24/12







licarila
Typewritten Text

licarila
Typewritten Text

licarila
Typewritten Text

licarila
Text Box
LG Chem Power, Inc1857 TechnologyTroy, MI 48083

licarila
Text Box
27-3260918

licarila
Text Box
LG Chem Power is a North American subsidiary of LG Chem, Ltd., one of the worlds largest producers of lithium-ion batteries.  LG Chem Power, Inc. headquartered in Troy, MI is an easily accessible source for the research, development, engineering design and packaging of lithium-ion batteries for automotive and industrial applications

licarila
Text Box
Hyunju SiskoskyAccounting Manager248 654-3149hsiskosky@lgcpi.com

licarila
Text Box
Hyunju SiskoskyAccounting Manager248 654-3149hsiskosky@lgcpi.com

licarila
Text Box
2011

licarila
Text Box
LG Chem Power, Inc.Hyunju Siskosky1857 Technology'TroyMI48083



licarila
Text Box
1857 Technology'Troy48083

licarila
Text Box
Sandra Kasperek500 W Big Beaver'Troy48084

licarila
Text Box
Leger A. (Nino) Licari500 W Big Beaver'Troy48084

licarila
Text Box
Wendy Underwood4400 Livernois'Troy48098















licarila
Text Box
LG Chem Power, Inc.

licarila
Text Box
Hyunju Siskosky

licarila
Text Box
2010





 

 

Page 1 of 2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
February 13, 2012             
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Gary G. Mayer, Chief of Police  
     
Subject: Bid Waiver:  Purchase of Police Radio Batteries and Chargers   
 
 
Background 
On April 3, 2006, Troy City Council approved contracts to purchase emergency radio equipment from 
M/A-Com now Harris Communications of Melbourne, Florida through Oakland County Cooperative 
Purchasing Agreements (CC Res #2006-04-168-E4c).  
 
As previously corresponded, the CLEMIS (Court and Law Enforcement Management Information 
Systems) consortium has constructed a new 800 MHz public Safety Radio System for Oakland County 
called OakWIN.  The purpose of this system is to provide countywide interoperable radio 
communications for all law enforcement, fire, and emergency medical services throughout Oakland 
County.   
 
Funding for this project came from a 9-1-1-telephone surcharge and was approved by the Oakland 
County Board of Commissioners under Miscellaneous Resolution No. 99-279.  This project relieved the 
City of Troy, and other consortium communities, of the financial and operational responsibilities related 
to constructing and maintaining “stand alone” radio systems.  In addition to financing and constructing 
the system’s infrastructure, the project is providing base stations, as well as mobile and portable radios 
to consortium public safety agencies.  Ancillary equipment, the need for which differs from agency to 
agency, must be specified and purchased by individual participating agencies. 
 
The Police and Fire departments have been on the new radio system for over four (4) years. The 
batteries for the portable radios need to be replaced. The Troy Fire Department has replaced their 
batteries over the last few years and has gone to a new battery technology from Honeywell. This new 
technology allows the battery to last approximately 24hrs before it needs to be recharged. The current 
battery chargers will not work with the new battery technology. There was one occasion where one of 
the new fire department batteries made its way into a police department charger. This resulted in the 
charger breaking and the battery nearly expanding past its outer shell. To prevent this type of incident 
from occurring again and to be consistent with the Fire department, the Police department is 
requesting this purchase. The request to purchase retrofit kits will allow us to only retrofit the single use 
chargers, saving money from having to replace those as well.        
 
 
 
 
 

bittnera
Text Box
I-04



 

 

Page 2 of 2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
February 13, 2012             
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager     
Re: Waiver - Purchase of Police Radio Batteries and Chargers   
 
 
Recommendation 
City management and the Police department recommend approval for the purchase of (150) Honeywell 
Batteries Neocell portable radio batteries, (6) multi-bank battery chargers and (50) charger conversion 
kits directly from the manufacturer, Global Technology Systems, Inc for an estimated total cost of 
$18,362.50.  
 
Fund Availability  
The funds for this purchase are available in the Police Departments operating budget. 
 
 
 
 



 

Global Technology Systems, Inc. 550 Cochituate Road, Framingham, MA 01701 
800.267.2711 � In Europe call: 800.5390.5390 � www.HoneywellBatteries.com � www.HoneywellBatteries.eu 

 

 

 

January 24, 2012 

 

 

Don Ostrowski 

Troy Fire Department 

500 W. Big Beaver Rd. 

Troy, MI 48084 

 

 

 

Don, 

 

Global Technology Systems, Inc. is pleased to provide you with the following quote for Honeywell
®
 Batteries 

NEOCELL batteries and Tri-Chemistry chargers: 

 

Device Honeywell Batteries Part 

Number 

Quantity Price Each Extended 

HONEYWELL NEOCELL 
P7100/P7200 BATTERY 

HMA2104-LiP 150 $80.25 $12,037.50 

HONEYWELL SINGLE BAY 
RETROFIT KIT 

HCH-P7101-RETRO 50 $45. $2250. 

HONEYWELL P7100/P7200 
SIX BAY CHARGER 

HCH-P7106-CHG 6 $650. $3900. 

SUBTOTAL     

SHIPPING    $175. 

TOTAL    $18,362.50 

Prices listed valid for 60 days 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Global Technology Systems, Inc. 550 Cochituate Road, Framingham, MA 01701 
800.267.2711 � In Europe call: 800.5390.5390 � www.HoneywellBatteries.com � www.HoneywellBatteries.eu 

 

 

 

TO PLACE AN ORDER: 

Credit Card: Please provide your Credit Card information over the phone, via email or fax. 

Purchase Order: Please send Purchase Orders via email or fax. 

Terms: Net 30 days, FOB our Plant, West Palm Beach, FL. 

Shipping: 2-8 weeks ARO; please contact us at the time of order for more specific delivery estimates 

Freight: UPS Ground unless otherwise specified. 

Battery Warranty: All two-way radio batteries are guaranteed for 24 months against any defects in manufacturing or workmanship.  

Lithium Polymer Batteries: are warranted to maintain 80% rated capacity for 24 months. 

Charger Warranty: are warranted for 24 months against any defects in manufacturing or workmanship. 

 
 

If you have any questions, please feel free to call. 

Best Regards, 
 
Diane Wirtz 
Honeywell Batteries 
550 Cochituate Road 
Suite 15 
Framingham, MA 01701 
Direct Dial: 508-907-6695 
Fax: 508-650-5472 
dwirtz@honeywellbatteries.com 
www.honeywellbatteries.com 
"Trust your battery" 
 



bittnera
Text Box
I-05

















Page 1 of 4 
 

 

 
February 13, 2012 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
  Mark Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
  Gary Mayer, Police Chief 
  Gerry Scherlinck, Police Captain 
  Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
  Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer/Traffic Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Boyd Street Issues Relative to Baker Middle School & International Academy 
 
Recommendations 
 
City management recommends that the north side of Boyd Street, from Rochester Road to the 
school entrance on Boyd Street, be posted as a “No Parking – Tow Away Zone” during the 
morning arrival (7:15 a.m. to 8:15 a.m.) and evening dismissal times (2:00 p.m. to 2:45 p.m.) on 
school days only for the remainder of the 2011-12 school year, ending this June.  Furthermore, 
it is recommended that the issue be re-evaluated in the fall of 2012 to determine the need for 
these signs after the school district changes the start times for Baker Middle School and the 
International Academy (IA), which is expected to considerably reduce traffic on Boyd.   
 
Background 
 
School districts in Michigan are exempt from local control or local oversight.  They are under the 
jurisdiction of the State of Michigan.  If the school district were not exempt, it is unlikely that the 
IA would have been approved by the city for this site.  
 
Staff has been dealing with traffic issues on Boyd Street since the fall of last year.  These issues 
are related to vehicles parked on the north side of Boyd Street, legally, during the arrival and 
dismissal times of the Baker Middle school and IA school site.   The Baker school has been at 
this site since at least the early 1960’s, while the International Academy was opened four years 
ago and started with its first freshman class.  Each year, the IA has added a grade such that 
traffic has steadily increased up to this year when all four grades are now attending the IA. 
 
There are two access points to the school site.  One is from Torpey and the other from Boyd.  
The Torpey access is controlled by a traffic signal on Rochester Road, while Boyd can be 
accessed from Big Beaver via Daley from  the south or Rochester Road from the west.  Torpey 
is approximately 24’ wide within a standard 60’ wide right-of-way, while Boyd is only 
approximately 22’ wide within the old standard 50’ wide right-of-way.  Both streets have no curb 
and gutter and no sidewalks, except for a portion of the east end of Boyd, east of the school 
site.  The south side of Boyd Street is posted as “No Parking” due to fire hydrants along that 
side of the road. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

bittnera
Text Box
I-06



Page 2 of 4 
 

 
Exacerbating the traffic issue is the fact that Baker and the IA have morning start times within 10 
minutes of each other, so a large influx of traffic is attempting to access the site from Boyd and 
Torpey Streets during a very short period of time.  Several changes have been made on the 
school site over the past few years with the help of the city and Traffic Improvement Association 
(TIA) to better facilitate the safe movement of traffic on the site.   From all appearances, traffic 
and pedestrian movement on the school site itself is well controlled and moves in an orderly and 
safe fashion.   
 
The issue arises when traffic is exiting the site via Boyd Street, primarily during the morning 
arrival.  Drivers leaving the site are encountering parked vehicles on the north side of Boyd (the 
south side is posted No Parking due to fire hydrants), which impedes the flow of traffic.  These 
parked vehicles create a situation where drivers must wait for a gap in oncoming traffic to try 
and dart around the parked vehicle(s) to head west on Boyd.  This situation becomes 
confrontational for parents leaving the site and Boyd Street residents who observe the situation. 
 
Staff met with the school district back in September when this issue first came up and originally 
the issue was school buses using Boyd to access the school site.  Bus traffic is only for Baker 
Middle school.  There are no buses for the IA as all students either drive or are dropped off.  At 
this meeting, the Troy School District (TSD) agreed to reroute all buses to Torpey.  In 
conjunction with this, city staff worked with the County to change the traffic signal timing at 
Torpey and Rochester Road to allow for more green time to better facilitate the bus movement 
to and from the site.  The meeting was held on Friday, September 16, 2011 and the changes to 
the traffic signal and bus route were made on Monday, September 19, 2011.  These changes 
did alleviate concerns relative to bus traffic on Boyd. 
 
Subsequent to this, residents on Boyd would intermittently and intentionally park vehicles on the 
north side of Boyd to cause traffic issues.  There has been an ongoing effort by the Troy Police 
Department to get voluntary compliance from Boyd Street residents to not park on the street 
during the morning arrival times.  This has been somewhat successful, but there are enough 
occurrences of vehicles parking on the north side of Boyd and concerns from IA school parents 
to require the Police Department to have officers assigned to patrol Boyd Street almost 
constantly at considerable use of manpower and expense.  A more permanent and economical 
solution must be found as we cannot continue to utilize limited police resources to provide 
ongoing traffic control in this area.  We can no longer offer customized service with a customer 
service budget. 
 
In an effort to seek a solution to this issue, staff and representatives of the Troy School District 
met with residents of Boyd Street on January 25, 2012.  Several residents of the immediate 
area met with us to discuss the situation.  Some points of discussion revolved around closing 
the access from Boyd, providing an alternate access to the site from another area such as 
Raintree Village or Wakefield and the posting of No Parking signs on the north side of Boyd.  
We also had our traffic engineering consultant, Orchard, Hiltz & McCliment (OHM), attend the 
meeting to discuss their review of the area.  OHM was brought in to provide a 3rd party review of 
the school site and traffic operations on Boyd and Torpey.  OHM’s recommendation (attached) 
to post the north side of Boyd Street as a No Parking zone during AM arrival and PM dismissal 
times during school days was shared with the residents.   
 
Since this meeting, voluntary compliance has been adhered to for the most part.  The Troy 
School District has committed to changing the start time for Baker Middle School in the fall of 
2012 such that it would start 30 minutes later than the IA.  This change was not possible this 
year because of established times for internet class coordination with other area academies that 
could not be changed.  The District has committed to notifying their parents, students and staff 



Page 3 of 4 
 

to use Torpey Drive this fall as the primary access to the site.  Boyd would still be used to some 
extent, but Torpey is a more desirable access due to the wider street and better access from 
Rochester Road.  Traffic on Boyd is expected to go down this fall.      
 
The issue at hand is what can be done now to ensure that all interested parties (residents, 
students, parents and school district staff) can be accommodated for the rest of the 2011-12 
school year without continued confrontations and police presence.  Voluntary compliance by the 
residents is encouraged, but to date there have been enough occurrences where a vehicle has 
been parked on the north side of Boyd to eliminate this as a viable option.   
 
Police Department Background on Boyd Street Issues 
 
The Police Department has been involved in the complaints along Boyd Street since the 
beginning of the school year.   
 
Complaints have been received from both parents and residents.   Parents inflicted a barrage of 
e-mails upon the department demanding the north side of Boyd be immediately posted with no 
parking signs to insure their uninterrupted access to the schools.  Residents insisted on a total 
diversion of traffic from their street; they are and have been against the no-parking option.   
 
Residents initially threatened to achieve complete gridlock in the area by parking vehicles along 
the north side of Boyd, at the entrance near Rochester Road, as well as by arranging for 
pedestrian traffic within the roadway to deliberately impede traffic.  They have in fact organized 
and deliberately parked vehicles along the full length of the north side of the street from time to 
time, which resulted in significant traffic conflicts.   
 
Parents have reported residents shouting at them; including the use of obscenities and 
comments about drivers’ perceived ethnicity.  Residents have reported vehicles leaving the 
roadway, damaging their lawns and mailboxes.  Residents have described their cause as “a 
war.”  Comments were reported involving threats to place nails in the roadway.  As a result of 
this situation, the Police Department has had to post officers at this location almost constantly 
while attempts were made to analyze the problem and develop solutions. 
 
Despite Police Department requests for voluntary compliance regarding not parking on the north 
side of Boyd, the Police Department recently received a report of a large SUV being parked on 
the north side of the street during the morning rush and two residents standing in close 
proximity to it and the travelled roadway, causing back-ups.  During the same time period, two 
residents were reportedly approaching children as they walked to school, asking if they felt safe 
given the traffic situation.   
 
In response, the School District voiced concern over adults approaching children walking to 
school.  Residents were reportedly photographing drivers and license plates.  On February 7, 
2012 a report was received indicating one of the male residents was walking his niece in the 
roadway, causing traffic conflicts.   
 
Whenever the Police Department withdraws, the problems re-emerge, requiring the re-
assignment of officers to the location.     
 
Options 
 
Staff has looked at numerous options for this area.  Each option has shortcomings, but the 
typical and customary solution as well as the quickest and most economical solution is to post 
the north side of Boyd Street as a “No Parking – Tow Away Zone” during the morning arrival 



Page 4 of 4 
 

and evening dismissal times during school days for the remainder of the 2011-12 school year.  
This is consistent with the traffic control in place on Torpey and the majority of school sites 
within the City.   
 
Other options that were considered: 
 

1. Opening up the barricades at the east end of Boyd, adjacent to the West Oaks 
Subdivision which were required as a part of the City Council resolution approving the 
development.  This option would allow for traffic to disperse from the schools Boyd 
Street driveway and then travel east or west along Boyd Street, thereby reducing the 
traffic heading west to Rochester Road or south to Big Beaver.  This option would 
require City Council approval to remove the condition of approval of the West Oaks 
development.  In addition to requiring City Council approval, the residents adjacent to 
West Oaks were vehemently opposed to cut through traffic from the new development 
along the public roads in their subdivisions, including the residents along Boyd Street at 
the time West Oaks was approved. 

 
2. Approval of a Special Assessment District (SAD) to widen Boyd Street.  This would allow 

for an increased cross section to better facilitate the flow of traffic to and from the school, 
but due to weather limitations alone, the improvement could not be completed until the 
current school year is nearly over.  No Parking on the north side of Boyd Street would 
still be recommended even with a wider cross section so that traffic could move freely.  
The SAD costs could be assessed to adjacent property owners, the city at large and 
possibly a share to the school district.  A SAD can be approved by City Council by their 
own volition; however, our policy has been that 50% or more of the residents in the SAD 
project area must support the project in order for it to be presented to City Council.  Boyd 
Street is due for road maintenance and if a widening project were to move forward it 
would make sense to incorporate a larger cross section at that time. 
 

3. Construction of sidewalks along Boyd Street.  Again, this would be proposed as an SAD 
as new sidewalks are not considered as a city cost but an improvement to the adjacent 
property.  The city at large historically does not pay for a benefit for the residents 
adjacent to the improvement.  This was discussed at our meeting on January 25th but 
was not supported by residents in attendance. 

 
4. The “take no action” option was also considered.  This is not considered a viable option 

as it requires that voluntary compliance by the residents to not park on Boyd Street be 
adhered to at all times during the morning arrival and dismissal times.  This has been 
used to date, but requires considerable use of limited police resources to patrol the area 
to ensure that no vehicles are parked on the road.   

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Traffic\ATE Files\Requests\Troy Schools\Baker_IA School\To CC re Boyd Street IssuesR6.docx 



 

    

 

34000 Plymouth Road | Livonia, MI 48150 
p. (734) 522-6711 | f. (734) 522-6427 

www.ohm-adv isors .com  

January 25, 2012 
 
Mr. William Huotari, PE 
City of Troy 
500 W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI 48084 
 

Subject: Baker Middle School / International Academy 
 

Dear Mr. Huotari: 
 
The Troy School District has been operating Baker Middle School located off of Torpey Drive and 
Boyd Avenue for at least 50 years. The International Academy was constructed next to Baker MS in 
2007. This school year, 2011-12, is the first that incorporates the full 9th through 12th grade levels at 
the International Academy, so is also the first school year that a number of senior students have been 
driving themselves to school. Bus service is provided for Baker MS students, but not for those at the 
International Academy (IA). 
 
Vehicle access for the school campus is by way of Torpey Drive and Boyd Ave.  Faculty and parents 
using Torpey are instructed to use the parking area and drop-off loops located on the north side of the 
buildings.  Parents and students using Boyd are instructed to use the parking area and drop-off loop 
located on the west side of the IA building.  The driveway off Torpey is partially coned off each day to 
limit traffic between the drives to the north and south sides of the campus.  The intent is that school 
busses are to arrive via Torpey and only they are to cross this line of traffic cones.   The parent drop-
off and pick-up policies of the two schools have helped regulate the traffic patterns occurring on-site.  
A high percentage of parents are following the established patterns.   
 
With that said, we note that one of the substantial traffic safety issues with these schools involve 
vehicles parking on the north side of Boyd west of the school driveway during the morning arrival and 
afternoon dismissal periods.  The observed vehicles were legally parked; however, they formed an 
obstruction to the two way flow of traffic on Boyd.  This resulted in significant confusion as drivers 
arriving and departing the schools attempted to navigate around the parked vehicles.  The drivers 
were generally well behaved, but the situation held the potential for traffic safety conflicts. 
 
Given the size of the school campus and the number of students and staff in attendance, it is our 
professional opinion that this site needs a minimum of two points of open vehicle access.  We thus 
believe that there is no question that access must be maintained from both Torpey and Boyd.  To 
resolve the congestion issue, we note there is a remedy commonly used for many other streets 
adjacent to schools in Troy and surrounding communities. 
 

We recommend that the north side of Boyd Ave from Daley Dr. to the school entrance be posted 
no parking during school arrival and dismissal periods.   
 

Orchard, Hiltz, & McCliment, Inc. 
 
 
 
   
Stephen B. Dearing, PE, PTOE 
Manager - Traffic Engineering 



 

 

 

 
 

RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN 
 

Adopted: February 20, 2012 
 

 
 

1. APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEM ......................................................... 1 
2. DESIGNATION OF ACTING MAYOR ............................................................. 1 
3. SPECIAL MEETINGS ...................................................................................... 1 
4. REGULAR MEETINGS .................................................................................... 2 
5. AGENDA .......................................................................................................... 2 
6. ORDER OF BUSINESS ................................................................................... 2 
7. CABLE CASTING OF CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS ........................................ 3 
8. MINUTES ......................................................................................................... 3 
9. PROCLAMATIONS .......................................................................................... 3 
10. RECONSIDERATION OF QUESTIONS .......................................................... 3 
11. RESCISSION OF QUESTIONS ....................................................................... 4 
12. WITHDRAWAL OF MOTIONS PRIOR TO VOTING ....................................... 4 
13. PUBLIC HEARING ........................................................................................... 4 
14. CONSENT AGENDA ....................................................................................... 4 
15. APPOINTMENTS ............................................................................................. 4 
15.1 APPOINTMENT OF CITY OF TROY REPRESENTATION TO SEMCOG AND 

SOCRRA .......................................................................................................... 5 
16. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND VISITORS ................................................ 5 
17. POSTPONE ..................................................................................................... 6 
18. RULES OF ORDER ......................................................................................... 6 
19. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES ...................................................................... 6 
20. EXPENSES: OUT-OF-TOWN TRAVEL FOR CITY BUSINESS ..................... 6 
21. ABSENCES AT COUNCIL MEETINGS ........................................................... 6 
22. SUSPEND RULES ........................................................................................... 7 
23. COUNCIL DISCUSSION .................................................................................. 7 
24. AGENDA ITEMS SUBMITTED BY COUNCIL MEMBERS ............................. 7 
25. VIDEO AND AUDIO PRESENTATIONS ......................................................... 7 
26. CONTINUED AGENDA ITEMS NOT CONSIDERED BEFORE 12:00 AM ..... 7 
27. VIOLATIONS .................................................................................................... 7 
28. WIRE COMMUNICATIONS BY AND TO COUNCIL MEMBERS DURING ANY 

MEETING OF COUNCIL .................................................................................. 7 
 

bittnera
Text Box
I-07



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 1 
 

Adopted: 02/20/2012 

1. APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEM 
The selection of Mayor Pro Tem shall rotate annually in the following order: McGinnis, Slater, 
Fleming, Tietz, Henderson, Campbell.  
 

2. CODE OF ETHICS 
The City Council Code of Ethics shall be reviewed in November of each election year, and all 
City Council members shall agree to abide by the City Council Code of Ethics, and shall 
evidence this agreement by affixing their signature to a written copy of the Code of Ethics at 
the earliest opportunity, and providing a copy to the City Clerk.   
 

3. DESIGNATION OF ACTING MAYOR 
In the absence or disability of the Mayor and the Mayor Pro Tem, the Council Member 
present who has served longest shall be designated Acting Mayor and shall perform the 
duties of the Mayor. 

4. SPECIAL MEETINGS 
A. CALLING OF SPECIAL MEETINGS (Pursuant to City Charter Section 4.2): 

Special meetings shall be called by the Clerk on the written request of the Mayor, 
or any two members of the Council on at least twenty-four hours written notice to 
each member of the Council, served personally or left at his usual place of 
residence; but a special meeting may be held on shorter notice if all members of 
the Council are present or have waived notice thereof in writing. 

 
B. DOCUMENTATION: 

Special meetings shall be exclusively limited to items specifically referenced in the 
Call of the Meeting. 
• Special Meeting Posting: Pursuant to City Charter a printed meeting notice for each 

specially called meeting shall contain the items indicated in the written notice calling 
the meeting.  

• Study Session (Special Meeting) Agenda and Posting: Study Session Agendas 
shall contain the items as indicated in the motion calling the meeting.  

 
C. POSTING AND DELIVERY: 

Special Meeting Calling Notice and/or Agenda shall be personally delivered to each 
Council Member and posted for public display at least twenty-four (24) hours in 
advance of the meeting. 

 
D. ORDER OF BUSINESS: 

At each Study Session (Special Meeting) of the Council, the business to be considered 
shall include the items listed and in the following order: 

 
A. Call to Order 
B. Roll Call: 

1) Listing of Council Members 
2) Excuse Absent Council Members pursuant to Rule Number 21. 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 2 
 

Adopted: 02/20/2012 

C. Items as Indicated in the Motion Calling of the Meeting 
D. Items Not Indicated in the Motion Call the Meeting (Pursuant to City Charter 

Section 4.2): 
1) Special meetings are limited to what is expressly indicated in the Call of the 

Meeting (Motion of Council or written notice), except as set forth below. 
E. Amendments/Additions to Agenda (Pursuant to City Charter Section 4.3): 

In order for City Council to address items at a Special Meeting that are in addition to 
the Items expressly indicated in the Call of a Special Meeting, all members of City 
Council must consent to the requested addition(s) in writing and all Council members 
present at the Special Meeting must consent. 

F. Public Comment 
G. Adjournment 

5. REGULAR MEETINGS 
Regular meetings shall be held in the Council Chambers at 7:30 P.M. Meeting dates will be 
established, by resolution, prior to the end of the preceding calendar year. 

6. AGENDA 
A. Regular Meeting Agenda: A printed agenda for each regularly scheduled meeting shall 

be produced at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the meeting. Every item of 
business to come before the Council shall be filed with the City Clerk by noon on the 
Wednesday preceding the Monday on which the Council meets. It shall be the duty of 
the City Clerk to have delivered, as soon as practical, to each member of the Council a 
complete agenda of the items to be considered at the following meeting. Each item on 
the agenda shall have sufficient explanation to indicate its intent. All questions 
introduced that do not appear on the agenda will be referred to a later meeting, except 
by suspension of these rules. A packet, excluding all confidential items, will be posted 
on the City’s Website at least 48 hours prior to Council meetings. 
 

B. Closed Session Agenda: Where a Closed Session is requested of a pending case, the 
specific name(s) is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (e), even though the specific 
name(s) is not technically required under the Open Meetings Act. Where a Closed 
Session is requested for any collective bargaining unit, the specific name(s) is to be 
included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (c), even though not technically required under the 
Open Meetings Act.  

7. ORDER OF BUSINESS 
At each Regular meeting of the Council, the business to be considered shall be taken up for 
consideration and disposition in the following order: 
 
Invocation 
Pledge of Allegiance 
A. Call to Order 
B. Roll Call 

1) Listing of Council Members 
2) Excuse Absent Council Members pursuant to Rule Number 21 

C. Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 3 
 

Adopted: 02/20/2012 

D. Carryover Items 
E. Public Hearings 
F. Public Comment – In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Rule 

Number 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors 
G. Response/Reply to Public Comment  
H. Postponed Items 
I.  Regular Business 
J.  Consent Agenda 

1) Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
2) Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion 

K.  Memorandums and Future Council Agenda Items 
L.  Council Referrals - Items appearing under Council Referrals are items brought forward 

by the Mayor or Council Members before the City Manager’s agenda deadline for 
consideration at the next regular meeting.  

M.  Council Comments - Items brought forward by Mayor and Council will be placed on the 
next Regular Meeting Agenda for Action. Items appearing under Council Comments are 
not intended for discussion or action at the meeting at which they first appear. 

N.  Reports 
O.  Study Items 
P.  Closed Session 
Q.  Adjournment 

8. CABLE CASTING OF CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 
All City Council Meetings will be broadcast on WTRY, with the exception of Closed sessions 
and Council retreats. 

9. MINUTES 
A. Minutes: The minutes will be distributed to the Council prior to their approval. The 

minutes will be placed on the Consent Agenda for approval. 
B. Closed Session Minutes: Where a Closed Session is requested for discussion of a 

pending case, the specific name(s) is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (e), even 
though the specific name(s) is not technically required under the Open Meetings Act. 
Where a Closed Session is requested of for any collective bargaining unit, the specific 
name(s) of a collective bargaining unit is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (c), 
even though not technically required under the Open Meetings Act.  

10. PROCLAMATIONS 
Proclamations shall be included in the agenda under Reports and Communications and may 
be brought before Council for consideration by any member. Proclamations will be placed on 
the Consent Agenda for approval. 

11. RECONSIDERATION OF QUESTIONS 
Reconsideration of any vote of the Council may be made by either side of the voted motion 
and shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members*. 
Reconsideration of any vote of the Council may further be made by either side of the voted 
motion and shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members provided 
that new information has been brought forward. *Charter states “majority of the members 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 4 
 

Adopted: 02/20/2012 

elect.” 

12. RESCISSION OF QUESTIONS 
Rescission of any vote of the Council shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the 
Council Members. *Charter states “majority of the members elect.” 

13. WITHDRAWAL OF MOTIONS PRIOR TO VOTING  
Any motion may be withdrawn by its maker. A motion to withdraw must receive a second and 
the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members present.  

14. PUBLIC HEARING 
Public Hearings will be held after required notice has been provided. Notices shall inform 
recipients of possible continuations of hearings. The City Council may upon affirmative vote of 
a majority of its members "continue" said hearing at a future date designated in the resolution. 
If the City Council elects to continue the Public Hearing it will appear in the designated 
meeting Agenda under the topic of "Public Hearings".  

15. CONSENT AGENDA 
The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one motion. 
That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent Agenda. Any 
Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in opposition to the 
recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda and have having it 
considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent Agenda shall be 
considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have been heard. Public 
comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda Item F.  

16. APPOINTMENTS 
A. Appointments to Boards, Commissions and Committees: 

 
The Mayor shall, with City Council concurrence, appoint members of Boards or 
Committees as governed by State Statute or local ordinances. 
 
The Mayor Pro Tem will contact incumbents to determine their interest in being nominated 
for reappointment. 
 
The Mayor or any Council Member desiring to nominate a person for appointment to a 
Board, Commission, or Committee shall at the meeting prior to the appointment, submit 
such name, for nomination. A brief summary of background and personal data as to 
nominee's qualifications should be presented at the time of nomination, except that such a 
resume shall not be required for the re-nomination of a current member, or if the Council 
unanimously agrees that a resume is not necessary. Resumes will be submitted on or 
before the time of nomination. 
 
Nominations will occur during any regular meeting of the Council. A resolution to nominate 
will be considered during the "Regular Business" of the agenda. All nominations are 
subject to Section "B" which appears below. 

 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 5 
 

Adopted: 02/20/2012 

B. Method of Voting on Nominees: 
 

1) Where the number of nominees does not exceed the number of positions to be filled, a roll 
call vote shall be used. 

2) Where the number of nominations exceeds the number of positions to be filled, voting shall 
take place by the City Clerk calling the roll of the Council and each Council Member is to 
indicate the names of the individuals he/she wishes to fill the vacancies 

3) When no candidate receives a majority vote, the candidate(s) with the least number of votes 
shall be eliminated from the ensuing ballot. 

4) No member of the City Council shall serve on any committee, commission or board of the City 
of Troy, except the Retirement System Board of Trustees, Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan 
and Trust Board, and the Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) unless membership is 
required by Statute or the City Charter. 

5) Persons nominated, but not appointed during this process will be sent a letter thanking them 
for their willingness to serve the community. 

6) Recognition will be given to persons who have concluded their service to the community on 
Boards and Commissions. 

15.1 APPOINTMENT OF CITY OF TROY REPRESENTATION TO SEMCOG AND 
SOCRRA 
SEMCOG (Southeastern Michigan Council of Governments) Representation: The 
Mayor and City Council shall appoint one Delegate and one Alternate to serve on the 
SEMCOG General Assembly for a term of two-years expiring at 7:30 PM on the Monday 
following the Regular City Council Election. The appointments shall be made at the 
organizational meeting of Council at the first Regular meeting of every odd-year 
November. 
 
SOCRRA (South Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority) Representation: 
The Mayor and City Council shall appoint one delegate and one alternate to serve on 
the SOCRRA Board for a term of one-year expiring on June 15th.  

17. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND VISITORS 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. NOTE TO THE PUBLIC: 
City Council requests that if you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of 
the appropriate department(s) whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been 
resolved satisfactorily, you are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and 
if still not resolved satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended 

with the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to 

five (5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to 

five (5) minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent Agenda items or any 
other item as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment portion 
of the agenda. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City Council 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 6 
 

Adopted: 02/20/2012 

members. 
• Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated 

should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific purpose. 

18. POSTPONE  
A motion to postpone may be made for a definite period of time. Items will automatically 
appear on the appropriate agenda. 

19. RULES OF ORDER 
Robert's Rules of Order, current edition, as clarified by the City Clerk, is hereby adopted and 
made a part hereof, except as modified by these Rules of Procedure, the Charter, and the 
City Code. 

20. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES 
Reasonable and necessary expenses incurred in service on behalf of the City shall be paid 
the Mayor and Council, provided that at the end of each month a detailed expense report is 
submitted and approved by the City Council. 

21. EXPENSES: OUT-OF-TOWN TRAVEL FOR CITY BUSINESS 
A. Funds providing for Council representation at State and National conferences sponsored 

by affiliations of cities will be annually approved in the budget for the subject fiscal year. 
The City Council will by advance resolution grant authorization for out of town travel to 
specific places, for conference purposes. Members of the City Council will submit 
expense vouchers exceeding $50.00 per day to attend out-of-town meetings and 
conferences, with additional allowances being made for transportation (paid at the air 
coach rate, City pool car, City Vehicle rental rate, or gas mileage at current IRS 
guidelines, depending upon the mode of transportation) and lodging. Expenses may be 
authorized for payment by the City Manager, and a copy of the expense report form will 
be placed on the Council agenda under Reports and Communications. 

 
B. Detailed and receipted expenses, not to exceed $150.00, to attend legislative committee 

hearings, legislative meetings, etc., may be authorized for payment by the City Manager 
without prior authorization by the Council, and a copy of the expense report form, along 
with receipts, will be placed on the Council agenda under Reports and Communications. 

22. ABSENCES AT COUNCIL MEETINGS 
A.  Council members who are unable to attend a Council meeting and desire an excused 

absence shall notify the City Manager, City Attorney or City Clerk of their absence in 
writing prior to the meeting and indicate the reason for the absence. The reason shall be 
entered in the proceedings of the Council at the time of each absence. 

 
B.  In the event of an absence of a Council member at a meeting, the City Manager is 

directed to supply such absent Council member with information about any special 
meetings that may have been scheduled. 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 7 
 

Adopted: 02/20/2012 

23. SUSPEND RULES 
The Rules of Procedure may be waived by a simple majority. 

24. COUNCIL DISCUSSION 
No member of Council shall speak a second time on any item under discussion until all other 
members desiring to speak on that item have been heard. No member of Council shall be 
allowed to speak for more than five (5) minutes at a time. 

25. AGENDA ITEMS SUBMITTED BY COUNCIL MEMBERS 
Mayor and Council Members submitting an item for a vote shall send the item to the City 
Manager in a timely manner in writing. Staff professional opinion will be written to accompany 
the item for discussion and a vote on the matter. Presentations at the Council table shall be 
limited to 15 minutes. 

26. VIDEO AND AUDIO PRESENTATIONS  
Video and Audio Presentations may not be submitted for presentation at a Council meeting 
unless submitted by 12:00 Noon on the day of the meeting. Inappropriate material will be 
prohibited. 

27. CONTINUED AGENDA ITEMS NOT CONSIDERED BEFORE 12:00 AM 
Any item on the Council agenda that has not been discussed by 12:00 AM of the morning 
following the beginning of the meeting shall be continued to the next regular meeting as a 
Carryover Item, unless City Council takes action to the contrary. 

28. VIOLATIONS 
The City Clerk shall be responsible for reporting violations of time limitations or speaking 
sequence to the Chair. 

29. WIRE COMMUNICATIONS BY AND TO COUNCIL MEMBERS DURING ANY 
MEETING OF COUNCIL 
All communications are subject to the Michigan Open Meetings Act, therefore members of the 
City Council shall not engage in any form of wire communication, as defined by U.S. Code 
Title 18, Part I, Chapter 119, Section 2510, during any meeting of the Council. 



Page 1 of 3 
 

 
February 14, 2012 
 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:   John Szerlag, City Manager 

Mark Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

   Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item – Approval of MDOT Subcontract with Tooles/Clark for Construction 

Manager at Risk Services for the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility  
 

Recommendation: 
 
Staff has completed its review of the Construction Manager at Risk (CMR) proposals for the Troy Multi-Modal 
Transit Facility in accordance with the Qualifications Based Selection process for this service.  The team of 
Tooles/Clark has been determined by the Purchasing Department to be the highest rated CMR team for the 
project.   
 
Attached for  City Council consideration is a Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) subcontract with 
Tooles Contracting Group LLC/ Clark Construction Company (Tooles/Clark), 500 Griswold Street, Suite 1620, 
Detroit, Michigan, 48226 for the purpose of fixing the rights and obligations of each party for CMR services for 
the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility at a cost not to exceed $648,731.00.  This cost is within the budget 
amount established for this service.  City staff discussed and met with Tooles/Clark on three separate 
occasions to review the new  project scope and develop an efficient project schedule.  This CMR cost was 
significantly reduced as a result of these negotiations.  
 
Should City Council approve this MDOT subcontract by adopting the suggested resolution, the resolution 
directs the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the agreement after the contractor has submitted the proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified requirements and after 
MDOT approval is received. 
 
Background: 
 
City Administration was authorized by MDOT to advertise for Construction Manager at Risk Services for the 
Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility under the MDOT Capital Agreement approved by City Council on September 
12, 2011.   
 
The services requested are to be completed in phases, including but not limited to: 
 

• Pre-Construction Phase – March 2012 through July, 2012 
• Construction Phase – August 2012 to September 2013  
• Close Out – September 2013 to December, 2013 (time extension request to January 2014 has received 

preliminary MDOT and FRA approval) 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

bittnera
Text Box
I-08



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
The CMR services are eligible for reimbursement with federal funds pursuant to the abovementioned MDOT 
Capital Agreement.  The selection process followed the “Brooks Act” provisions contained in federal Public 
Law 92-582.  The Brooks Act requires a Qualifications Based Selection (QBS) process in which consultants 
are rated on pre-determined experience and qualification criteria, with the top ranked consultant(s) moving on 
to the next phase. 
 
Proposals were received from three (3) companies on January 11, 2012.  A six (6) person review committee, 
consisting of the Director of Economic & Community Development, City Engineer, Deputy City Engineer, 
Planning Director, Building Official and MDOT Rail Operating Programs Manager reviewed and rated the 
consultants based on each firm’s understanding of the project, past experience with similar projects, 
experience of proposed team members and other pertinent items. 
 
Based on the review of the proposals, the review committee ranked Tooles/Clark as the top CMR, using the 
qualifications based selection process.  After determining the highest rated firm the Tooles/Clark sealed price 
proposal was opened.  Since the price proposal was based on the original $8,485,212 project, a revised price 
proposal was needed.  Under the Brooks Act, the City was authorized to negotiate with the highest rated firm, 
and therefore was able to obtain a new price proposal based on the January 17, 2012 change to the project, 
capping it $6,271,250.  City Administration continued to negotiate with Tooles/Clark from  January 30 to 
February 13, 2012, which resulted in reductions to the price proposal and a final cost that is within budget and 
acceptable to the City.   
 
This agreement and the pricing must be approved by MDOT after City Council approval and prior to execution 
of the agreement by the City or Tooles/Clark. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
City Council approved MDOT Contract No. 2011-0231, by Resolution #2011-09-210, on September 12, 2011.  
This approval obligated $8,485,212 in federal funding provided under the American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA) pursuant to the FRA’s High-Speed Intercity Passenger Rail program 
(HSIPR).  The revised $6,271,250 project approved by City Council on January 17, 2012 continues to be fully 
covered by the federal ARRA funds that were previously obligated.  As long as the project is not abandoned, 
there is no cost to the City of Troy.    
 
Under this Agreement, Pre-Construction phase  services are to be provided at a not to exceed price of 
$34,563.  Construction Phase services are to be provided at a not to exceed price of $439,168 plus not to 
exceed $175,000 for the Construction Manager’s overhead and profit.  The price for all CMR services is not to 
exceed $648,731. 
 
The agreement is based on estimated costs, as is standard with all MDOT agreements, since these 
agreements are prepared before actual costs are known.  FRA will pay only those costs actually incurred within 
the parameters of the agreement, which may be less than $6,271,250.  The FRA will retain any amounts over 
the actual expenditures for the project. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
The Agreement is based on standard MDOT contract language, similar to the MDOT contract approved by City 
Council for the Architect/Engineering services. 
 
MDOT will review and approve the CMR selection process used by the City along with the subcontract and 
derivation of costs. 
 



Page 3 of 3 
 

There is significant federal and state oversight of the project due to the obligation of the federal funds.  Monthly 
reports providing employment information are required throughout the life of the project.  Additionally, the 
Federal Railroad Administration (FRA) requires quarterly reports on expenditures and project progress. 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:       
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Transit Center\RFP A_E & CM at Risk\REVISED RFP for Troy\w_o_Birmingham\CMR\3rd Party Agreement\CMR to Council\To CC re 3rd Party CMR Agreement_Transit CenterFinal2.docx 



  1  

 
 

THE CITY OF TROY 
 

TOOLES CONTRACTING GROUP LLC/ CLARK CONSTRUCTION COMPANY  
 

CONTRACT 
 
 
 
THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into this date of ________________________ by and 
between the CITY OF TROY, hereinafter referred to as the “CITY,” and TOOLES 
CONTRACTING GROUP LLC/ CLARK CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, of 500 Griswold 
Street, Suite 1620, Detroit, MI 48226, hereinafter referred to as the “CONSULTANT.” 
 
WITNESSETH: 
 
WHEREAS, the CITY desires to engage the CONSULTANT to provide construction manager at 
risk services, hereinafter referred to as “SERVICES” for the  TROY MULTI-MODAL 
TRANSIT FACILITY; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree that: 
 
THE CONSULTANT WILL: 
 
1. Perform the work set forth in Exhibit 1, Request for Proposal and Related 

Documentation, attached hereto and made a part hereof, said work performed by the 
CONSULTANT to be hereinafter referred to as the “SERVICES.” This includes all 
terms, conditions, scope, specifications, amendments, etc., as accepted by the CITY, 
including any negotiated terms and conditions not explicitly mentioned in the Request for 
Proposal or in the offer as submitted by the CONSULTANT, but included in Exhibit 1 as 
part of the contract.  

 
2. Perform all SERVICES in conformity with the Michigan Department of Transportation 

(MDOT) applicable standards. 
 
3. During the performance of the SERVICES herein defined, be responsible for any loss of 

or damage to original documents belonging to the CITY while they are in the 
CONSULTANT’s possession. Restoration of lost or damaged original documents will be 
at the CONSULTANT’s expense. 

 
4. Make such trips to confer with representatives of the CITY, the MDOT, and the Federal 

Rail Administration (FRA), as may be necessary in the carrying out of the SERVICES set 
forth in this Contract. 

 



  2  

5. Submit written MULTI-MODAL TRANSIT FACILITY progress reports to the CITY, in 
the format as outlined in Exhibit 1, that outline the work accomplished during the 
reporting period; identify any problems, real or anticipated, associated with the conduct 
of the SERVICES; and identify any deviations from the agreed upon work plan. 

 
6. Permit representatives of the CITY, the MDOT, the FRA, and other authorized public 

agencies interested in the SERVICES to have full access to the SERVICES during the 
CONSULTANT’s performance. 

 
7. With regard to audits and record-keeping: 
 

a. The CONSULTANT will establish and maintain accurate records, in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, of all expenses incurred for which 
payment is sought or made under this Contract, said records to be hereinafter 
referred to as the “RECORDS.” Separate accounts will be established and 
maintained by job number for all costs incurred under this Contract. 

 
b. The CONSULTANT will maintain the RECORDS for at least three (3) years 

from the date of final payment made by the CITY under this Contract. In the 
event of a dispute with regard to the allowable expenses or any other issue under 
this Contract, the CONSULTANT will thereafter continue to maintain the 
RECORDS at least until that dispute has been finally decided and the time for all 
available challenges or appeals of that decision has expired. 

 
c. The CITY and the MDOT or its representative may inspect, copy, or audit the 

RECORDS at any reasonable time after giving reasonable notice. 
 

d. If any part of the work is subcontracted, the CONSULTANT will assure 
compliance with subsections (a), (b), and (c) above for all subcontracted work. 

 
8. If the CITY discloses its confidential information to the CONSULTANT, the 

CONSULTANT will maintain such information as confidential.  Information provided by 
the CITY will be deemed confidential if it is marked confidential or stated in writing to 
be confidential.  The above obligations of confidentiality will not apply to: 

 
a. Information for which the CITY gives prior written permission for publication or 

use. 
 
b. Information that is required to be disclosed based on law, legal process, or court 

order. 
 

A violation of this provision will be considered a breach of this Contract, and the CITY 
may terminate this Contract under the provisions of Section 18. 

 



  3  

News releases pertaining to this Contract or the SERVICES to which it relates will not be 
made without prior written approval from the CITY, and then only in accordance with 
explicit instructions from the CITY.  News releases made without the CITY’s approval 
will be considered a breach of the Contract, and the CITY may terminate this Contract 
under the provisions of Section 18. 

 
9. Submit TROY MULTI-MODAL TRANSIT FACILITY billings for the SERVICES 

performed and written progress reports to the CITY in the format set forth in Exhibit 1. 
The CONSULTANT agrees that the costs reported to the CITY for this Contract will 
represent only those items that are properly chargeable in accordance with this Contract. 
The CONSULTANT also certifies that it has read the Contract terms and has made itself 
aware of the applicable laws, regulations, and terms of this Contract that apply to the 
reporting of costs incurred under the terms of this Contract. 

 
THE CITY WILL: 
 
10. Furnish for the use of the CONSULTANT such CITY standards and other information as 

may be needed, unless specifically required to be provided by the CONSULTANT in a 
particular instance. 

 
11. Pay the CONSULTANT for the SERVICES after receipt of billings, subject to 

verification of progress.  
 
Compensation for the preconstruction services will be based on the actual hours worked 
and the labor costs, which includes overhead and fixed fee, supplied by the 
CONSULTANT as part of their bid, and will not exceed $34,563.00.   
 
Construction phase SERVICES includes construction work by sub consultants and 
CONSULTANT costs that will not exceed $614,168.00, and includes compensation for 
construction phase services on the basis of milestone payments for the construction work 
performed.  The construction phase services include:  payment for general conditions will 
be made on an actual cost basis and will not exceed $148,290.00; payment for 
CONSULTANT management services will be based on the actual hours worked and the 
labor costs, which includes overhead and fixed fee and will not exceed $290,878.00; and 
the consultant fee provided as part of the CONSULTANT’s bid, not to exceed 
$175,000.00, will be paid to the CONSULTANT.  Payments on the consultant fee will be 
prorated so the payment of the consultant fee will be proportional to the percentage of the 
CONTRACT that is completed.   
 
Funding will be distributed through the MDOT using federal funds from the FRA as 
authorized by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA). The CONSULTANT 
will be responsible for all costs in excess of the amounts shown above. 

 



  4  

The terms of this Contract are contingent upon receipt of the project funding grant from 
the FRA and the MDOT. This Contract must be approved by City of Troy City Council 
and the MDOT and is effective after the IGA with the MDOT has been signed.  
 

12. Determine that payment for the costs of the SERVICES required and performed is in 
accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in Exhibit 1 and the following: 

 
a. CONSULTANTS Labor Costs: Labor costs of personnel performing the 

management SERVICES by the CONSULTANT. This cost will be based on the 
hourly rates of pay, including overhead and fixed fees, provided by the 
CONSULTANT in their bid, and the actual hours of performance on the 
management SERVICES as supported by employee time records. 

 
b. Other CONSULTANT Costs: Actual costs of materials or other items identified 

in the “Tooles/Clark General Conditions Budget” that may be required hereunder 
but that are not normally provided as part of the overhead of the CONSULTANT. 
All actual costs will be supported by proper receipts and proofs of payment, and 
are considered to be included with payments against the CONSULTANTS 
general conditions. 

 
c. Sub consultant Costs: Actual costs of sub consultants performing SERVICES 

under this Contract. Amounts for payment made by the CONSULTANT to the 
sub consultant will not be considered an actual cost of the CONSULTANT but 
will be considered a part of the milestone payments for construction work paid to 
the CONSULTANT. 

 
d. Consultant Fee:  In addition to payments set forth under (a), (b) and (c) above, the 

CITY agrees to pay the CONSULTANT a consultant fee that will not exceed 
$175,000. It is agreed and understood that such amount will constitute full 
compensation to the CONSULTANT for profit from SERVICES performed and 
will not vary because of any differences between the estimated cost and the actual 
cost. Overruns in the actual cost of the SERVICES will not warrant an increase or 
adjustment in the amount of the consultant fee. Adjustments in the consultant fee 
will only be allowed under the provisions of Sections 17 and 22 of this Contract. 

 
e. Reimbursement for costs incurred is subject to the cost criteria set forth in 23 

CFR, Section 635, incorporated herein by reference as if the same were repeated 
in full herein. 

 
f. The CONSULTANT will not be paid for costs arising from the correction of 

errors and omissions attributable to the CONSULTANT. 
 
13. Make payment to the CONSULTANT in accordance with the terms and conditions set 

forth in Exhibit 1 and the following: 
 



  5  

a. Progress payments may be made for reimbursement of amounts earned to date 
upon receipt of a billing and the written progress report. Progress payments will 
include CONSULTANT labor costs, general condition costs, prorated payments 
of the consultant fee, and sub consultant costs, as herein set forth. The portion of 
the consultant fee that may be included in progress payments will be equal to the 
total consultant fee multiplied by the percentage of the work that has been 
completed to date of billing. Progress payments will not be made more than once 
a month. 

 
b. Upon receipt by the CITY of the required documents and any other accompanying 

information in a form satisfactory to the CITY, the CITY will process the 
payment request if the CONSULTANT is complying with its obligations pursuant 
to the Contract. Reimbursement of any costs pursuant to this section will not 
constitute a final determination by the CITY of the allowability of such costs and 
will not constitute a waiver by the CITY of any violation of the terms of this 
Contract committed by the CONSULTANT. 

 
Regardless of its costs, the CONSULTANT will not be entitled to compensation in 
excess of the maximum amount(s) set forth in Section 11 hereof. 

 
14. When work occasioned at the CITY’s request is in addition to or other than work 

provided for by the express intent of this Contract, the CITY will reimburse the 
CONSULTANT for all such work on the basis of actual costs incurred, as defined in 
Section 12, plus a predetermined lump sum amount for normal profit for such work. The 
performance of and payment for such work will require the submission of a proposal to 
perform the work and the award of a written amendment prior to beginning the work. 

 
IT IS FURTHER AGREED THAT: 
 
15. If the CONSULTANT deems that extra compensation is due it for work not clearly 

covered in this Contract, the CONSULTANT will notify the CITY in writing of its 
intention to make claim for such extra compensation before beginning such work. Failure 
on the part of the CONSULTANT to give such notification will constitute a waiver of the 
claim for such extra compensation. The filing of such notice by the CONSULTANT will 
not be construed to establish the validity of the claim. 

 
16. Prior to expiration, the time for completion of performance under this Contract may be 

extended by the CITY upon written request when delays are caused by circumstances or 
conditions beyond the control of the CONSULTANT, as determined by the CITY. Any 
such extension is contingent upon the CITY receiving a written approval and 
authorization by the MDOT. If both the CITY and the MDOT approve and authorize 
such extension, then a written time extension amendment will be prepared and issued by 
the CITY.  Any such extension will not operate as a waiver by the CITY of any of its 
rights herein set forth. 

 



  6  

17. In the event that an audit performed by or on behalf of the CITY, the MDOT, or the FRA 
indicates an adjustment to the costs reported under this Contract or questions the 
allowability of an item of expense, the CITY or the MDOT will promptly submit to the 
CONSULTANT a Notice of Audit Results and a copy of the audit report, which may 
supplement or modify any tentative findings verbally communicated to the 
CONSULTANT at the completion of an audit. 

 
Within sixty (60) days after the date of the Notice of Audit Results, the CONSULTANT 
will (a) respond in writing to the CITY and the responsible Bureau of the MDOT 
indicating whether or not it concurs with the audit report, (b) clearly explain the nature 
and basis for any disagreement as to a disallowed item of expense, and (c) submit to the 
CITY and the MDOT a written explanation as to any questioned or no opinion expressed 
item of expense, hereinafter referred to as the “RESPONSE.”  The RESPONSE will be 
clearly stated and will provide any supporting documentation necessary to resolve any 
disagreement or questioned or no opinion expressed item of expense.  Where the 
documentation is voluminous, the CONSULTANT may supply appropriate excerpts and 
make alternate arrangements to conveniently and reasonably make that documentation 
available for review by the CITY and the MDOT.  The RESPONSE will refer to and 
apply the language of the Contract.  The CONSULTANT agrees that failure to submit a 
RESPONSE within the sixty (60) day period constitutes agreement with any 
disallowance of an item of expense and authorizes the CITY to finally disallow any items 
of questioned or no opinion expressed cost. 

 
The CITY or the MDOT will make its decision with regard to any Notice of Audit 
Results and RESPONSE within one hundred twenty (120) days after the date of the 
Notice of Audit Results.  If the CITY or the MDOT determines that an overpayment has 
been made to the CONSULTANT, the CONSULTANT will repay that amount to the 
CITY or reach agreement with the CITY on a repayment schedule within thirty (30) days 
after the date of an invoice from the CITY.  If the CONSULTANT fails to repay the 
overpayment or reach agreement with the CITY on a repayment schedule within the 
thirty (30) day period, the CONSULTANT agrees that the CITY will deduct all or a 
portion of the overpayment from any funds then or thereafter payable by the CITY to the 
CONSULTANT under this Contract or any other agreement or payable to the 
CONSULTANT under the terms of 1951 PA 51, as applicable.  Interest will be assessed 
on any partial payments or repayment schedules based on the unpaid balance at the end 
of each month until the balance is paid in full.  The assessment of interest will begin 
thirty (30) days from the date of the invoice.  The rate of interest will be based on the 
Michigan Department of Treasury common cash funds interest earnings.  The rate of 
interest will be reviewed annually by the CITY and adjusted as necessary based on the 
Michigan Department of Treasury common cash funds interest earnings.  The 
CONSULTANT expressly consents to this withholding or offsetting of funds under those 
circumstances, reserving the right to file a lawsuit in a court in the County of Oakland, 
State of Michigan, unless original jurisdiction can be had in the Michigan Court of 
Appeals or the Michigan Supreme Court to contest the CITY’s decision only as to any 



  7  

item of expense the disallowance of which was disputed by the CONSULTANT in a 
timely filed RESPONSE.  

 
18. The CITY may terminate this Contract for convenience or cause, as set forth in Exhibit 1, 

before the SERVICES are completed.   
 

In the event that termination by the CITY is necessitated by any wrongful breach, 
failure, default, or omission by the CONSULTANT, the CITY will be entitled to 
pursue whatever remedy is available to it, including, but not limited to, 
withholding funds or off-setting against funds owed to the CONSULTANT under 
this Contract, as well as any other existing or future contracts between the 
CONSULTANT and the CITY, for any and all damages and costs incurred or 
sustained by the CITY as a result of its termination of this Contract due to the 
wrongful breach, failure, default, or omission by the CONSULTANT.  In the 
event of termination of this Contract, the CITY may procure the professional 
SERVICES from other sources and hold the CONSULTANT responsible for any 
damages or excess costs occasioned thereby. 

 
19. All documents prepared by the CONSULTANT are the property of the CITY and cannot 

be furnished to any party without the permission of the CITY, except to the involved 
governmental agencies and commissions as part of the progress reporting process. 

 
20. No portion of the SERVICES, as herein defined, will be sublet except with the prior 

written consent of the CITY. Consent to sublet any portion of the SERVICES will not be 
construed to relieve the CONSULTANT of any responsibility or obligation under or for 
the fulfillment of this Contract.  All contracts, including amendments, with sub 
consultants, will contain all applicable provisions of this Contract.  Any such approvals 
will not be construed as a warranty of the subcontractor’s qualifications, professional 
standing, ability to perform the work being subcontracted, or financial integrity. 

 
21. No portion of the SERVICES, as herein defined, will be assigned. 
  
22. The CONSULTANT agrees to pay each subcontractor for the satisfactory completion of 

work associated with the subcontract no later than ten (10) calendar days from the receipt 
of each payment the CONSULTANT receives from the CITY. This requirement is also 
applicable to all sub-tier subcontractors and will be made a part of all subcontract 
agreements. 

 
This prompt payment provision is a requirement of 49 CFR, Part 26, as amended, and 
does not confer third-party beneficiary right or other direct right to a subcontractor 
against the CITY.  This provision applies to both Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
(DBE) and non-DBE subcontractors. 
 



  8  

The CONSULTANT further agrees that it will comply with 49 CFR, Part 26, as 
amended, and will report any and all DBE subcontractor payments to the CITY semi-
annually in a format acceptable to the CITY. 
 

23. All questions that may arise as to the quality and acceptability of work, the manner of 
performance and rate of progress of the work, the interpretation of designs and 
specifications, and the satisfactory and acceptable fulfillment of the terms of this Contract 
will be decided by the CITY. 

 
24. With regard to non-discrimination and DBE requirements:  
 

a. In connection with the performance of SERVICES under this Contract, the 
CONSULTANT agrees to comply with the State of Michigan provisions for 
“Prohibition of Discrimination in State Contracts,” as set forth in Exhibit 1.  This 
provision will be included in all subcontracts relating to this Contract. 

 
b. During the performance of this Contract, the CONSULTANT, for itself, its 

assignees, and its successors in interest agrees to comply with the Civil Rights Act 
of 1964, being P.L. 88-352, 78 Stat. 241, as amended, being Title 42 USC 
Sections 1971, 1975a-1975d, and 2000a-2000h-6, and the Regulations of the 
Department of Transportation (49 CFR Part 21) issued pursuant to said Act, 
including those requirements set forth in Exhibit 1. This provision will be 
included in all subcontracts relating to this Contract. 

 
c. The CONSULTANT will carry out the applicable requirements of the MDOT’s 

DBE program and 49 CFR Part 26, including, but not limited to, those 
requirements set forth in Exhibit 1. 

 
25. Payment under this Contract may be processed by automated clearing house (ACH) 

transfer. The CONSULTANT agrees to register to receive and to receive payment by 
ACH transfer.  

 
26. The CONSULTANT warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or 

person other than bona fide employees working solely for the CONSULTANT to solicit 
or secure this Contract and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person, 
other than bona fide employees working solely for the CONSULTANT, any fee, 
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or any other consideration contingent upon 
or resulting from the award or making of this Contract.  For breach or violation of this 
warranty, the CITY will have the right to annul this Contract without liability or, at its 
discretion, to deduct from the contract price or consideration or otherwise recover the full 
amount of such fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee. 

 
27. The CONSULTANT specifically agrees that in the performance of the SERVICES herein 

enumerated, by itself, or by an approved subcontractor, or by anyone acting on its behalf, 
it will comply with any and all state, federal, and local statutes, ordinances, and 



  9  

regulations and will obtain all permits that are applicable to the entry into and the 
performance of this Contract. 

 
28. It is agreed that the CONSULTANT will not copyright any papers, reports, forms, or 

other materials that are part of its work under this Contract without the prior written 
approval of the CITY. 

 
29. In addition to the protection afforded by any policy of insurance, the CONSULTANT 

agrees to indemnify and save harmless the State of Michigan, the Michigan State 
Transportation Commission, the CITY, the MDOT, the FRA, and all officers, agents, and 
employees thereof: 

 
a. From any and all claims by persons, firms, or corporations for labor, services, 

materials, or supplies provided to the CONSULTANT in connection with the 
CONSULTANT’s performance of the SERVICES; and 

 
b. From any and all claims for injuries to or death of any and all persons, for loss of 

or damage to property, for environmental damage, degradation, and response and 
cleanup costs, and for attorney fees and related costs arising out of, under, or by 
reason of the CONSULTANT’s performance of the SERVICES under this 
Contract, except claims resulting from the sole negligence or willful acts or 
omissions of said indemnitee, its agents, or its employees. 

 
The CITY will not be subject to any obligations or liabilities by contractors of the 
CONSULTANT or their subcontractors or any other person not a party to the Contract 
without its specific consent and notwithstanding its concurrence with or approval of the 
award of any contract or subcontract or the solicitation thereof. 

 
It is expressly understood and agreed that the CONSULTANT will take no action or 
conduct that arises either directly or indirectly out of its obligations, responsibilities, and 
duties under this Contract that results in claims being asserted against or judgments being 
imposed against the State of Michigan, the CITY, the MDOT, the Michigan State 
Transportation Commission, and/or the FRA, as applicable. 

 
In the event that the same occurs, it will be considered as a breach of this Contract, 
thereby giving the State of Michigan, the CITY, the MDOT, the Michigan State 
Transportation Commission, and/or the FRA, as applicable, a right to seek and obtain any 
necessary relief or remedy, including, but not limited to, a judgment for money damages. 

 
30. In accordance with 1980 PA 278, MCL 423.321 et seq.; MSA 17.458(22) et seq., the 

CONSULTANT, in the performance of this Contract, will not enter into a contract with a 
subcontractor, manufacturer, or supplier listed in the register maintained by the United 
States Department of Labor of employers who have been found in contempt of court by a 
federal court of appeals on not less than three (3) occasions involving different violations 
during the preceding seven (7) years for failure to correct an unfair labor practice, as 



  10  

prohibited by Section 8 of Chapter 372 of the National Labor Relations Act, 29 USC 158.  
The CITY may void this Contract if the name of the CONSULTANT or the name of a 
subcontractor, manufacturer, or supplier utilized by the CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Contract subsequently appears in the register during the performance 
of this Contract. 

 
31. For all contracts in excess of One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00), the 

CONSULTANT certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that: 
 

a. No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of 
the CONSULTANT to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an 
officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee 
of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with the 
awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of 
any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, or the extension, 
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, 
loan, or cooperative agreement. 

 
b. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid 

to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of 
any agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a member of Congress in connection with this Contract, the 
CONSULTANT will complete and submit Standard Form LLL, “Disclosure Form 
to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions. 

 
c. The CONSULTANT will require that the language of this certification be 

included in the award documents for all third-party contracts (including 
subcontracts, sub grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative 
agreements) and that all sub recipients will certify and disclose accordingly. 

 
This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 
when this transaction was made or entered into.  Submission of this certification is a 
prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction by Section 1352, Title 31, USC.  
Any person who fails to file the required certification will be subject to a civil penalty of 
not less than Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) and not more than One Hundred 
Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00) for each such failure. 

 
32. For contracts in excess of One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00): 
 

a. The CONSULTANT stipulates that any facility to be utilized in the performance 
of this Contract, unless such contract is exempt under the Clean Air Act, as 
amended (42 USC 7401 et seq., as amended, including Pub. L. 101-549), and/or 
under the Clean Water Act, as amended (33 USC 1251 et seq., as amended, 
including Pub. L. 100-4), and/or under Executive Order 11738 and regulations in 
implementation  thereof (40 CFR Part 15), is not listed on the date of contract 



  11  

award on the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) List of Violating 
Facilities pursuant to 40 CFR 15.20. 

 
b. The CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all the requirements of the Clean Air 

Act and the Clean Water Act and all regulations and guidelines listed thereunder 
related to the CONSULTANT and services under this Contract. 

 
c. The CONSULTANT will promptly notify the CITY and the U.S. EPA, Assistant 

Administrator for Enforcement, of the receipt of any communication from the 
Director, the Office of Federal Activities, or the EPA indicating that a facility to 
be utilized for this Contract is under consideration to be listed on the EPA List of 
Violating Facilities. 

 
d. The CONSULTANT agrees to include or cause to be included the requirements of 

the preceding three paragraphs (a), (b), and (c) in every nonexempt subcontract. 
 
33. The CONSULTANT agrees that no otherwise qualified individual with disabilities in the 

United States, as defined in Section 1630.2 of the Americans with Disabilities Act, Title 
42 USC 12101, will, solely by reason of his/her disability, be excluded from participation 
in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or 
activity receiving benefits under this Contract. 

 
34. Any change in the scope or character of the SERVICES or in the cost, compensation, or 

term of this Contract will be by award of a prior written amendment to this Contract by 
the parties. 

 
35. The CONSULTANT agrees that it will not volunteer, offer, or sell its services to any 

litigant against the CITY with respect to any SERVICES it has agreed to perform for the 
CITY under this Contract, provided that this provision will not apply either when the 
CONSULTANT is issued a valid subpoena to testify in a judicial or administrative 
proceeding or when the enforcement of this provision would cause the CONSULTANT 
to be in violation of any Michigan or federal law. 

 
36. Any approvals, acceptances, reviews, and inspections of any nature by the CITY will not 

be construed as a warranty or assumption of liability on the part of the CITY.  It is 
expressly understood and agreed that any such approvals, acceptances, reviews, and 
inspections are for the sole and exclusive purposes of the CITY, which is acting in a 
governmental capacity under this Contract, and that such approvals, acceptances, 
reviews, and inspections are a governmental function incidental to the SERVICES under 
this Contract. 

 
Any such approvals, acceptances, reviews, and inspections by the CITY will not relieve 
the CONSULTANT of its obligations hereunder, nor are such approvals, acceptances, 
reviews, and inspections by the CITY to be construed as a warranty as to the propriety of 



  12  

the CONSULTANT’s performance but are undertaken for the sole use and information of 
the CITY. 

 
37. With regard to claims based on goods or services that were used to meet the 

CONSULTANT’s obligation to the CITY under this Contract, the CONSULTANT 
hereby irrevocably assigns its right to pursue any claims for relief or causes of action for 
damages sustained by the State of Michigan, the MDOT, or the CITY due to any 
violation of 15 USC, Sections 1 - 15, and/or 1984 PA 274, MCL 445.771 - .788, 
excluding Section 4a, to the State of Michigan, the MDOT, or the CITY. 

 
The CONSULTANT shall require any subcontractors to irrevocably assign their rights to 
pursue any claims for relief or causes of action for damages sustained by the State of 
Michigan, the MDOT, or the CITY with regard to claims based on goods or services that 
were used to meet the CONSULTANT’s obligation to the CITY under this Contract due 
to any violation of 15 USC, Sections 1 - 15, and/or 1984 PA 274, MCL 445.771 - .788, 
excluding Section 4a, to the State of Michigan, the MDOT, or the CITY as a third-party 
beneficiary. 

 
The CONSULTANT shall notify the CITY if it becomes aware that an antitrust violation 
with regard to claims based on goods or services that were used to meet the 
CONSULTANT’s obligation to the CITY under this Contract may have occurred or is 
threatened to occur.  The CONSULTANT shall also notify the CITY if it becomes aware 
of any person’s intent to commence, or of commencement of, an antitrust action with 
regard to claims based on goods or services that were used to meet the CONSULTANT’s 
obligation to the CITY under this Contract. 

 
38. The CONSULTANT and its Affiliates agree not to have any public or private interest, 

and shall not acquire directly or indirectly any such interest in connection with the 
project, that would conflict or appear to conflict in any manner with the performance of 
the SERVICES under this Contract.  “Affiliate” means a corporate entity linked to the 
CONSULTANT through common ownership.  The CONSULTANT and its Affiliates 
agree not to provide any services to a construction contractor or any entity that may have 
an adversarial interest in a project for which it has provided services to the CITY.  The 
CONSULTANT and its Affiliates agree to disclose to the CITY all other interests that the 
prime or sub consultants have or contemplate having during each phase of the project.  
The phases of the project include, but are not limited to, planning, scoping, early 
preliminary engineering, design, and construction.  In all situations, the CITY will decide 
if a conflict of interest exists.  If the CITY concludes that a conflict of interest exists, it 
will inform the CONSULTANT and its Affiliates.  If the CONSULTANT and its 
Affiliates choose to retain the interest constituting the conflict, the CITY may terminate 
the Contract for cause in accordance with the provisions stated in this Contract. 

 
39. Any public relations communications and/or products pertaining to this Contract or the 

SERVICES hereunder that are intended for an external audience will not be made 
without prior written approval from the CITY, and then only in accordance with explicit 



  13  

instructions from the CITY.  Examples of public relations communications and/or 
products may include the following: 

 
a. Use of the CITY logo; 
 
b. Brochures, flyers, invitations, programs, or any other printed materials intended 

for an external audience; 
 
c. Postings on social media sites or Web sites; 
 
d. New or updated video, digital versatile disk (DVD), or video sharing productions; 
 
e. Exhibits or presentations. 
 
A violation of this provision constitutes a breach of this Contract and the prequalification 
rules. 

 
40. The CONSULTANT will comply with any and all provisions of the Grant/Cooperative 

Agreement between the FRA and the MDOT, attached hereto and made a part hereof as 
part of Exhibit 1, that are necessary to carry out the purposes of the Grant/Cooperative 
Agreement. There shall be a provision for a further flow down of this requirement in all 
subcontracts. 

 
41. The CONSULTANT will comply with any and all provisions of the Rail Passenger 

Station Capital Contract between the CITY and the MDOT, attached hereto and made a 
part hereof as part of Exhibit 1, that the Capital Contract requires City to include in its 
contracts, subcontracts, and/or purchase orders related to the design and construction of 
the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility. There shall be a provision for a further flow down 
of this requirement in all subcontracts.  

 
42. This Contract will be in effect from February 20, 2012 to February 20, 2014.  Costs 

incurred outside of the term of this Contract will not be eligible for reimbursement. 
 
43. CONSULTANT agrees to all applicable terms and conditions set forth in Exhibit 1, even 

if those terms and conditions are not specifically set forth in the body of this Contract. 
However, in case of any conflicting provisions between the body of this Contract and 
Exhibit 1, the body of this Contract will govern.  

 
44. This contract shall henceforth be referred to as the “Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility 

Construction Manager at Risk Contract.” 
 
45. This Contract will become binding on the parties and of full force and effect upon signing 

in ink by the duly authorized representatives of the CONSULTANT and the CITY in the 
appropriate space below. The CONSULTANT has been cautioned not to commence any 
billable work or to provide any material or service under this contract until the 



  14  

CONSULTANT receives a purchase order and/or a written notice to proceed from the 
CITY. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Contract to be awarded. 
 
 
TOOLES CONTRACTING GROUP LLC/ CLARK CONSTRUCTION COMPANY 
 
         
Company Name    
    
         
Address 
 
         
City   State  Zip    
 
         
Signature of Person Authorized to Sign      
 
         
Printed Name      
 
         
Title      
 
         
Date     
 
 
 
CITY OF TROY 
      
 
                        
City Clerk – Aileen Bittner  Date 
 
                                                           ___ __     
Mayor – Janice L. Daniels   Date    
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY: 
 
                                                   __        
City Attorney – Lori Bluhm  Date 
 
 
RESOLUTION #  2012-    
 
 
G:\Transit Center\RFP A_E & CM at Risk\REVISED RFP for Troy\w_o_Birmingham\CMR\3rd Party Agreement\2012-0230-S2 Master Cotract for-Troy-Tooles Clark_2_20_12.docm 





500 Griswold Street, Suite 1620 • Detroit, Michigan 48226

CITY OF TROY

FEE PROPOSAL RE-SUBMITTAL
CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK FOR

MULTI-MODAL TRANSIT FACILITY

RFP ENG COT 10-45

February 13, 2012

Submitted By:



CITY OF TROY 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL – ENG COT 10-45  Page 48 of 72 
 

  

FEE PROPOSAL FORM 
FAILURE TO COMPLETE THIS FORM SHALL RESULT IN YOUR PROPOSAL BEING 
DEEMED NONRESPONSIVE AND REJECTED WITHOUT ANY FURTHER EVALUATION. 

 

THIS FEE PROPOSAL FORM AND ADDITIONAL PRICE-RELATED INFORMATION MUST BE 
SUBMITTED IN A SEPARATE, SEALED ENVELOPE WITH YOUR RFP SUBMISSION AND 
LABELED ACCORDINGLY. 

The Fee Proposal shall be divided in two phases:   
PRE-CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES: Provide complete pre-construction services on a 
multiple of direct hourly payroll basis with a not-to exceed cost. Include the billing rates of all 
personnel who will work in this phase, along with estimated hours of each.  Also include an 
estimate of reimbursable expenses with a breakdown of each.  
Provide listing of all services during this phase and a corresponding cost to each; list all 
personnel with titles and their hourly rate plus estimated hours that are included.  During this 
phase the CMR will ensure plans, drawings, specs and bid documents are ready for bid; review 
bid submittals and make recommendations and secure under contract subcontractors to 
perform all required work.  It is intended the CMR holds the contracts of all subcontractors. 
 
NOT TO EXCEED PRICE OF $__________________ 
 
CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES:   
1. Cost of General Conditions:  Identify by detailed line item your general conditions estimate 
based on your review of project scope and your proposed project schedule.  Detail personnel 
costs, man hours, hourly rates, allowances for review and inspection fees and permits, cleanup, 
reimburseable expenses and allowances, site construction office and all associated costs, cost 
of bonds and insurance, etc. should all be included and clearly identified.  Information submitted 
will be used as a basis of establishing a Guaranteed Maximum Price for General Conditions.  
 
 NOT TO EXCEED PRICE OF $_______________________ 
 
2.  Provide a lump sum fee amount for Construction Manager’s overhead and profit. 
NOT TO EXCEED PRICE OF $________________________ 
 
3. Fee for CMR services as a percentage of construction costs for  
base contract: _______ % 
 
4. Fee for project additions as a percentage of the change amount: ________ % 
 
5.  Fee (or credit) for project deletions as a percentage of the change  
Amount: ________ % 

All submitted pricing must be in the format acceptable to and required by MDOT 
(reference Attachment B and Exhibits). 
PRICING MUST
 

 BE SUBMITTED IN A SEPARATELY SEALED ENVELOPE 

Currency: Contract prices are quoted in U.S. funds 
 

jgomez
Typewritten Text
34,563

jgomez
Typewritten Text
439,168

jgomez
Typewritten Text

jgomez
Typewritten Text
175,000

jgomez
Typewritten Text
3.5

jgomez
Typewritten Text
3.5

jgomez
Typewritten Text
0

jgomez
Typewritten Text

jgomez
Typewritten Text

jgomez
Typewritten Text

jgomez
Typewritten Text

jgomez
Text Box
TOTAL PRICE - PRE-CONSTRUCTION & CONSTRUCTION SERVICES NTE $648,731



Clark Construction Company
-Confidential-
2/13/12

Feb March Apr May Jun July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March Apr May Jun July
Staffing Analysis 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013

Pre- Const
const Phase Total Billable Pre- Const Close Out Total Hourly Overhead Fixed Fee Total Labor

Hours Based on 173 Hr Month 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 Hours Hours Hours Rate const Rate 35% Rate Direct Labor Overhead On Labor Cost

Project Director % 0% 10% 10% 10% 10% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Allen Blower Hrs 0 17 17 17 17 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 0 0 0 0 0 78 61 139 114$           $8,938 $6,907 $0 $15,845 $65.00 $22.75 $87.75 9,029 3,160 3,657 15,845

Project Manager % 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 50% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Chad Thelen Hrs 0 0 0 0 0 87 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 87 2076 2163 77$            $6,680 $160,309 $0 $166,988 $44.00 $15.40 $59.40 95,150 33,303 38,536 166,988

Planning Staff/Estimating % 0% 50% 0% 0% 50% 30% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Gary Taminini Hrs 0 87 0 0 87 52 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 225 0 225 84$            $18,946 $0 $0 $18,946 $48.00 $16.80 $64.80 10,795 3,778 4,372 18,946

Project Coordinators % 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10% 10% 10% 10% 5% 5% 5% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10%

TBD Hrs 0 0 0 0 0 0 17 17 17 17 9 9 9 17 17 17 17 17 0 182 182 46$            $0 $8,289 $0 $8,289 $26.00 $9.10 $35.10 4,723 1,653 1,913 8,289

Project Superintendent % 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 50% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 50%

Mike Hostein Hrs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 87 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 173 87 0 1730 1730 67$            $0 $115,374 $0 $115,374 $38.00 $13.30 $51.30 65,740 23,009 26,625 115,374

390 4048 4438 $34,563 $290,878 $0 $325,441 $185,437 $64,903 $75,102 $325,441

City of Troy

Intermodal Improvements

Tooles/Clark Staffing Plan

Pre-Con Phase Construction Phase
Derivation of Cost Breakdown



Troy Intermodal
General Conditions Estimate

General Conditions  

1000 REPRODUCTION AND PRINTING 1                         LS $2,000 $2,000
1010 TEMPORARY TOILETS 12                       MO $300 $3,600
80254 TEMPORARY WATER/SEWER SERVICE(TRAILER) 12                       MO $300 $3,600
1020 WATER COOLER 12                       MO $70 $840
1030 OFFICE TRAILER RENTAL 12                       MO $350 $4,200
1030 OFFICE TRAILER SET UP/TEAR DOWN 1                         EA $2,000 $2,000
1040 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 1                         ALW $1,000 $1,000
1050 OFFICE SUPPLIES 12                       MO $100 $1,200
1060 COPY MACHINE/FAX/SCANNER 12                       MO $400 $4,800
1070 COMPUTER/TECHNOLOGY 16                       MOS $1,500 $24,000
1080 SAFETY EQUIPMENT 12                       MO $50 $600
1090 INSURANCE 1                         ls $27,500 $27,500
1100 POWER EXPENSE(trailer hook up and tear down) By Subs alw $0 $0
1100 POWER EXPENSE(trailer) 12                       MO $400 $4,800
1110 TELEPHONE EXPENSE(CELL & LANDLINE) 12                       MO $750 $9,000
1120 POSTAGE 12                       MO $50 $600
11130 JANITORIAL(TRAILER) 12                       MO $100 $1,200
80202 FIRST AID SUPPLIES 12                       MO $50 $600

TOTAL GENERAL CONDITIONS $91,540

SUBCONTRACT ITEMS  

924 Contingency By Owner
925 Subcontract Sub Cost
927 Subcontract Material Supplier Sub Cost
927 SURVEYING/LAYOUT Sub Cost
928 QUALITY CONTROL AND TESTING Sub Cost
929 CLEAN UP COSTS Sub cost  
930 FENCING & STAGING Sub Cost
931 TEMPORARY PROTECTION/HEAT Sub cost
932 TEMPORARY WALKS & DRIVES Sub cost  

SUBCONTRACTED ITEMS $0

ADDITIONAL EXPENSES  

3000 DUMPSTERS 12                       MO $250 $3,000
3010 Temporary Signs 1                         EA $1,500 $1,500
3020 SNOW REMOVAL By Subs -                $0 $0
3030 Bonds 1                         LS $45,000
3050 PROJECT PHOTOS 1                         alw $750 $750
3060 NATURAL GAS/PROPANE Sub cost
3070 BUILDING ELECTRICAL 8                         mths $500 $4,000
3080 MISC. TOOLS & EQUIPMENT 1                         LS $1,000 $1,000
3090 PERMITS & FEES By Owner
3100 Misc. Expense 1                         LS $1,000 $1,000
3130 LEGAL 1                         LS $500 $500

ADDITIONAL EXPENSES  $56,750

TOTAL GENERAL CONDITIONS $148,290













bittnera
Text Box
I-09













CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES-Final February 6, 2012 
 

- 1 - 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

A Special Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, February 6, 2012, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road.  Mayor Daniels called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

B. ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Janice Daniels 
Jim Campbell 
Wade Fleming 
Dave Henderson 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 
Doug Tietz 

C. DISCUSSION ITEM:  
C-1 Closed Session 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-02-022 
Moved by Slater 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL15.268(h) (MCL15.243(g)). 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The Meeting RECESSED at 6:03 PM. 
 
The Meeting RECONVENED at 6:04 PM. 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT: No Public Comment Received 

E. ADJOURNMENT: 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 6:58 PM. 
 
 

Mayor Janice Daniels 
 
 
 
Lori Grigg Bluhm 
City Attorney 

 

bittnera
Text Box
J-02a



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft February 6, 2012 
 

- 1 - 

Pastor Dan Lewis from Troy Christian Chapel performed the Invocation.  The Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, February 6, 2012, at city Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Rd.  Mayor Daniels called the meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 

B. ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Janice Daniels 
Jim Campbell 
Wade Fleming 
Dave Henderson 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 
Doug Tietz 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 No Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations  
 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items  
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 No Public Hearings 
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  
Bloomingdale, Bruce Commented on Mayor Daniels’ position paper and the City Manager’s 

response. 
Krent, Tom Spoke about the Planning Commission. 
Stine, Jeanne Spoke about the Planning Commission nominations. 
Binkowski, Matt Spoke about the Planning Commission nominations. 
Bhatt, Kumar Spoke about the Planning Commission nominations. 
Abrahim, Edna Spoke about the Planning Commission nominations. 
Wilkinson, Sook Spoke about the Planning Commission nominations on behalf of the 

Commission on Asian Pacific American Affairs. 
Haque, Mumtaz Spoke on behalf of the Commission on Asian Pacific American Affairs 

and International Institute of Metro Detroit and spoke about Planning 
Commission nominations. 

Koerber, Ralph Spoke about elected officials and the future of the City. 
Peters, Richard Spoke about various topics. 
Reinhardt, Marvin Spoke about various topics. 
Lukas, Paul Spoke about the Transit Center. 
Krichbaum, Dan Spoke on behalf of MI Dept. of Civil Rights. 
Wullaert, Michael Spoke in opposition of the Transit Center; supports the Library, 

Nature Center, and Historical Museum. 

http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
bittnera
Text Box
J-02b



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft February 6, 2012 
 

- 2 - 

Hodges, Michele Spoke about diversity in Troy. 
Wells, John Spoke about diversity and promoting positivity in Troy. 
Savage, James Spoke about the Transit Center. 
Hilzinger, Jen Spoke against racism. 
Schepke, Gordon Spoke about his comments at a previous meeting. 
Butterbaugh, Ron Spoke about recording of Mayor Daniels public office hours meeting 

of January 9, 2012.  
Watts, Ray Spoke about Planning Commission nominations and the Troy Police 

Department. 
Cherasaro, Nicholas Spoke about recording of Mayor Daniels public office hours meeting 

of January 9, 2012.  
Johansson, Steve Spoke about Planning Commission nominations. 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 8:55 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:04 PM. 
 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
H-1  Boards and Committees Nominations: Mayoral Nominations – Planning 

Commission 
 
Moved by Daniels 
Seconded by Henderson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action:  
 

Planning Commission 
Appointed by Mayor 
9 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

  
Term Expires:  12/31/2014 Gordon Schepke 
 Term currently held by: Lon Ullmann 
  
Term Expires:  12/31/2014 Edward Kempen 
 Term currently held by: Thomas Strat 
   
Term Expires:  12/31/2014 Steve Lokken 
 Term currently held by: Robert Schultz 

 
Vote on Resolution to AMEND to SEPARATE H-1 Boards and Committees Nominations: 
Mayoral Nominations – Planning Commission  

http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�


CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft February 6, 2012 
 

- 3 - 

 
Resolution #2012-02-023 
Moved by Daniels 
Seconded by Henderson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action:  
 

Planning Commission 
Appointed by Mayor 
9 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

  
Term Expires:  12/31/2014 Gordon Schepke 
 Term currently held by: Lon Ullmann 

 
Yes: Daniels, Fleming, Henderson, Tietz 
No: Campbell, McGinnis, Slater 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Amended and Separated Nomination to the Planning Commission: 
 
Resolution #2012-02-024 
Moved by Daniels 
Seconded by Henderson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action:  
 

Planning Commission 
Appointed by Mayor 
9 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

  
Term Expires:  12/31/2014 Ed Kempen 
 Term currently held by: Thomas Strat 

 
Yes: Tietz, Daniels 
No: Campbell, Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis, Slater 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Vote on Resolution to SEVER the Vote for H-1 Boards and Committees Nominations: 
Mayoral Nominations – Planning Commission 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft February 6, 2012 
 

- 4 - 

 
Resolution #2012-02-025 
Moved by Daniels 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SEVER the Vote for H-1 Boards and Committees 
Nominations: Mayoral Nominations – Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: Daniels 
No: Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis, Slater, Tietz, Campbell 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Vote on Remaining Nominations to the Planning Commission: 
 
Resolution #2012-02-026 
Moved by Daniels 
Seconded by Fleming 
 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action:  
 

Planning Commission 
Appointed by Mayor 
9 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Nominations to the Planning Commission: 
  
Term Expires:  12/31/2014 Thomas Strat 
 Term currently held by: Thomas Strat 
   
Term Expires:  12/31/2014 Robert Schultz 
 Term currently held by: Robert Schultz 

 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 

Council Appointments – Election Commission; Historic District Study Committee; 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

 
b) City Council Appointments 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft February 6, 2012 
 

- 5 - 

 
Resolution #2012-02-027 
Moved by McGinnis 
Seconded by Campbell 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Historic District Study Committee 
Appointed by Council 
3 Regular Members  

Ad Hoc 
 

Term Expires:  Ad Hoc Loraine Campbell 
  
Term Expires:  Ad Hoc Barbara Chambers 
  
Term Expires:  Ad Hoc Bruce Bloomingdale 

 
Election Commission 
Appointed by Council 

2 Regular Members and 1 Charter Member 
1-Year Term 

 
Term Expires:  01/31/2013 David C. Anderson (Republican) 
 Term currently held by: David C. Anderson 
  
Term Expires:  01/31/2013 Timothy Dewan (Democrat) 
 Term currently held by: Timothy Dewan 

 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Term Expires: 01/31/2015 Bruce Bloomingdale (Alternate) 
 Term currently held by:  
  
Term Expires: 01/31/2015 Orestis R. Kaltsounis (Alternate) 
 Term currently held by:  

 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft February 6, 2012 
 

- 6 - 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations - Board of Review; 
Downtown Development Authority; b) City Council Nominations: Building Code 
Board of Appeals; Liquor Advisory Committee 

 
a) Mayoral Nominations 

 
Resolution #2012-02-028 
Moved by Daniels 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action:  
 

Board of Review 
Appointed by Mayor 
3 Regular Members 

3-Year Term 
 

Term Expires: 01/31/2015 Frank Strahl 
 Term currently held by: Frank Strahl 

 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mayoral Nominations to the Downtown Development Authority 
 
Resolution #2012-02-029 
Moved by Daniels 
Seconded by Tietz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action:  
 

Downtown Development Authority 
Appointed by Mayor 
13 Regular Members 

4 Year Term 
 

  
Term Expires: 09/30/2015 Gregory Carnago (In District) 
 Term currently held by: Stuart Frankel 
  
Term Expires: 09/30/2015 Earle Van Dyke (In District 
 Term currently held by: David R. Hay 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft February 6, 2012 
 

- 7 - 

 
Yes: Daniels 
No: Tietz, Campbell, Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis, Slater 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 

b) City Council Nominations 
 
Resolution #2012-02-030 
Moved by McGinnis 
Seconded by Slater 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 

Building Code Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council 
5 Regular Members 

5 Year Term 
 

  
Term Expires: 01/01/2017 Gary Abitheira 
 Term currently held by: vacant 

 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Nominations to the Liquor Advisory Committee : 
 
Resolution #2012-02-031 
Moved by McGinnis 
Seconded by Fleming 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 

Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

  
Term Expires:  01/31/2014 Max Ehlert 
 Term currently held by: Max Ehlert 
  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft February 6, 2012 
 

- 8 - 

Term Expires:  01/31/2014 David Ogg 
 Term currently held by: David Ogg 
  
Term Expires:  01/31/2014 Timothy P. Payne 
 Term currently held by: Timothy P. Payne 
 

Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-3 Closed Session – None Requested 
 
I-4 Preliminary Site Plan Review (File Number SP 971) – Proposed Warrior Park 

Baseball Field, South Side of Equity Between 1735 and 1515 Equity, Section 32, 
Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) District – Controlled by 
Consent Judgment  

 
Resolution #2012-02-032 
Moved by McGinnis 
Seconded by Slater 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES the Preliminary Site Plan for the proposed 
Warrior Park Baseball Field, including other site improvements, located on the south side of 
Equity, between 1735 and 1515 Equity, Section 32, as indicated on a Site Plan prepared by 
Grissim Metz Andriese Associates.  This revised site plan waives the requirement for parking 
lot islands.  This site plan revises and updates the exhibits to the Consent Judgment in the 
Meritor Automotive, Inc and The Nelson Companies, Inc v City of Troy lawsuit, Case Number 
94-948784 CZ, and reflects the parties’ agreement as to the proposed development on the 
property. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council also APPROVES the entry of the 
Stipulation and Fifth Order Amending Consent Judgment, to facilitate the development as 
proposed on the Preliminary Site Plan, and AUTHORIZES the City Attorney to EXECUTE the 
document on behalf of the City after all necessary formatting changes are made and after all 
other necessary parties have executed it.  A copy of the executed Stipulation and Fifth Order 
Amending Consent Judgment shall be RECORDED with the Oakland County Register of 
Deeds and also ATTACHED to the Minutes of this meeting.   
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-5 Sole Source – Upgrade BS&A Software 
 
Resolution #2012-02-033 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft February 6, 2012 
 

- 9 - 

Moved by Slater 
Seconded by Campbell 
 
WHEREAS, The City has utilized BS&A software since 1999 and has been very satisfied with 
the quality of the software and support; and 
 
WHEREAS, BS&A is phasing out the current Pervasive product and have introduced a 
Microsoft based product that meets the City’s current database standard which improves data 
access and the ability to interface, as well as introduced additional features; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES and 
AUTHORIZES the purchase of software and services from the sole source provider of 
proprietary software, BS&A Software of Bath, Michigan as detailed in Attachment A, Costs, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, for an estimated 
total cost of $87,380.00, with yearly maintenance fees of $15,960.00 that may change annually 
based on the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for the then current year when compared with the 
previous year.  
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-6 Application Regarding Class C Quota License and SDM Liquor License for 2Booli, 

Inc. 
 
Resolution #2012-02-034 
Moved by Fleming 
Seconded by Slater 
 
a) New Class C Quota License, and new SDM License, Sunday Sales Permits, Food 

Permit, and Catering Permit, and Outdoor Service Permit 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL, above all others, a 
liquor license request as indicated below, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk 
to EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 

Liquor License Applicant : 2Booli, Inc. 

Type of License Requested : 

New Class C Quota License and new SDM license with new 
Sunday Sales Permit(PM), new Sunday Sales Permit(AM), 
new Official Permit(Food), new Catering Permit, and new 
Outdoor Service Permit. 

Located at : Southwest Corner of Big Beaver and Rochester Road,  Space 
A-120, Troy, MI 48083 

MLCC Request # : 627836 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft February 6, 2012 
 

- 10 - 

b) Agreement 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter into agreements with applicants 
for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES, above all 
others, an agreement with the liquor license applicant named in the approved resolution above, 
and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE the document, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2012-02-035 
Moved by McGinnis 
Seconded by Campbell 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2012-02-035-J-2 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 

a) Regular City Council Meeting of January 23, 2012  
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution #1: Award to Low Bidder – Parking Lot 
Maintenance Program  

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft February 6, 2012 
 

- 11 - 

Resolution #2012-02-035-J-04a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to complete the Parking Lot 
Maintenance Program for FY 2011/12 to the low total bidder, Rotondo Construction 
Corporation of Farmington Hills, MI, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened 
January 26, 2012, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, 
for an estimated total cost of $97,046.00.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT UPON contractor submission 
of properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and 
all other specified requirements.  

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution #1: Award to Low Bidder Contract 11-09 – 
Wattles Road Water Main Replacement Crooks to Livernois  

 
Resolution #2012-02-035-J-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Contract No.11-09, Wattles Road Water Main Replacement Crooks to 
Livernois be AWARDED to Bricco Excavating Company, LLC, 21201 Meyers Road, Oak Park, 
MI 48237-3201 at an estimated total cost of $883,339.00. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT UPON submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost. 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution #2: Lowest Bidders Meeting Specifications – 
Fitness Equipment  

 
Resolution #2012-02-035-J-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS two contracts, one to purchase and 
install six (6) New Matrix T5x Treadmills at the Troy Community Center less Trade-ins of (4) 
Precor ellipticals and (2) Matrix #A3x trainers to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, All 
Pro Exercise of Farmington Hills, MI for an estimated net total cost of $24,270.00, and a 
second contract to Direct Fitness Solutions, LLC of Mundelein, IL, the low bidder for six (6) 
Fully Reconditioned Precor EFX-576 Total Body Ellipticals for the Troy Community Center less 
Trade-ins of (6) Matrix treadmills at an estimated net total cost of $14,400.00, all at prices 
contained in the bid tabulation dated January 19, 2012.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT UPON the companies’ 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements.  
 
J-5 Private Agreement – Athens Parc Site Condos – Project No. 05.913.3 
 
Resolution #2012-02-035-J-5 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft February 6, 2012 
 

- 12 - 

RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Athens Parc Developers LLC., is hereby APPROVED 
for the installation of sanitary sewer, water main, storm sewer, detention, paving, sidewalks, 
landscaping and soil erosion on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and 
City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Announcement of Public Hearing – Michigan Next Energy Exemption – LG Chem, 

Inc. – February 20, 2012 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time): None Submitted 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

 
L-1  Council Referrals Advanced 
a) Mayor Daniels Advanced 2008-2009 City Council Rules of Procedure  
b) Mayor Daniels Advanced Recommended Rules of Procedure Changes Outline 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 

N. REPORTS 
N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Election Commission-Final-October 13, 2011  
b) Traffic Committee-Final-November 16, 2011 
c) Election Commission-Draft-January 23, 2012 

Noted and Filed 
 
N-2 Department Reports:  
a) City Manager’s Business Roundtable Meeting 

Noted and Filed 
 
N-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Appreciation to Brent Savidant from William and Shirley Schmidt  
b) Letter of Appreciation to City Administration from David Nelson of Northfield Commons 
c) Letter of Appreciation to Captain Scherlinck from Mike Witoszynski of MET Hotel  
d) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Nelson from Rhonda Berger 

Noted and Filed 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft February 6, 2012 
 

- 13 - 

N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 
Noted and Filed 

 
N-5  Wireless Data Services – (GSA) Contract GS-35F-0119P Verizon Wireless 

Noted and Filed 
 
N-6  Economic Development Talking Points 
 

Noted and Filed 
N-7  Lifelong Learning Committee Update 

Noted and Filed 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 9:45 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:50 PM. 
 

O. STUDY ITEMS 
O-1  City Council Rules of Procedure 
a) 2010-2011 City Council Rules of Procedure 

 

P. CLOSED SESSION:  

P-1  No Closed Session Requested 
 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:53 PM 
 
 
 

Mayor Janice Daniels 
 
 
 
M. Aileen Bittner, CMC 
City Clerk 

 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
February 3, 2012 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director  
 
RE: Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Transit Mixed Concrete 
 
 
Background 
 
On April 18, 2011, Troy City Council approved contracts to provide one-year requirements of transit 
mixed concrete with an option to renew for one additional year to the low bidders: McCoig Materials 
/Koenig Fuel & Supply of Plymouth, MI, as the primary supplier, and Superior Materials of Farmington 
Hills, the secondary supplier at unit prices listed in the bid tabulation opened March 22, 2011 
(Resolution #2011-04-085-J-4a).  A secondary supplier is awarded in the event the primary supplier is 
unable to provide material or meet delivery needs.  Both McCoig Materials/Koenig Fuel and Superior 
Materials have agreed to renew their respective contracts under the same prices, terms, and 
conditions. 

 
The Purchasing Department analyzed the market and found the City would not benefit from soliciting 
new bids for the items specified as operating costs, especially fuel, is expected to fluctuate over the 
course of the renewal period.  Other communities that have solicited bids late in 2011 are paying 
approximately 3.5% more for material than the City of Troy. By renewing existing contracts, the City 
minimizes cost increases, and benefits from efficient strategic planning.  
 
Recommendation 
 
City management recommends exercising the option to renew for one additional year with, McCoig 
Materials/Koenig Fuel & Supply of Plymouth, MI, as the primary supplier, and Superior Materials of 
Farmington Hills, the secondary supplier under the same contract prices, terms, and conditions 
expiring April 30, 2013. 
 
Fund Availability  
 
Funds for these materials are available through the Public Works operating budgets. 
 
Prepared by: Marina Basta-Farouk, Project Construction Manager 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 12-13 New Format\Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 TransitMixConcrete ITB-COT 11-07.doc 
 

bittnera
Text Box
J-04a



February 2, 2012 
 
 
 

 
TO:      Susan A Leirstein, Purchasing Director  
 
FROM:     Julie Hamilton, Buyer  
       
RE:     MARKET SURVEY – Transit Mixed Concrete 
 
 
PARAGON READY MIX –     Ken Niehsl___                                             (586) 731-8000 
According to Ken, concrete prices have remained relatively steady over the past year 
with only a minor increase.  Although fuel fluctuations are hard to track, the competition 
in the market place has caused the concrete prices to remain steady.   
 
 
Based upon the above comment, I respectfully recommend that the City accept the offer 
to renew the contract for transit mixed concrete with the current primary and secondary 
vendors.       
 
CC:  File 
 
 
G://Purchasing/Bid Award 12-13/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 - MARKETSURVEY - Transit Mixed Concrete 03.12.doc 







CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT April 18, 2011 
 

- 9 - 

 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Woodberry Wine, LLC for a new Wholesale License to be located at 1307 East Maple, 
Suite B, Troy, MI, 48083, Oakland County {MLCC Req. #607285}; and hereby AUTHORIZES 
the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2011-04-085 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2011-04-085-J-2 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 

a. Regular City Council Meeting of April 4, 2011 
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions  
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Transit Mixed 

Concrete 
 
Resolution #2011-04-085-J-4a 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT April 18, 2011 
 

- 10 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to provide one-year 
requirements of Transit Mixed Concrete with an option to renew for one additional year to the 
low bidders, McCoig Materials/Koenig Fuel & Supply of Plymouth, MI as the primary supplier, 
and Superior Materials of Farmington Hills, MI as the secondary supplier, at unit prices 
contained in the bid tabulation opened March 22, 2011, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting for an estimated total cost of $138,000.00, to commence 
May 1, 2011, and expire April 30, 2012. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders - Aggregates 
 
Resolution #2011-04-085-J-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS one-year contracts to provide Aggregate 
Material with an OPTION to renew for one (1) additional year to the following low bidders: 
 

Recommended Vendors Item / Description Price/Ton 
Boulevard & Trumbell Towing 6.   Crushed Concrete 1” – 3” $8.48 
Tri-City Aggregates 2.   22A Gravel 

5.   Fill Sand 
$8.00 
$5.50 

B&W Landscape Supply 10.  Mason Sand 
11.  Limestone 1” – 3” 

$9.97 
$12.47 

Richmond Transport Inc 1.  6A Slag $10.20 
Novak Construction 3.   Pea Stone 

4.   60/40 Gravel 
8.   Chloride Sand 
9.   2NS Sand 
12.  Limestone 3” – 6” 

$11.49 
$12.25 
$14.95 
$8.95 

$17.25 
Osburn Industries Inc 13.  Limestone 4” – 8” $15.85 

  
at the unit prices stated above and confirmed with unit prices contained in the bid tabulation 
opened March 22, 2011, copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting, with contracts expiring  April 30, 2012. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders: Printing/Distribution of 

Water and Sewer Bills 
 
Resolution #2011-04-085-J-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a one (1) year contract to provide 
laser printing and distribution of the City of Troy Water and Sewer Bills, with an option to renew 
for three (3) additional years to the low total bidder, LaserCom LLC of Troy, MI, for an 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
March 23, 2011 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director  
 
RE: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Transit Mixed Concrete 
 
 
Background 
 
On March 22, 2011, bid proposals were electronically received to furnish one-year requirements of 
Transit Mixed Concrete with an option to renew for one (1) additional year as required by City Charter 
and Code. This material is used throughout the year for repairs to sidewalks, curbs and streets.  
Thirty-three (33) vendors were notified of the bid opportunity via the MITN website.  Three companies 
responded.  A primary and secondary supplier is awarded contracts, in the event the primary supplier 
is unable to provide material or meet delivery needs, the secondary supplier is contacted.  Awards 
are contingent upon contractors’ submission of properly executed insurance certificates and all 
specified requirements.   
 
Recommendation 
 
City management recommends awarding contracts to the low bidders, McCoig Materials/Koenig Fuel 
& Supply of Plymouth, MI, as the primary supplier, and Superior Materials of Farmington Hills, the 
secondary supplier at unit prices listed in the bid tabulation opened March 22, 2011.    
 
Fund Availability  
 
Funds for these materials are available through the Public Works operating budgets. 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Marina Basta-Farouk, Project Construction Manager 
 
 
 
 
G:\ Bid Award 10-11 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 - Transit Mixed Concrete2011.doc 

bartholotl
Text Box
J-04a



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 11-07
Opening Date -- 3/22/11 BID TABULATION Pg. 1 of 2
Date Reviewed - 3/24/2011 TRANSIT MIXED CONCRETE

sl
VENDOR NAME: McCoig Superior Paragon Ready

Materials Materials, LLC Mix Inc
PRIMARY SECONDARY

EST
ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE 

PROPOSAL A: WEEKDAY DELIVERY

1 800 YDS 6 SACK MIX 70.00$              71.00$                    74.00$             

2 600 YDS 7 SACK MIX (High Early) 75.00$              76.00$                    79.00$             

3 200 YDS 12 HR 300 PSI MIX 75.00$              78.00$                    81.00$             
Flexural Strength/ 7 sack

SPLIT LOAD CHARGES
4 20 TIMES 2 LOCATIONS 30.00$              40.00$                    50.00$             
5 5 TIMES 3 LOCATIONS 50.00$              40.00$                    50.00$             

6 30 TIMES BELOW MINIMUM LOAD CHARGE 65.00$              40.00$                    50.00$             

7 40 YDS COLD WEATHER PROTECTION 3.50$                3.50$                      4.00$               

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROPOSAL A- 118,940.00$      120,340.00$           125,710.00$    
W/TERMS $119,136.60

PROPOSAL B: SATURDAY DELIVERY

8 25 YDS 6 SACK MIX 74.00$              76.00$                    74.00$             

9 100 YDS 7 SACK MIX (High Early) 79.00$              81.00$                    79.00$             

10 100 YDS 12 HR 300 PSI MIX 79.00$              83.00$                    81.00$             
Flexural Strength/ 7 sack

SPLIT LOAD CHARGES
11 5 TIMES 2 LOCATIONS 50.00$              40.00$                    50.00$             
12 2 TIMES 3 LOCATIONS 75.00$              40.00$                    50.00$             

13 10 TIMES BELOW MINIMUM LOAD CHARGE 75.00$              40.00$                    50.00$             

14 10 YDS COLD WEATHER PROTECTION 3.50$                3.50$                      4.00$               

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROPOSAL B - 18,835.00$        19,015.00$             18,740.00$      
W/TERMS $18,824.85

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL-- 137,775.00$      139,355.00$           144,450.00$    
W/TERMS $137,961.45

UNLOADING TIME PER CUBIC YARD:  6 Minutes 6 Minutes 6 Minutes

2 c.u. (short load
MINIMUM LOAD: chrgs under 6 c.u. 1 Yard 6 cuyd



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 11-07
Opening Date -- 3/22/11 BID TABULATION Pg. 2 of 2
Date Reviewed - 3/24/2011 TRANSIT MIXED CONCRETE

VENDOR NAME: McCoig Superior Paragon Ready 
Materials Materials, LLC Mix Inc 

PRIMARY SECONDARY

7AM-12PM Sat
HOURS OF OPERATION:  7AM-5PM 7AM-5PM M-F 7AM-5PM 

24 HRS PHONE NO.  (313) 368-1133 (248) 521-9948 (586) 484-6804

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed  Y or N Y Y Y

ALL OR NONE AWARD:  Y or N Y Y N
1% 10th Net 

PAYMENT TERMS None end of Month No Discounts 

WARRANTY: Blank Blank Blank

EXCEPTIONS: Mid Range Water None None 
Reducer & 

Demurrage can be 
quoted upon request

PROPOSAL--  One-Year Requirements of Transit Mixed Concrete with an Option to Renew
for One Additional Year

ATTEST: BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDERS
Diane Fisher
Jeffrey Biegler
Marina Basta Farouk ______________________________
Julie Hamilton Susan Leirstein CPPO, CPPB

Purchasing Director

G:\ITB-COT 11-07 TransitMixConcrete 



 

 
February 8, 2012 
 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: – Exercise Renewal Option – Aggregates 
 
 
Background 
On April 18, 2011, Troy City Council approved one-year contracts to provide Aggregate Material with 
an option to renew for one (1) additional year to the low bidders B & W Landscape Supply of Clinton 
Twp, Boulevard & Trumbull Towing Inc of Detroit, Novak Construction of Almont, Richmond 
Transport Inc of Lenox, Tri-City Aggregates Inc of Holly, MI and Osburn Industries Inc of Taylor 
(Resolution #2011-04-085-J4b).  After the contract award, Richmond Transport withdrew their bid for 
6A Slag due to a calculation error.  So, on May 9, 2011, Troy City Council rescinded their award and 
re-awarded the contract for 6A Slag to the next lowest bidder, B&W Landscape Supply (Resolution 
#2011-05-094).   
All suppliers with the exception of Osburn Industries Inc have agreed to renew their respective 
contracts under the same prices, terms and conditions.  Osburn Industries is not interested in 
renewing their contract for Limestone 4” – 8”, as no purchases were made last year. 
 
Purchasing has analyzed market trends and found the City would not benefit from soliciting new bids 
for the items specified, as operating and material costs continue to rise when compared to last year. 
By renewing existing contracts, the City minimizes cost increases, and benefits from efficient 
strategic planning.  City staff will utilize the informal three (3) quote process for future purchases of 
Limestone 4” – 8”.  

 
Recommendation 
City management recommends exercising the options to renew to provide Aggregates as specified, 
for one additional year to the low bidders, B & W Landscape Supply of Clinton Twp, Boulevard & 
Trumbull Towing Inc of Detroit, Novak Construction of Almont, and Tri-City Aggregates Inc of Holly 
under the same prices, terms and conditions expiring April 30, 2013. 
 
Fund Availability  
Funds are available in the various departmental operating budgets of the Public Works division.   
 
G:\Bid Award 12-13 New Format\Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 Aggregates ITB-COT 11-06.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

bittnera
Text Box
J-04b



February 2, 2012 
 
 
 

 
TO:      Susan A Leirstein, Purchasing Director  
 
FROM:     Julie Hamilton, Buyer  
       
RE:     MARKET SURVEY –  Aggregates 
 
 
EDWARD C. LEVY COMPANY –     Terria Ellis                                        (313) 429-5389 
According to Terria, aggregate prices have remained relatively steady over the past 
year.  Fuel and transporting costs would be the only item that would fluctuate moving 
forward.   
 
 
TEBBEN BROTHERS LTD –     Donald Tebben                                      (248) 652-7188 
According to Donald, aggregate prices have remained relatively steady over the past 
year with only a minor increase, at the most $0.25/ton.  Donald feels that transporting 
costs will be a non-issue this year.   
 
 
Based upon the above comment, I respectfully recommend that the City accept the offer 
to renew the contract for aggregates with the current vendors.       
 
CC:  File 
 
 
G://Purchasing/Bid Award 12-13/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 - MARKETSURVEY - Aggregates 03.12.doc 











CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – DRAFT May 9, 2011

- 4 -

Yes: All-7
No: None

B. RESOLUTION TO AMEND CHAPTER 93 OF THE TROY CITY CODE:

Resolution #2011-05-092
Moved by Fleming
Seconded by McGinnis

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS Chapter 93, Fire Prevention, of the Code 
of Ordinances of the City of Troy, as amended, as recommended by City Management City 
Council Action Report dated May 3, 2011; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting.

Yes: All-7
No: None

MOTION PASSED

I-6 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Community Center 
Catering

Resolution #2011-05-093
Moved by Beltramini
Seconded by Kerwin

RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide catering 
services at the Troy Community Center for three (3) years with an option to renew for three 
additional years to Encore Catering of Troy, MI, the caterer with the highest score and rate of 
return, as a result of a best value process which the Troy City Council determines to be in the 
public interest at a return schedule of 15% of gross receipts less Michigan sales tax, or 
$12,000.00 minimum guarantee per year, whichever is greater, expiring May 9, 2014.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon caterer submission of 
properly executed proposal and contract documents, including insurance certificates, the ability 
to qualify as the holder of the City’s liquor license and all other specified requirements; and the 
Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the agreement when in acceptable form.

Yes: All-7
No: None

MOTION PASSED

I-7 Rescind Bid Award/Re-Award Contract – Aggregates

Resolution #2011-05-094
Moved by Kerwin



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – DRAFT May 9, 2011

- 5 -

Seconded by Howrylak

WHEREAS, On April 18, 2011, contracts for one-year requirements of Aggregate Material with 
an option to renew for one (1) additional year was awarded to various low bidders (Resolution 
#2011-04-085-J4b); and

WHEREAS, After the award of contract, Richmond Transport Inc. withdrew their bid for 6A Slag 
due to a calculation error;  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCINDS with 
prejudice the contract for one-year requirements of 6A Slag with an option to renew for one (1) 
additional year from Richmond Transport Inc. and hereby RE-AWARDS the contract to the next 
lowest bidder, B&W Landscape Supply of Clinton Township, MI at $13.23 per ton, as contained 
on the bid tabulation opened March 22, 2011.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That all other items contained in resolution 2011-04-085-J4b 
REMAIN in full force and effect as originally stipulated.

Yes: All-7
No: None

MOTION PASSED

I-8 Rescind Bid Award/Re-Award Contract - Custodial Supplies

Resolution #2011-05-095
Moved by Fleming
Seconded by Slater

WHEREAS, On March 28, 2011, a contract for one-year requirements of Custodial Supplies 
was awarded to the lowest acceptable bidder, Central Poly Corporation of Linden, NJ 
(Resolution # 2011-03-064-J4e); and

WHEREAS, Central Poly Corporation has declined the consideration for award due to their 
choice not to meet insurance requirements;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCINDS with 
prejudice the contract for one-year requirements of Custodial Supplies from Central Poly 
Corporation and hereby RE-AWARDS the contract to the next lowest total bidder, Empire 
Equipment and Supply Co. of Detroit, MI, for an estimated total cost of $16,134.00 at unit 
prices contained in the bid tabulation opened February 23, 2011, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with the contract expiring March 31, 2012.

Yes: All-7
No: None
MOTION PASSED



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

 
April 29, 2011 
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager Finance & Administration 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
Subject: Rescind Bid Award / Re-award Contract – Aggregates 
 
 
Background 
 
On April 18, 2011, Troy City Council approved one-year contracts to provide Aggregate Material with 
an option to renew for one (1) additional year to various low bidders (Resolution #2011-04-085-J4b).  
On April 21, 2011, Richmond Transport Inc realized they made a calculation error when bidding the 
6A Slag and withdrew their bid.  Since this occurred after the award by City Council, Richmond 
Transport is considered in breach of contract. Richmond Transport received a written notification of 
default and remedies for reinstatement as a potential vendor after three (3) years.   
 
After a review of the bid results to determine the next lowest bidder, it is in the City’s best interest to 
re-award the contract to B&W Landscape Supply of Clinton Township, MI. B&W was contacted and 
verified they could honor the pricing as originally quoted.  
 
Recommendation 
 
City management recommends Troy City Council rescind with prejudice the contract approved on 
April 18, 2011, to Richmond Transport, Inc for 6A Slag, Aggregate Material (Resolution #2011-04-
085-J4b) and re-award the contract to the next lowest bidder, B&W Landscape Supply at a unit cost 
of $13.23 per ton, as contained on the bid tabulation opened March 22, 2011. 
 
Fund Availability  
 
Funds are available in the various departmental operating budgets of the Public Works division.  
Annual costs under the new contract with B&W Landscape Supply will increase an estimated 
$1,515.00, when compared with pricing submitted by Richmond Transport Inc. 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 10-11 New Format\Rescind-ReAward - Aggregates - ITB-COT11-06 04.11.doc 
 
 

bartholotl
Text Box
I-07





CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT April 18, 2011 
 

- 10 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to provide one-year 
requirements of Transit Mixed Concrete with an option to renew for one additional year to the 
low bidders, McCoig Materials/Koenig Fuel & Supply of Plymouth, MI as the primary supplier, 
and Superior Materials of Farmington Hills, MI as the secondary supplier, at unit prices 
contained in the bid tabulation opened March 22, 2011, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting for an estimated total cost of $138,000.00, to commence 
May 1, 2011, and expire April 30, 2012. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders - Aggregates 
 
Resolution #2011-04-085-J-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS one-year contracts to provide Aggregate 
Material with an OPTION to renew for one (1) additional year to the following low bidders: 
 

Recommended Vendors Item / Description Price/Ton 
Boulevard & Trumbell Towing 6.   Crushed Concrete 1” – 3” $8.48 
Tri-City Aggregates 2.   22A Gravel 

5.   Fill Sand 
$8.00 
$5.50 

B&W Landscape Supply 10.  Mason Sand 
11.  Limestone 1” – 3” 

$9.97 
$12.47 

Richmond Transport Inc 1.  6A Slag $10.20 
Novak Construction 3.   Pea Stone 

4.   60/40 Gravel 
8.   Chloride Sand 
9.   2NS Sand 
12.  Limestone 3” – 6” 

$11.49 
$12.25 
$14.95 
$8.95 

$17.25 
Osburn Industries Inc 13.  Limestone 4” – 8” $15.85 

  
at the unit prices stated above and confirmed with unit prices contained in the bid tabulation 
opened March 22, 2011, copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting, with contracts expiring  April 30, 2012. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders: Printing/Distribution of 

Water and Sewer Bills 
 
Resolution #2011-04-085-J-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a one (1) year contract to provide 
laser printing and distribution of the City of Troy Water and Sewer Bills, with an option to renew 
for three (3) additional years to the low total bidder, LaserCom LLC of Troy, MI, for an 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 

April 8, 2011 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director  
 
RE: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award To Low Bidders – Aggregates 
 

Background 
On March 22, 2011, proposals were competitively bid and electronically received as required by City Charter 
and Code for one-year requirements of Aggregate material with an option to renew for one additional year. 
Forty-nine (49) vendors were notified of the bid opportunity via the MITN website with eight (8) responses 
received.  After reviewing these proposals, awards are contingent upon contractors’ submission of properly 
executed bid documents including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.   
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends awarding contracts to the low bidders, at the unit prices listed below. 
Aggregates are purchased on an as needed basis throughout the year based upon estimated quantities. 
 
ITEM EST.QTY DESCRIPTION    PRICE PER TON ESTIMATED TOTAL 
 TONS 
Boulevard & Trumbell Towing. Inc. 
6. 100  CRUSHED CONCRETE, 1”- 3”  $  8.48                           $  848.00 
Tri-City Aggregates Inc. 
2. 1,000  22A GRAVEL    $  8.00                                $8,000.00 
5. 2,500  FILL SAND    $  5.50                              $13,750.00 $21,750.00 
B & W Landscape Supply 
10.    100  MASON SAND    $  9.97                                $  997.00 
11.    100  LIMESTONE 1”- 3”   $12.47                               $1,247.00 $  2,244.00 
Richmond Transport Inc. 
1.    500  6A SLAG    $10.20                               $5,100.00 
Novak Construction 
3.            300  PEA STONE    $11.49               $3,447.00 
4. 100  60/40 GRAVEL    $12.25                               $1,225.00 
8. 250  CHLORIDE SAND   $14.95               $3,737.50 
9. 100                2NS SAND    $  8.95                $  895.00 
12. 50  LIMESTONE 3”- 6”   $17.25                             $  862.50 $10,167.00 
Osburn Industries, Inc. 
13. 50  LIMESTONE 4”- 8”   $15.85                             $  792.50 
 
             ESTIMATED TOTAL COST:              $40,901.50  
 
No bids were received for Item #7, 100 Tons CRUSHED CONCRETE, 3”- 6”. The Public Works Department 
will order this material as needed using the informal three-quote process.  
 
Fund Availability  
Funds for these materials are available through the Public Works operating budgets    
 
Prepared by: Marina Basta Farouk, Project Construction Manager 
 
G:\Bid Award 10-11 New Format\ Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 - Aggregates ITB-COT 11-06 04.11.doc 

bartholotl
Text Box
J-04b



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 11-06
Opening Date -- 3/22/11 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 2
Date Reviewed -- 3/23/2011 AGGREGATES

sl
VENDOR NAME: Boulevard & Tri-City B & W Richmond 

Trumbell Towing Aggregates, Inc Landscape Transport Inc
Inc Supply 

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
ITEM QTY/TONS DESCRIPTION TON TON TON TON

1. 500 6A SLAG No Bid No Bid 13.23$             10.20$              
2. 1000 22A GRAVEL No Bid 8.00$                 9.33$               12.00$              
3. 300 PEA STONE No Bid No Bid 13.74$             14.75$              
4. 100 60/40 GRAVEL No Bid No Bid 14.69$             15.25$              
5. 2500 FILL SAND No Bid 5.50$                 6.69$               6.25$                
6. 100 CRUSHED CONCRETE, 1" - 3" 8.48$                   No Bid 8.87$               11.25$              
7. 100 CRUSHED CONCRETE, 3" - 6" No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid
8. 250 CHLORIDE SAND No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid
9. 100 2NS SAND No Bid No Bid 9.77$               11.25$              
10. 100 MASON SAND No Bid No Bid 9.97$               12.00$              
11. 100 LIMESTONE 1" - 3" No Bid No Bid 12.47$             15.00$              
12. 50 LIMESTONE 3" - 6" No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid
13. 50 LIMESTONE 4" - 8" No Bid No Bid 17.72$             20.00$              

- - - -

848.00$               21,750.00$        43,255.00$      44,625.00$       
ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 848.00$              21,750.00$       2,244.00$        5,100.00$        

DELIVERY: Within Hours 2 Hours 24 Hours 24 Hours 24 Hours

MINIMUMS: 50 Tons 50 Tons 50 Tons 50 Tons

ALL OR NONE AWARD:   Y or N N N N N

CONTACT INFORMATION
Hrs of Operation 7AM-6PM 6AM-4PM M-F 8AM-4PM M-Sat 6AM-5PM
24 Hr. Phone No. (586) 939-6200 (248) 634-8277 (586) 463-0545 (810) 602-1351

INSURANCE Can Meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

PAYMENT TERMS: N/A Net 30 Days Net 30 Net 30 Days
immediate delivery

EXCEPTIONS: Pricing firm 120 days No must be made to 2% Increase
non-weight in option year 

restricted facility

PROPOSAL:  One-Year Requirements of Aggregates with an Option to Renew for
ATTEST: One (1) Additional Year
Julie Hamilton
Diane Fisher HIGHLIGHTED AREAS DENOTES LOW BIDDERS
Jeffrey Biegler
Marina Basta Farouk Susan Leirstein CPPO CPPB

Purchasing Director

G:\ITB-COT 11-06 Aggregates

DISCOUNT IF AWARDED ALL ITEMS

ESTIMATED TOTAL:



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 11-06
Opening Date -- 3/22/11 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 2
Date Reviewed -- 3/23/2011 AGGREGATES

VENDOR NAME: Edward C. Novak Osburn Tebben 
Levy Co Construction Industries, Inc Brothers Ltd

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
ITEM QTY/TONS DESCRIPTION TON TON TON TON

Alt:  6A Natural  at 
$12.50/Ton

1. 500 6A SLAG 13.93$               13.50$               14.45$             16.00$              
2. 1000 22A GRAVEL 9.70$                 9.25$                 10.00$             11.50$              
3. 300 PEA STONE 13.13$               11.49$               13.85$             15.50$              
4. 100 60/40 GRAVEL 14.28$               12.25$               14.45$             16.50$              

Alt: Class II GR

5. 2500 FILL SAND 7.23$                 6.25$                 7.15$               7.25$                
Alt: 3X1 BF

6. 100 CRUSHED CONCRETE, 1" - 3" 13.93$               10.50$               10.53$             11.50$              
7. 100 CRUSHED CONCRETE, 3" - 6" No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid
8. 250 CHLORIDE SAND No Bid 14.95$               24.50$             22.00$              
9. 100 2NS SAND 10.03$               8.95$                 10.20$             11.00$              

Alt:  Mortar Sand

10. 100 MASON SAND 12.02$               10.27$               12.60$             11.00$              
11. 100 LIMESTONE 1" - 3" 19.50$               13.49$               13.60$             15.00$              
12. 50 LIMESTONE 3" - 6" No Bid 17.25$               No Bid No Bid
13. 50 LIMESTONE 4" - 8" No Bid 19.50$               15.85$             22.50$              

- 5% - -
45,693.00$               

45,655.00$        46,193.00$        52,310.50$      55,400.00$       
Alt:  $43,408.35

ESTIMATED TOTAL W/DISCOUNT: - 43,883.35$        - -

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 10,167.00$        792.50$           

DELIVERY: Within Hours 24 Hours 24 Hours 24 Hours 48 Hours

MINIMUMS: 50 Tons 50 Tons 50 Tons 50 Tons

ALL OR NONE AWARD:   Y or N N N N N

CONTACT INFORMATION
Hrs of Operation 7AM-5PM M-F 7AM-5PM 8AM-5PM 7AM-10PM
24 Hr. Phone No. (313) 429-5389 (810) 358-7977 (313) 363-0077 (248) 652-7188

INSURANCE Can Meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Days 30 Days N/A Net 30 Days
Item 2:  22A Limestone

EXCEPTIONS: See Material Blank None Avail at add'l cost

Guides for Alt Train loads - if fuel over

Bids $5 price will increase

G:\ITB-COT 11-06 Aggregates

DISCOUNT IF AWARDED ALL ITEMS

ESTIMATED TOTAL:



  
  

TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm , City Attorney  

Susan M. Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: February 15, 2012 
SUBJECT: Milano Development Company, Inc. v. City of Troy et. al.  

 
 

Several years ago, a lawsuit to vacate a plat was initiated in order to make way for a 
proposed new residential development on John R. Road near Long Lake Road.  This lawsuit 
was filed by Milano Development Company Inc. (Milano) to vacate a portion of the Square 
Acres Subdivision Plat.  As required by state law, it was filed against the City of Troy, Troy 
School District, Road Commission for Oakland County, the Oakland County Drain 
Commissioner, the State of Michigan and all neighboring property owners within 300 feet.  
The lawsuit sought a vacation of 43-foot easements which were originally set aside for 
roadway purposes.  This lawsuit was settled with the February 5, 2008 entry of a Consent 
Judgment, which was unanimously approved by Council on January 28, 2008.    

 Most of the work for the re-plat was completed in accordance with the Consent 
Judgment.  However, Milano Development could not complete the project due to the 
downturn of the economy. The property was been recently purchased by David and Linda 
Purvis, who are successors in interest to Milano Development Company, Inc..  On January 
26, 2012, Mr. and Mrs. Purvis entered into a Land Contract with Athens Parc Developers, 
LLC, for the sale of the property.  Athens Parc Developers, LLC proposes to complete a 
residential development that is very similar to the one previously proposed.  Both of the 
proposals require the vacation of the 43 foot roadway easements.    

City Council has already taken several actions to allow for this proposed residential 
development, including the abandonment and transfer of utility easements on January 9, 
2012, and the approval of the Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements on 
February 12, 2012.   However, the previous property owner failed to timely complete the re-
plat process, and to submit it to the City of Troy Administration, as required by the Consent 
Judgment.   

Paragraph 4 of the Consent Judgment allows for the property owners and the City 
and the State to agree to an extension of time to obtain official approvals and to submit a new 
plat to the City and the State of Michigan.  If there is agreement, then the developer could 
avoid having to initiate a new re-plat lawsuit.   

The proposed resolutions would grant the City’s approval to extend the time for the 
submission of the plat, and also approve the plat that was submitted.  City Administration has 
reviewed and approved the revised plat, which is attached.   

Please let us know if you have any questions concerning this matter.   

  

bittnera
Text Box
J-05







Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Final December 8, 2011 
 

-1- 

A Meeting of the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) was held Thursday, December 8, 2011, at 
Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road in the Lower Level Conference Room. 
Chairman/President McGinnis called the meeting to order at 7:34 AM. 
 
A. ROLL CALL: 
    
   PRESENT:  Chairman/President Donald E. McGinnis, Jr.   

 Commissioner David Cannon      
 

ALSO PRESENT: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
  Peggy Sears, Human Resources Director 
  M. Aileen Bittner, City Clerk 

Gary Mayer, Police Chief 
Gerard Scherlinck, Police Captain 
Keith Frye, Police Captain 
George Zielinski, Police Sergeant 
Robert Wolfe, Police Sergeant/TCOA President 
Michael Geise, Police Officer/TPOA President 

  Jeanette Menig, Human Resources Specialist 
  John J. Higgins, President – EMPCO 
  Tony Haddad 

  
  

B. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  
 
1. Approval of Minutes of Thursday, September 22, 2011 
 
Resolution #CSC-2011-12-003 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the Minutes of 
the Thursday, September 22, 2011 meeting as presented. 
 
Yes: Cannon, McGinnis 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C. PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS:   
 
D. REPORTS:   

 
The Commission received an attorney’s letter requesting a hearing on behalf of Police Officer 
Todd Michael.   Human Resource Director Sears promptly responded to this letter, 
highlighting the limited jurisdiction of the Act 78 Civil Service Commission.  Under Article X of 
the Rules and Regulations of the Troy Civil Service Commission, jurisdiction is limited to the 
application of the merit principle or disciplinary actions resulting in discharge, suspension or 

bittnera
Text Box
N-01a



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Final December 8, 2011 
 

-2- 

demotion, as set forth in Article X of the Rules and Regulations of the Troy Civil Service 
Commission.  Although Officer Michael’s attorney did not respond to Ms. Sears’ letter or 
otherwise challenge the fact that the Act 78 Civil Service Commission did not have jurisdiction 
over the requested appeal, the information was included in the agenda packet to document 
the receipt of the correspondence.  The report was NOTED AND FILED. 

 
1. Letter to Civil Service Commission from Human Resources Director Sears Regarding Request 

for Appeal Hearing of Grievance Involving Officer Todd Michael 
Noted and Filed 

 
E. OLD BUSINESS:  None 
 
F. NEW BUSINESS: 

 
In the agenda packet, the Act 78 Civil Service Commission received a letter from Sergeant 
Joseph Haddad, requesting a disqualification of EMPCO for the proposed Police Sergeant and 
Lieutenant evaluation process.  Mr. Tony Haddad was present in the audience, as a 
representative of Troy Sergeant Joseph Haddad, who was out of the State.  Prior to taking any 
action on this item, Chairman McGinnis inquired about a past guarantee from EMPCO that none 
of the evaluators would be associated or affiliated with the City of Troy or any of the candidates.  
EMPCO President John Higgins confirmed that any EMPCO evaluator would have “no previous 
prejudicial contact with any of the candidates from the Police Department.”  He explained that he 
could not guarantee that there was never any contact between evaluators and the candidates, 
since the law enforcement community is small, but that the evaluators would be independent and 
impartial.  The Commission then invited Mr. Tony Haddad to speak on this item, on behalf of his 
son and also as a resident of the City.  Mr. Haddad was concerned that the evaluators would not 
be impartial, based on past complaints made by his son against one of his former supervisors 
who also served as an evaluator for EMPCO.  Mr. Haddad was also concerned about EMPCO 
being hired by the City.  Mr. Haddad based this concern on his previous contact with the 
President of EMPCO, which was made in response to a letter that Mr. Haddad sent to several 
area police chiefs criticizing EMPCO for hiring this former Troy supervisor as an evaluator.        
Member Cannon disclosed prior military service with Sergeant Joseph Haddad, Mr. Tony 
Haddad’s son, and asked all present if there were any objections to his voting on items F-1 and 
F-2. There were no objections to Member Cannon’s participation on this item. 
Member Cannon then stated his position that the concerns brought forward at this meeting did 
not disqualify EMPCO from completing the assessment process. Under the Rules, there is an 
avenue for redress if a candidate feels that there was bias in the evaluation process, and this 
happens only after the assessment has been done. Chairman McGinnis agreed, and added that 
the assurances EMPCO has offered for non-biased testing are sufficient.  
Mr. Higgins of EMPCO also offered to meet with Mr. Haddad privately after the meeting 
adjourned to discuss his concerns. 

 
1. Approval of Qualifications, Posting and Test Battery for Police Sergeant and Police 

Lieutenant 
 
Resolution #CSC-2011-12-004 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by McGinnis 



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Final December 8, 2011 
 

-3- 

 
RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the job 
qualifications, the posting, and the test battery for the recruitment of Police Sergeant and Police 
Lieutenant as PRESENTED. 
 
Yes: McGinnis, Cannon 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
2. Appointment of Civil Service Commission (Act 78) Member 
 
Member Cannon nominated John Steele for the neutral position currently vacant on the 
Commission. Member Cannon applauded Mr. Steele’s non-political community involvement, and 
believed that he was an impartial candidate that had no prior affiliation or prejudice. Chairman 
McGinnis seconded the nomination and reiterated that Mr. Steele fits all the criteria for the neutral 
position. The Commission members also concluded that all other requirements, including diverse 
membership in political parties, was also satisfied. 
 
Resolution #CSC-2011-12-005 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPOINTS                                                               
John Steele to complete the unexpired term of the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) member 
ending on April 30, 2014. 
 
Yes: Cannon, McGinnis 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
 
Mr. Tony Haddad thanked the Commission for their service and for hearing his concerns. 
 
Chief Mayer thanked the Commission for moving forward with the approval of the two items on 
the Agenda so the Police Department can begin rebuilding its command staff that was recently 
reduced. Chief Mayer applauded the past work done by EMPCO and praised Mr. Higgins for his 
work on behalf of the City of Troy. 
 
G. ADJOURNMENT:   
 
The Civil Service Commission (Act 78) meeting ADJOURNED at 8:10 AM. 
 
 
 
 



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Final December 8, 2011 
 

-4- 

   
Donald E. McGinnis, Jr., Chairman  Aileen Bittner, City Clerk  

 
 



bittnera
Text Box
N-01b







PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 10, 2012 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Hutson called the Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order at 
7:30 p.m. on January 10, 2012 in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Tom Krent 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2012-01-001 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2012-01-002 
Moved by: Strat 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the December 13, 2011 Regular meeting as 
printed. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

bittnera
Text Box
N-01c



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 10, 2012 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN 
REVIEW (File Number SU 392) – Proposed Vehicle Repair Facility, Action Collision 
Inc., West of Dequindre, North of 14 Mile (2722 Elliott), Section 36, Currently Zoned IB 
(Integrated Industrial and Business) District  
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 

Resolution # PC-2012-01-003 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed Vehicle Repair Facility, Action Collision Inc., West of Dequindre, North of 14 
Mile (2722 Elliott), Section 36, within the IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) District, 
be granted, subject to the following: 
 
1. Show all required and proposed dimensions on final site plan. 
2. Clarify number of service bays, the presence of any tow trucks, and condition any 

approval on the limitation of the site to no more than 10 bays. 
3. Show overhead doors. 
4. Provide a bike rack with capacity of at least two bicycles must be added to the site 

plan. 
5. Add two deciduous street trees. 
6. Provide landscaped area calculations. 
7. Provide four additional trees at the perimeter of the parking lot to meet minimum 

parking lot landscaping requirements.  
8. Provide detailed landscaping calculations showing how all requirements of Section 

13.02 are being met. 
9. Clarify that the use will not have retail aside from that which is normally required to 

support the repair use. 
10. No vehicles may be parked other than in compliant striped spaces. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 10, 2012 
  
 
 

3 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT 
 
6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Tuscany Estates Site Condominium, 

11 units/lots, West side of Dequindre, North of Winter Drive, Section 24, Currently 
Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2012-01-004 
Moved by: Ullmann 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone the item until all requirements as listed by staff are met and 
the application has been resubmitted. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
7. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 971) – Proposed Warrior Park 

Baseball Field, South side of Equity between 1735 and 1515 Equity, Section 32, 
Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) District – Controlled by Consent 
Judgment 
 
Resolution # PC-2012-01-005 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby recommends to City Council, that 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the proposed Warrior Park Baseball Field, located on 
the south side of Equity between 1735 and 1515 Equity, in Section 32, Currently Zoned 
IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) District, but controlled by Consent Judgment be 
granted, subject to the following: 
 
1. Provide written justification for the proposed number of spaces.  
2. Add a bike rack with capacity of at least two bicycles.  
3. Comply with Section 13.02.C.2.b, Section 13.02.C.2.d, and Section 13.02.C.3.b of 

the landscape requirements; this includes providing landscape islands or justifying 
their removal; providing parking lot landscape island trees in islands or, if waived, at 
the perimeter, and providing a screen for the parking lot along its north side.  

4. Show all setbacks.  
5. Provide a lighting plan indicating proposed photometrics, height of light fixtures, 

proposed light fixtures, and proposed methods of shielding, if lighting is proposed. 
6. Provide samples, swatches, or manufacturer’s specification sheets of the 

predominant proposed exterior materials and colors of all buildings and permanent 
structures, including walls and fences. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 10, 2012 
  
 
 

4 
 

 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

8. POTENTIAL CONDITIONAL REZONING – Proposed Culver’s Restaurant (with Drive-
Through), 4889 Rochester Road, West side of Rochester Road, South of Long Lake, 
Section 15, From NN (Neighborhood Node) to CB (Community Business) District 
 
This item was withdrawn at the request of the petitioner. 
 

 
9. ELECTION OF OFFICERS FOR 2012 

 
Mr. Edmunds nominated Mark Maxwell as Chair and John Tagle as Vice Chair. 
 
Hearing no further nominations, Chair Hutson declared the nominations for the positions 
of Chair and Vice Chair closed. 
 
Roll Call vote on the nomination 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
 
Mr. Sanzica nominated Thomas Strat as Zoning Board of Appeals representative. 
 
Hearing no further nominations, Chair Hutson declared the nominations for the position 
of Zoning Board of Appeals representative closed. 
 
Roll Call vote on the nomination 
Yes: All present (9) 
 

 
10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 
There was general Planning Commission discussion. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 10, 2012 
  
 
 

5 
 

 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:55 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
       
Michael W. Hutson, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2012 PC Minutes\Draft\2012 01 10 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING  draft  JANUARY 17, 2012 

1 
 

Chair Lambert called the Zoning Board of Appeals meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. on January 17, 
2012, in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Kenneth Courtney 
William Fisher 
Allen Kneale (arrived at 7:36 pm) 
David Lambert 
Thomas Strat 
Glenn Clark 
 
Absent 
Michael Bartnik 
 
Also Present: 
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – November 15, 2011 
 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Fisher 
 
RESOLVED, to approve the November 15, 2011 meeting minutes. 
 
Yes: All present 
Absent: Bartnik, Kneale  
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  – No changes 
 
 
4. HEARING OF CASES 
 

A. VARIANCE REQUEST, JIM BARDY OF CONTINENTAL SERVICES, 700 
STEPHENSON HIGHWAY – In order to place/construct the following 
improvements in the front yard:  a trash container, a loading area and a 
maneuvering lane.  The Zoning Ordinance does not allow these items in the front 
yard. 
 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Kneale 
 
RESOLVED to grant the variance as requested with the following conditions: 

bittnera
Text Box
N-01d



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING  draft  JANUARY 17, 2012 

2 
 

• That the existing berm be extended north and west as depicted on the 
attached drawing 

• That the new berm height and massing match that of the existing berm  
• That the new berm be undulating 
• That the new berm not be required where it will interfere with existing 

screening trees 
• That additional screening vegetation be installed in the front yard and on the 

berm 
• That the aforementioned vegetation species, height, and placement 

effectively screen the view of the trucks located in the front yard from 
Stephenson Highway  

• That the vegetation provides year round screening.   
 



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING  draft  JANUARY 17, 2012 

3 
 

Yes: All present 
Absent: Bartnik 
 
MOTION APPROVED 

 
5. COMMUNICATIONS – Chair Lambert acknowledged Board Members’ receipt of the 

most recent edition of the Michigan Association of Planning magazine. 
 
6. PUBLIC COMMENT – There was no public comment. 
 
7. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS – The Board discussed the need for City Council to 

appoint two Alternates as specified in the Zoning Ordinance.  There was Board 
consensus on methods to increase citizen awareness of this volunteer opportunity 
which included Board member and staff referrals, City press release and the Troy 
Today newsletter.  Interested citizens would be directed to fill out an application at the 
City Clerks’ Office. 

 
8. ADJOURNMENT – The Zoning Board of Appeals meeting ADJOURNED at 8:45 p.m. 

 
 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
      _____ 
David Lambert, Chair 
 
 
 
 
      _____ 
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
 
 
G:\BZA\Minutes\2012\Draft\2012 01 17 ZBA Minutes draft.doc 
 
 



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Final January 19, 2012 
 

-1- 

A Meeting of the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) was held Thursday, January 19, 2012, at 
Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road in the Lower Level Conference Room. 
Chairman/President McGinnis called the meeting to order at 7:30 AM. 
 
A. ROLL CALL: 
    
   PRESENT:  Chairman/President Donald E. McGinnis, Jr.   

 Commissioner David Cannon  
 Commissioner John Steele     

 
ALSO PRESENT: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
  M. Aileen Bittner, City Clerk 
  William Nelson, Fire Chief 

Gerard Scherlinck, Police Captain 
George Zielinski, Police Sergeant 

  Jeanette Menig, Human Resources Specialist 
  Catherine Farrell, Attorney for TPOA   

  
  

B. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  
 
1. Approval of Minutes of Thursday, December 8, 2011 
 
Resolution #CSC-2012-01-001 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by Steele 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the Minutes of 
the Thursday, December 8, 2011 meeting as presented. 
 
Yes: All-3 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C. PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS:  None 
 
D. REPORTS:   

 
At the last meeting, the Act 78 Civil Service Commission discussed a hearing request that 
was sent by Attorney Catherine Farrell on behalf of the Troy Police Officers Association and 
Officer Todd Michael.  This correspondence was noted and filed, based on the lack of 
jurisdiction.  Subsequently, Attorney Farrell sent a letter renewing the request for a hearing, 
arguing that the Act 78 Civil Service Commission was vested with jurisdiction.   She was given 
the opportunity to address the Commission concerning her request.  She noted that this was 
the first opportunity to bring this matter to a full panel, after the recent appointment of 
Commissioner Steele.   Attorney Farrell argued that the Act 78 Civil Service Commission was 
vested with jurisdiction, since Officer Michael was constructively discharged.  Chairman 

bittnera
Text Box
N-01e



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Final January 19, 2012 
 

-2- 

McGinnis reviewed Article X Appeal Hearings Section 1, Rule C of the Act 78 Rules, which 
states “Employees may appeal disciplinary actions resulting in discharge, suspension or 
demotion to the Civil Service Commission.”  It was undisputed that Officer Michael has not 
been discharged, suspended, or demoted.  However, Attorney Farrell encouraged the 
Commission to extend this provision to allow for an appeal when an employee is 
constructively discharged. The City, through Captain Scherlinck, dispute that there has been a 
discharge or a constructive discharge.  In order to have jurisdiction, there would first need to 
be a factual determination that Officer Michael was constructively discharged.  The 
Commission members all expressed their belief that this decision would be beyond the scope 
of the Act 78 Civil Service Commission jurisdiction.  Commissioner Cannon inquired about 
whether there was a way to obtain jurisdiction if both parties consented, but there was 
consensus that even if the parties consented, there could be subsequent jurisdictional 
challenges.  The Commission members all expressed empathy for Officer Michael’s position, 
and a willingness to impartially decide an appeal if presented with a Court order finding that 
Officer Michael was discharged (actual or constructive), suspended or demoted.   Attorney 
Farrell argued that Officer Michael was being denied due process, and being forced to file a 
lawsuit in Circuit Court.  The Commission again reiterated that if a Circuit Court determined 
that there was a discharge, then the Commission would provide the requested hearing.  The 
Commission also agreed to make an official record of its decision through a resolution.        
 

Resolution to Direct the City Clerk to Send a Letter to Catherine Farrell Regarding Denial of 
Request for Hearing 
 
Resolution #CSC-2012-01-002 
Moved by McGinnis 
Seconded by Cannon 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby DENIES the appeal 
hearing request filed on behalf Officer Todd Michael based on the lack of jurisdiction and 
DIRECTS the City Clerk to send a letter to Catherine Farrell, Counsel for the Troy Police Officers’ 
Association, indicating the request for hearing is denied without prejudice.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission will HOLD the requested 
appeal hearing concerning Officer Todd Michaels UPON THE RECEIPT OF a Court Order 
declaring that Officer Michael has been discharged, suspended or demoted, or an order that 
otherwise provides the Commission with the authority to hear the case.      
 
Yes: All-3 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
1. Letter to Civil Service Commission from Catherine Farrell, Counsel for the Troy Police 

Officers’ Association, Regarding Request for Appeal Hearing of Grievance Involving Officer 
Todd Michael 

Noted and Filed 
 
E. OLD BUSINESS:  None 



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Final January 19, 2012 
 

-3- 

 
F. NEW BUSINESS: 

 
Fire Chief Nelson was present to answer any questions.  After the initial motion was made, he 
asked if the Commission could waive Article VI, Section 2, requiring psychological testing for the 
Fire Staff Technician position, especially since this position is only open to existing volunteer fire 
fighters.  The Commission was not able to waive the Rule for this position, but expressed a 
willingness to review Article VI at a subsequent meeting if requested.      

 
1. Approval of Eligible List for Fire Staff Technician 

 
Resolution #CSC-2012-01-003 
Moved by McGinnis 
Seconded by Cannon 
 
RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the eligible list for 
Fire Staff Technician as PRESENTED. 
 
Yes: All-3 
No: None  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
 
Ms. Farrell reiterated the position of the TPOA on the matter of the appeal hearing involving 
Officer Todd Michael. Chairman McGinnis reiterated that the Commission will hear the matter 
should the Court decide the Commission has jurisdiction. 
 
G. ADJOURNMENT:   
 
The Civil Service Commission (Act 78) meeting ADJOURNED at 8:15 AM. 
 
 
 
 
   
Donald E. McGinnis, Jr., Chairman  Aileen Bittner, City Clerk  

 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             FEBRUARY 13, 2012  

 Page 1 of 3 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, February 
13, 2012 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver 
Road.  Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 6:56 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
 PRESENT:  Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    Andrew Kaltsounis 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
  
 ALSO PRESENT: Sergeant George Zielinski  

Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Jesse Pappas, Student Representative 
EunJoo Scherlinck, Student Representative 

    Pat Gladysz 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of January 9, 2012 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2012-02-004 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the January 9, 2012 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be APPROVED. 
 
Yes:  7 
No:  0 
Absent: 0  
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
1. Marty Martin Enterprises, Inc. requests to transfer ownership of escrowed 

2010 Class C and SDM licensed business with Dance-Entertainment Permit, 
Food Permit, and 3 Bars Permit from United Bank and Trust; transfer location 
and governmental unit (MCL 436.1531(1) from 25750 Novi, Suite 104, Novi, MI 
48375, Oakland County, to 3651 Rochester Road, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland 
County {MLCC Req. #625705}.  This is the El Charro Restaurant. 

bittnera
Text Box
N-01f



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             FEBRUARY 13, 2012  

 Page 2 of 3 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were attorney Frank Palazzolo and 
shareholders Donna Martin and Jeff Martin. 
 
Mr. Palazzolo advised the Committee that this is a family-owned business with three 
other locations In Fraser, Macomb, and St. Clair Shores.  Since the business started 
in 1971, they have received only one sale-to-minor violation.  The 3,500 Troy facility 
seats approximately 90 people.  Current management has liquor experience and all 
employees will be trained on February 23, 2012.  There is a drive-up window, but no 
alcohol sales will be allowed at the window.  
 
Mr. Palazzolo also stated that the Martin family was not interested in the SDM license, 
the dance-entertainment permit, and the three bars permit.   
 
Sergeant Zielinski stated that the Police Department had nothing to report.  The Fire 
Department inspection approval is still pending. 
 
Resolution #LC2012-02-005 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
Marty Martin Enterprises, Inc. to transfer ownership of escrowed 2010 Class C 
License, Food Permit and Sunday Sales Permit, excluding the SDM licensed 
business, Dance-Entertainment Permit, and three Bars Permit from United Bank and 
Trust; transfer location and governmental unit (MCL 436.1531(1) from 25750 Novi, 
Suite 104, Novi, MI 48375, Oakland County, to 3651 Rochester Road, Troy, MI 
48083, Oakland County be APPROVED. 
 
Yes:  7 
No:  0 
Absent: 0 
 
 
 
Assistant City Attorney Susan Lancaster informed the Committee that the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission issued orders for each of the Smoker’s Express violations 
with graduated penalties.  The first violation resulted in a fine and the final violation 
resulted in the liquor license being revoked for five (5) business days beginning March 
9, 2012.  The business owner has been ordered by our District Court judge to spend 
five (5) days in the Oakland County Jail.  This sentence must be served sometime 
within the next 60 days.  He was also fined $2,000 and received a two-year probation. 
 
Mr. Hall questioned Ms. Lancaster about the City’s efforts to revoke the liquor license 
from Smoker’s Express.  She replied that the Revocation Hearing will be scheduled 
and the City Attorney will attend.   



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             FEBRUARY 13, 2012  

 Page 3 of 3 

 
Ms. Lancaster also advised the Committee that they could recommend to City Council 
that the City Attorney’s Office research the possibility of establishing an Ordinance 
that will restrict the delivery of beer and wine in Troy.  There was a brief discussion on 
this matter. 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:25 p.m. 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Draft February 14, 2012 
 

-1- 

A Meeting of the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) was held Tuesday, February 14, 2012, at 
Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road in the Lower Level Conference Room. 
Chairman/President McGinnis called the meeting to order at 7:30 AM. 
 
A. ROLL CALL: 
    
   PRESENT:  Chairman/President Donald E. McGinnis, Jr.   

 Commissioner David Cannon  
 Commissioner John Steele     

 
ALSO PRESENT: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  

Peggy Sears, Human Resources Director 
  M. Aileen Bittner, City Clerk 
  Gary Mayer, Police Chief   

George Zielinski, Police Sergeant 
Jeanette Menig, Human Resources Specialist 

   
B. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  
 
1. Approval of Minutes of Thursday, January 19, 2012 
 
Resolution #CSC-2012-02-004 
Moved by Steele 
Seconded by Cannon 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the Minutes of 
the Thursday, January 19, 2012 meeting as presented. 
 
Yes: All-3 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C. PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS:  None 
 
D. REPORTS:  None 

 
E. OLD BUSINESS:  None 
 
F. NEW BUSINESS: 

 
1. Approval of Eligible List for Police Sergeant 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #CSC-2012-02-005 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by Steele 
 

bittnera
Text Box
N-01g



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Draft February 14, 2012 
 

-2- 

RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the eligible list for 
Police Sergeant as PRESENTED. 
 
Yes: All-3 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chairman McGinnis requested a brief synopsis from Chief Mayer of the process involved in 
testing and promoting within the Police Department. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  None 
 
G. ADJOURNMENT:   
 
The Civil Service Commission (Act 78) meeting ADJOURNED at 7:39 AM. 
 
 
 
 
   
Donald E. McGinnis, Jr., Chairman  Aileen Bittner, City Clerk  

 
 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

 
February 14, 2012 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – January 2012  

 
 
Background 
Resolution #2004-02-075 established the auction fee of 5% and provided approval to use BidCorp with the 
provision that other on-line auction service options would be considered.  BidNet moved forward and 
implemented an on-line surplus auction service for the MITN System (Michigan Inter-governmental Trade 
Network), which can be accessed through the City of Troy home web page.  MITN is the official e-procurement 
website used by the City for posting bids, tabulations, quotations, and award information. Farmington Hills, 
Michigan was the lead agency for the bid process for an on-line auction website.  It was a Purchasing goal to 
have one e-procurement website operational for all functions. 
 
In compliance with Resolution #2004-02-075, final reporting is being presented for, one (1) 1989 Spartan Darley 
Pumper auctioned on-line through BidNet, the City’s e-procurement website, from January 1, 2012 and closed 
by January 13, 2012.   
 
The sale of surplus property is a statutory requirement of the Purchasing Department. (Chapter 7, Sec 8)   
 
Recommendation 
This agenda item reports final results of January 2012 auctions to City management. No action is required. 
 
Funding Considerations -  
Final sale amounts and fees are listed below:     
DESCRIPTION PROCEEDS  NET INCOME 
1989 Spartan Darley Pumper    $             5,609.00  

   

 FEES:  
5%  Fee             ($ 280.45)  
Sales Tax (None on Vehicle):  Tax Exempt. $                  0.00  

   

   $      5,328.55
 
G:\Purchasing\Auction - Reports\ Report - Auction Report - BidNet - January 2012 - Miscellaneous.doc 

bittnera
Text Box
N-02a







 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

 
February 14, 2012 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Final Reporting – Greater Detroit Auto Auction Services – Auctions for calendar year 2011  
 

 
Background 
Resolution #2010-09-193-J-6 provided approval to use Greater Detroit Auto Auction with the provision that the 
MITN surplus action website would continue to serve as a viable option when in the City’s best interest.  The 
resolution established a set flat fee schedule based on vehicle sales and towing.  The flat fee schedule rate for 
a vehicle that sells for less than $10,000.00 is $85.00 sales fee and $90.00 towing fee (if needed).        
 
Final reporting is being presented for the following vehicles and heavy equipment auctioned through Greater 
Detroit Auto Auction from January 1, 2011 – December 31, 2011:   
 
NOTE:  all individual items sold for less than $10,000 each.   
 
Description:   Disposal Date 
2002 Ford Explorer 4WD 2/05/2011
2007 Chevrolet 1/2 Ton; 2001 Dodge Dakota; 2000 Chevrolet Cargo Van; 1969 Ford Tractor; 2004 
Pontiac Grand Prix   3/26/2011
2004 Ford Exploxer 4WD 4/02/2011
1993 Thomas Saftliner Bus;  1998 Silva Tri-Axle Trailer;  1997 John Deere Mower 1145;  1999 John 
Deere Mower 1145;  2007 Ford Crown Vic  5/14/2011
1977 Lafrance Tele Squirt;  2007 Ford Crown Vic;  2008 Ford Crown Vic  6/04/2011
1977 Case Tractor  6/18/2011
1978 GMC RTS 2 BUS 7/02/2011
1999 GMC Cargo Van;  2003 Chevrolet Van 8 PSG  7/09/2011
2001 Chrysler Sebring;  2002 Dodge Stratus;  2007 Ford Expedition 4WD  8/27/2011
2000 Chevrolet Malibu;  2002 Chrysler Sebring  9/10/2011
2003 Chevrolet Van 8 PSG;  1999 GMC Cargo Van;  2005 Chevrolet  1/2 Ton;  1994 Ford 12-Yard 
Dump;  2007 Ford Crown Vic;  2004 Ford Crown Vic   10/29/2011
2002 Pontiac Grand Prix;  2006 Nissan Altima   11/05/2011
2003 Chevrolet Tahoe;  2007 Chevrolet 1/2 Ton 11/12/2011
2003 Dodge 1/2 Ton  12/10/2011

 
The sale of surplus property is a statutory requirement of the Purchasing Department. (Chapter 7, Sec 8)   
 
Recommendation 
This agenda item reports final result of the January 1, 2011 – December 31, 2011 auctions provided through 
Greater Detroit Auto Auction to City management. No action is required. 
 
 
 
 
 

bittnera
Text Box
N-02b



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
February 14, 2012 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Final Reporting – Greater Detroit Auto Auction Services – Auctions for calendar year 2011 

Funding Considerations -  
Final sale amounts and fees are listed below:     
DESCRIPTION PROCEEDS  NET INCOME 
Vehicles, Tractors, Trailers, Mowers, Fire Apparatus, etc.            $192,200.00   

   

 FEES:  
Auction Fee:   Sales Fee Only             ($ 595.00)   
                        Sales Fee and Towing          ($ 5,075.00)   
Sales Tax (None on Vehicle):  Tax Exempt. $                  0.00  

   

   $      186,530.00
 
G:\Purchasing\Auction - Reports\ Report - Auction Report – Greater Detroit Auction – February 2012 – Vehicles.com 









bittnera
Text Box
N-02c































 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 

Date:             February 14, 2012          
 
To:   Mayor and City Council     
  
From:  John Szerlag, City Manager 

Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
  Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
  Nino Licari, City Assessor 
  Glenn Lapin, Economic Development Specialist  
    
Subject: Tax Abatement Policy 
 
 
Per the request of Mayor Janice Daniels, information regarding Troy’s current policy on tax 
abatement is being provided to all City Council.  Attached is a copy of the City of Troy P.A. 198 
Industrial Facilities Tax Exemption (Tax Abatement) Guidelines along with a list of current program 
participants. 
 
The State of Michigan’s Public Act 198 of 1974, the Industrial Facilities Tax Exemption Act, is one of 
the oldest and most widely used tax incentive programs in Michigan.  Prompted by declining 
investment in industrial facilities through the 1960’s, P.A. 198 was passed in an effort to help retain 
the State’s manufacturing jobs and encourage new investment.    
 
P.A. 198 is the only locally approved Troy tax abatement program currently in place. The program 
objective is to increase employment opportunities, diversify and stabilize the tax base, reduce 
economic obsolescence, provide homogeneous industrial areas, encourage expansion, provide for 
improved public facilities, encourage attractive and viable building sites, and enhance our economic 
development tools to attract and retain businesses.   
 
PA 198 allows companies to receive approximately a 50% reduction in their anticipated new real or 
personal property tax liability for up to 12 years based upon the locally established criteria.  The 
applicant must meet two of the three following criteria: 1) will create more than 10 jobs; 2) has a real 
and/or personal property investment of at least $750,000; 3) owns the underlying real property or has 
a lease for the underlying property for a minimum term of 5 years.  The Application fee is 2% of the 
estimated personal property taxes abated or the actual cost of processing the application, whichever 
is less.  Two years after the December 31 abatement approval, the applicant will supply the City 
Assessor with a letter confirming that purchases, employment numbers, and/or renovations are 
complete.  If the figures have not been reached, the abatement may be cancelled or reduced. 
 
In summary, tax incentives/abatements have been used extensively throughout Michigan and the 
U.S. to help level the playing field for business site decisions.  Many companies use consultants to 
facilitate the tax abatement request.  The P.A. 198 Industrial Facilities Tax Exemption is currently 
offered in Troy.  Each request for abatement through P.A. 198 comes before City Council for approval 
or denial. 

bittnera
Text Box
N-02d



 

 

CITY OF TROY 
P.A. 198 INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES TAX 

EXEMPTION (TAX ABATEMENT)  
GUIDELINES 

 
A company that is in the planning phase of a major business attraction 
or expansion project that will include a capital investment in real and/or 
personal property may be eligible for a P.A. 198 Industrial Facilities 
Tax Exemption (tax abatement).  Established by the State of Michigan, 
P.A. 198 tax exemptions allow companies to receive approximately a 
50% reduction in their anticipated new real or personal property tax 
liability.  Troy City Council has adopted the following criteria to 
establish eligible applications for consideration of a real and/or 
personal property tax abatement. 
 
POLICY ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA: 
 

1.  An Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) tax 
abatement shall not be granted until there is compliance with 
MCL 207.559; and  

 
2.  Any real and/or personal property tax abatement at a minimum 

must be revenue neutral to the City of Troy.  
 

3.  Leasehold property shall not qualify for an IFEC tax abatement 
unless applicant is responsible for payment of the property 
taxes, and can demonstrate timely payment of property taxes 
upon the City’s request; and 

 
4.  An IFEC tax abatement shall not be issued for a period or term 

exceeding 12 years; and 
 

5.  An IFEC tax abatement shall not be issued unless an Applicant 
meets two of the three criteria listed below: 

 will create more than 10 jobs  
 has a real and/or personal property investment of at least 

$750,000.00  
 owns the underlying real property or has a lease for the 

underlying property for a minimum term of 5 years 
 

 
APPLICATION PROCESS: 
 
Once a company has determined that it meets the minimum criteria for 
consideration of a tax abatement, then a company may begin the 
process of formally applying for the IFEC. The process is as follows: 

City of Troy 

Tax Abatement 
Statement of 

Purpose 

 
 
WHEREAS, The City of 
Troy has the economic 
objective of:  
 
 increasing 

employment 
opportunities,  

 diversifying and 
stabilizing the tax 
base of the 
community,  

 reducing economic 
obsolescence,  

 providing 
homogenous 
industrial areas,  

 encouraging 
expansion,  

 providing for 
improved public 
facilities,   

 encouraging 
attractive, viable 
building sites and  

 enhancing our 
economic 
development tools to 
attract and retain 
businesses 

 
 

 



 

 

 
1.  Letter of Intent submitted on Applicant’s letterhead to the City Assessor (purchases 

made after the Letter of Intent is submitted may then be eligible for Tax Abatement.  No 
purchases made before the submittal are eligible). 
 

2. Complete Michigan Department of Treasury Form 1012 (Rev 4-06) 

Include with the form:  

a. Detailed list of personal property to be purchased including anticipated 

dates of purchase and cost 

b. Cost Sheet for anticipated improvements in real property 

c. Lease Agreement showing building terms and applicants’ tax liability (if 

applicable) 

3. Submit application and attachments to City Assessor 

4. City Council Public Hearings are scheduled 

5. City Council establishment of the District and approval of the IFEC 

6. Resolution submitted to State Tax Commission for final approval and issuance of 
certificates 
 

7. December 31st of the year the certificate is awarded – the projected investment must be 
complete within two years. 

 
LENGTH OF THE TAX ABATEMENT: 
 
Troy City Council has approved the use of the following matrix to calculate the length of an IFEC 
tax abatement, where the increase in the number of jobs created will increase the term of the 
IFEC abatement, and similarly the increase in the personal property investment and the 
ownership/lease conditions on the real property will increase the term of the IFEC abatement: 
 

Tax Abatement Matrix for Real and Personal Property 
Categories 

Job Creation Building Terms 
RP and/or PP 

Investment 
10 - 24 1 year Own 4 years  $ 750,000  1 year 
 
25 - 49 2 years Lease    $ 2,000,000  2 years 
 
50 - 99 3 years 5 year 1 Year  $ 5,000,000  3 years 
 
100 - 149 4 years 6 - 9 year 2 years  $ 10,000,000  4 years 
 
150 - 199 5 years 10 + year 4 years  $ 20,000,000  5 years 
 
200 + 6 years         



 

City of Troy | Updated August 25, 2010  3 

 

Must meet two of the three criteria 
 

Example: 
Company A is planning to lease R&D space for their new high tech facility.  The company will 
sign a 5 year lease and will purchase $4 million in new equipment and computers.  The 
company will create 100 jobs with this investment. 
 

Therefore, the company would be eligible to receive: 
4 years – (jobs created) PLUS 
1 year – (building terms) PLUS 
2 years – (personal property investment) 
7 years total for personal property tax abatement 

 
 
TAX ABATEMENT APPLICATION FEE: 
 
The Troy City Council has authorized the implementation of an application fee equal to 2% of 
the estimated personal property taxes abated under the terms of the IFEC tax abatement, or the 
actual costs of processing the application, whichever is less.  The City of Troy will not charge or 
collect any other fees for the application, in keeping with MCL 207.555 (3).  
 
 
REQUIREMENTS AFTER TAX ABATEMENT IS APPROVED: 
 
By the December 31 date that is 2 years after the December 31 of the year that the abatement 
is approved, the applicant will supply the City Assessor with a Letter confirming that the 
purchases, employment numbers, and/or renovations are complete.  If these figures have not 
been reached, a letter of explanation must be submitted to the City Assessor, for review by City 
Council, which may then cancel the abatement, or offer a new abatement with reduced values 
and years. 
 
 
 
 
For assistance with your business attraction and retention needs, please contact the City 
Manager’s Office at 248.524.3330.  For assistance with the IFEC process and application, 
please contact the City Assessor’s Office at 248.524.3311. 
 



Parcel ID S.D. Cert #
New   
(1/2 
rate)

Repla
ce 
(full 
rate)

SET Start End Company Address 2012 A/V 2012 C/V 2012 T/V

88-IP-03-100-085 260 2003-085 X 0 12/30/03 12/30/15 Behr America 2700 Daley

88-IP-07-100-256 230 2007-256 X 6.00 12/21/07 12/30/19 Kostal 350 Stephenson

88-IP-07-200-350 260 2007-350 X 6.00 12/31/07 12/30/19 LMS NA 5755 New King 142,450 142,450 142,450

88-IP-08-200-036 268 2008-036 X 0 12/31/08 12/30/20 Seco Tools 2805 Bellingham

88-IP-08-100-094 750 2008-094 X 6.00 12/31/08 12/30/13 Intern'l Auto 750 - 800 Chicago

88-IP-08-300-144 750 2008-144 X 6.00 12/31/08 12/30/20 Republic Apt 1889 Larchwood

88-IP-08-100-363 260 2008-363 X 6.00 12/31/08 12/30/20 EcoMotors 1055 W Sq Lake 0 0 0 revoked 
11/21/2011

88-IP-08-100-507 260 2008-507 X 6.00 12/31/08 12/30/16 Faurecia 2350 Meijer 0 0 0 revoked 
12/19/2011

88-IP-08-400-506 260 2008-506 X 3.00 12/31/08 12/30/20 Pro Metal 2341 Alger

88-IP-08-500-508 750 2008-508 X 6.00 12/31/08 12/30/20 Tepel Bros. 1725 John R

88-IP-09-100-231 260 2009-231 X 6.00 12/31/09 12/30/15 X-Ray Ind 1961 Thunderbird

88-IP-09-100-393 260 2009-393 X 6.00 12/31/10 12/31/15 Axle Tech 1400 Rochester

88-IP-10-100-389 260 2010-389 X 6.00 12/31/10 12/31/22 Witzenmann 1201 Stephenson

260 X 6.00 12/31/10 Metro Tech 1462 E Big Beaver

260 X 12/31/10 Sulzer Metco 1972 Meijer

260 X 12/31/10 Meritor Heavy 2135 W Maple

750 X 12/31/10 Magna PT 1932 Technology

City of Troy - Assessing Department

New Facility 1/2 Rate Listing
2012 I.F.T. Roll



Parcel ID S.D. Cert #
New   
(1/2 
rate)

Repla
ce 
(full 
rate)

SET Start End Company Address 2012 A/V 2012 C/V 2012 T/V

City of Troy - Assessing Department

New Facility 1/2 Rate Listing
2012 I.F.T. Roll

Total All 142,450 142,450 142,450
230 0 0 0
260 #REF! 142,450 142,450
268 0 0 0
750 0 0 0

Check Total #REF! 142,450 142,450

88-IR-10-100-174 260 2010-174 X 6.00 12/31/10 12/31/22 Axle Tech 1400 Rochester 1,297,620 1,167,280 1,167,280

1/2 Rate Summary

Replacement Facility  Full Rate Listing



bittnera
Text Box
N-03a



bittnera
Text Box
N-03b



bittnera
Text Box
N-03c



bittnera
Text Box
N-03d



bittnera
Text Box
N-03e



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:              February 14, 2012              
 
To:   Mayor and City Council     
  
From:  John Szerlag, City Manager 

Mark Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 

  Glenn Lapin, Economic Development Specialist 
 
Subject: Economic Development Update Information 
 
 
 
On February 10, 2012, Mayor Janice Daniels met with John Szerlag, Cindy Stewart, and Glenn Lapin 
to discuss Troy’s economic development strategies.  The conversation focused on the business 
development strategies that have been implemented by the City along with an overview of the new 
economic gardening initiative.  These strategies are being used to help create an environment for 
investment in the City of Troy.  The following attachment, which describes the strategies discussed, is 
being shared with City Council for information purposes.  The attachment includes the following 
documents: 
 

 “City of Troy Business Development Initiatives Summary Timeline” 
 
 “City of Troy New Business Checklist” 
 

 “A New Approach for a New Economy:  Planting Troy’s Economic Garden” 
 

At the February 10, 2012 meeting mentioned above, Mayor Janice Daniels asked about the number 
of businesses located in the Troy Downtown Development Authority (DDA) district along with a 
question regarding the Somerset Collection parking structure.  The following responses are being 
shared with City Council for information purposes: 
 

 Based on current assessment records, there are 2,048 businesses located in the Troy DDA.  
These businesses represent 231 separate properties. 

 
 The parking structure is owned by the DDA, and is leased to the Somerset Collection.  This 

lease does not expire until 2020, and therefore, although the parking structure is valued at 
approximately $4 million as of the end of the lease, it is currently a restricted asset.  

bittnera
Text Box
N-05



1 

 

CITY OF TROY BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVES SUMMARY TIMELINE 

The City of Troy has adopted several major strategies that have positively impacted business 

development efforts in the community.  New strategies have been implemented resulting in the 

streamlining of building and permitting processes, flexible and user‐friendly planning 

documents, and governmental department efficiencies.  Positive feedback has been received 

on the new building/permitting process, as 98% of users have indicated their satisfaction 

(Source:  Safebuilt Building Department Services Survey).   

From an economic development standpoint, a “white paper” was developed in October 2011 to 

focus on helping existing Troy businesses grow.  Our new Economic Development Specialist is 

forming an external advisory committee to help guide an “economic gardening” program.  This 

program works with existing businesses (particularly second stage companies) to identify what 

they need in order to grow and then provide the information, infrastructure and connections to 

address those needs. 

Regarding marketing, Troy contracted with Marketing Associates in October 2011 to review our 

marketing materials and website and make recommendations for improvement.  Troy is 

featured prominently in key local business development publications such as Automation 

Alley’s monthly Xology (circulation 20,000), Oakland County’s annual Prosper (circulation 

75,000), and Metro Detroit’s annual Asource (relocation information).  New businesses are 

featured in the quarterly Troy Today publication.  In addition, text is currently being finalized 

for the 2012 Economic Resource Guide; a one‐page checklist was recently completed to assist 

in the launching of new businesses; and the City Manager’s monthly Business Roundtable 

meetings will commence again in January of 2012. 

The following provides a chronological summary of some of the key initiatives that impact 

business development.  Source links have been added where appropriate. 

Governmental Efficiencies 

 Zucker Report ‐ January 2008 (http://www.troymi.gov/Planning/ZuckerReport.pdf) 

Development Approval/Permit Process 

 Planning Department Restructuring – July 2010 

 Building Department Restructuring – July 2010 

 

Planning & Economic Development Tools 

 Big Beaver Corridor Study – June 2006 

(http://www.birchlerarroyo.com/Clients/troy.htm) 

 Vision 2020 – October 2006 (http://www.troymi.gov/futures/) 



2 

 

 New Master Plan – October 2008 

(http://www.troymi.gov/Planning/MasterPlanProcess/CityofTroyMasterPlan2008.pdf) 

 Big Beaver Design Guidelines – March 2011 

(http://www.troymi.gov/Planning/BigBeaverDesignGuidelines.pdf) 

 Updated Zoning Ordinance – April 2011 

(http://www.troymi.gov/Planning/Adopted_Troy_ZoningOrdinance04282011.pdf) 

 

Economic Development 

 Economic Gardening “White Paper” – October 2011 (copy attached) 

 New Economic Development Specialist Hired – November 2011 

 Internal Economic Gardening Committee Formed – November 2011 

 External Economic Gardening Committee Formed – January 2012  

 Economic Gardening Strategy Update – January 2012  

 2012 City Manager’s Monthly Business Roundtable Meetings – January 2012 Start 

 New Business Checklist – January 2012 

 Economic Development Report to Community – Date TBD 

 

Marketing  

 Marketing Associates Hired – October 2011 

Review of Marketing Materials/Website 

 Current Publications Featuring Troy Business Development – Xology, Prosper, Troy 

Today, Asource – January 2012 and Ongoing 

 Economic Development Website Revisions – Started January 2012 

 Co‐Sponsor of Oakland Job Hub at Oakland University – February 2012 

 

 

2/07/12 

 

   

    



G.Lapin@troymi.gov
Economic Development Specialist

Brent Savidant - Planning Director

Get development approval SavidantB@troymi.gov

Building Inspection

S.Burns@troymi.gov

Steve Burns or Rick Kessler
248.524.3367

Determine if a building inspection is needed
Determine if proposal is permitted
Alterations of a building or property may require the submittal of 

248.524.3315,

Site Plan Review

Complete a pre-purchase walk-through inspection

City of Troy
New Business Checklist

Welcome to Troy, MI – Michigan’s premier address for business, retail and commerce!  With our ideal 
location, excellent City services and friendly business environment, you will find that Troy is a great place to 
start and grow your business.  To get you started, the following checklist has been prepared to assist you in 
launching your business.  You will find that Troy’s plan review, building, permitting and inspection processes 
are fast, efficient and user-friendly.  We look forward to serving you, and once again, welcome to Troy.

Please ContactWhat do you want to do?

Finding a Site for Purchase or Lease

Ensure your business is in compliance with Zoning Ordinance
Determine if Site Plan Review is required 248.524.3366

Find a site for lease or purchase
Schedule a pre-purchase/lease meeting

Glenn Lapin -

File an

Signs

  see EvansPM@troymi.gov

LicariLA@troymi.gov

www.oakgov.com

 For any additional questions, please contact Glenn Lapin (see above).

Occupancy Permit Application

RobertsDJ@troymi.gov

David Roberts -

Schedule a fire inspection 248.524.3419
Ensure the building and/or fire protection systems are adequate

Oakland County Health Division

248.524.3312,

248.524.3359,

Assistant Fire Chief/Fire Marshal       The Fire Department will contact you after review

Paul Evans - Zoning Specialist

Create a Personal Property Account
Nino Licari - City Assessor

Fire Safety

a Site Plan for review R.Kessler@troymi.gov

Other Important Contacts

www.oakgov.com/clerkrod
248.858.1280,

Determine if your business requires a sign permit,

contact the Oakland County Health Department
Food service establishments: 

County and State registries for assumed business names www.michigan.gov/lara

BittnerA@troymi.gov

Aileen Bittner - City Clerk
248.524.3317

Contact our City Clerk's Office for business license requirements

Assessments

For State of Michigan licensing requirements: 
http://michigan.gov/statelicensesearch

Ordinance Ch. 85

Business Licensing

http://www.troymi.gov/Planning/AdoptedZoningMap2011.pdf
http://www.troymi.gov/fire/permitApps/
http://www.troymi.gov/CodeAndCharter/CODE/CH085.pdf


605 S. Main Street, Ste. 1
Ann Arbor, MI  48104
(734) 662-2200
(734) 662-1935 Fax

A New Approach for a New Economy:
Planting Troy’s Economic Garden

October 26, 2011

ZONING
ORDINANCE

Prepared by: 



 2| Page
October 26, 2011

Economic Gardening: Growing Your Own Economy 

In today’s uncertain economy, municipalities across the Midwest, especially in Michigan, are challenged 
to retain and create jobs within their community.  As such, many communities are addressing these 
uncertain times with a greater focus on economic development.  As Troy is considering a renewed 
strategy on economic development, two questions arise 1).  What does “economic development” 
mean to Troy and; 2). Considering the existing relatively limited resources, how can Troy promote 
new economic activity resulting in jobs and an increased tax base in order to create cost effective 

economic growth and sustainability? 

I.  What is Economic Gardening?

The traditional approach to economic development placed a focus on seeking out and attracting the relocation 
of large companies.  While some communities applying this “hunter and gatherer” approach have had limited 
success, this approach has shown significant limitations including 1). expense; 2). the layout of substantial 
financial incentives without the sure guarantee of success; 3). the requirement of a significant amount of 
time to see a positive return on such investment; 4). inefficiently leveraging a community’s existing assets; 5) 
the cost of providing tax abatement and incentives reduces tax revenues.  The economic crisis of the past ten 
(10) years has shown that a recalibration of the traditional approach to business development is needed.  

A more successful method of economic development consists of a “Grass Roots” approach.  Appropriately 
labeled as “Economic Gardening”, this approach encourages local governments to focus on retaining and 
“cultivating” local ‘second stage’ businesses in their community by investing in and promoting existing 
community assets and infrastructure.  A large company that was not founded in Troy may be able to survive 
in Troy for a short period of time, but if the economic climate is not suitable or the foundation for potential 
growth is weak or unstable, there is no guarantee 
that the company will have a prolonged survival.  
The emphasis should instead be on cultivating and 
improving the foundation for existing Troy companies 
that have already shown growth. These companies 
already have firm roots in the community and may 
ultimately be the key to stimulating the economy. 

Characteristics of Economic Gardening

The concept of Economic Gardening was pioneered 
in the late 1980’s by the City of Littleton, Colorado. 
Many communities have configured Economic 
Gardening cultivation techniques around three 
critical themes, which were developed in the Littleton 
model: Infrastructure, Connectivity, and Market 
Information.

• Infrastructure – building, promoting, and 
supporting the development of community 
assets essential to commerce and overall quality 
of life. Examples include roads, education, cultural amenities, and placemaking. 

• Connectivity – improving the interaction and exchange among business owners and critical resources 
providers. Examples include industry trade groups, public sector supporters, Chamber of Commerce, 
business associations, and academic institutions.

• Information – access to competitive intelligence on markets, customers, and competitors comparable 
to the resources historically available only to large firms.

4th 

3rd 

1st

2nd 
Sales $750k to $10m• 
10-99 employees• 
Intend to grow• 



October 26, 2011
 3 | Page

Economic Gardening: Growing Your Own Economy 

The driving forces behind Economic Gardening are innovating and adapting community assets, efficiently 
providing the necessary services and infrastructure, and promoting the most logical choices for business 
growth and development. Improving accessibility, convenience, and efficiency in the three main tenets 
(Infrastructure, Connectivity, Information), particularly with “Second Stage” businesses can make dramatic 
improvements to the community’s viability, sustainability, and economic growth trends.   The success of 
Economic Gardening methods is entirely dependent on a positive and close relationship between city 
government and business owners. Open and consistent communication between the local business community 
and local government is necessary in order to fully understand the needs of the business community and 
what assets are being provided by the local government.  

What it is…

• The public serves (3) major roles:  information, infrastructure, and connections, including a strong 
foundation of technological assets and resources.

• A focus on growth companies, especially Stage II (10-99 employees).

• The use of sophisticated corporate tools:
- Database searching
- Geographic Information Systems
- Search Engine Optimization
- Web marketing
- Social media and research tools
- Network mapping

• The use of cutting edge scientific theories:
- Complexity science
- Network theory
- Temperament
- Systems thinking
- Core strategy analysis
- Getting things done in the public arena

• A focus on front end, strategic issues of business:
- Market dynamics
- Marketing
- Teams
- Finance

• Driven by innovation rather than the cheapest place to do business.

• Dependent on a highly skilled, elite Economic Gardening staff working in an iterative manner with 
business owners.

• An Economic Gardening organization is as entrepreneurial as the companies with which it works.

What it is not…

• Recruiting

• Standard business assistance (keeping books, buying insurance, succession plans)



 4| Page
October 26, 2011

Economic Gardening: Growing Your Own Economy 

• BRE (business retention and expansion)

• After hours networking

• An annual business climate survey

• A financing program

• A buy local program

• A business appreciation dinner

• A “local bucks” program

• Counseling

• Consulting

Economic gardening allows communities to focus on their unique assets and leverage those assets to promote 
growth.  Economic Gardening succeeds by creating an environment that nurtures entrepreneurs --- in other 
words, creating an environment of investment!
 

II. Why Apply the Principles of Economic Gardening?

Economic Gardening is an approach that looks 
to cultivate entrepreneurial activity which 
already exists within the community.  The case 
for exploring your own economic backyard is 
bolstered by growing body of national research 
showing small businesses create the vast majority 
of new jobs:

• An estimated two-thirds (66%) of net private 
sector jobs created in the last twenty-five 
(25) years were by small firms (a small firm 
is defined as one that employs fewer than 
five hundred (500) employees).

• Small firms employ about half (50%) of the 

Your community’s Investment Environment revolves 
around three spheres which you have the ability to 
influence

CreatingPartnering

Stimulating

INVESTMENT



October 26, 2011
 5 | Page

Economic Gardening: Growing Your Own Economy 

total private sector work force.

• Small firms that employ from one (1) to eighteen (18) employee create the most net new jobs relative to 
their share of total employment.  (Source:  David Birch, MIT).

National research is supported by the Michigan based Edward Lowe Foundation which indicates that 
“second stage” companies (between ten (10) and ninety-nine (99) employees) created 137,249 jobs in Michigan 
between 1993 and 2007, while companies employing five hundred (500) or more lost 257,585 jobs.

III. Why is Economic Gardening a Good Strategy for Troy?

Troy has an abundance of assets that were instrumental in the growth it experienced over the past four (4) 
decades.  As a result, it is home to a number of large financial, health care, automotive and engineering 
firms.  The City also has a number of second stage companies that could be ripe candidates for growth. The 
US Economic Census (2007) reported that Troy had 925 companies in professional, scientific and technical 
services employing 16,536 people for an average of 18 employees per establishment.  A majority of these 
companies would be considered second stage.

Another significant asset is that Troy is home to Automation Alley which is receiving statewide, national and 
international recognition for its approach to economic development.  Automation Alley is one of the regional 
organizations that is being touted by the Governor to provide expanded economic development assistance.

Levering the existing assets of Automation Alley to support and grow the existing 2nd stage companies in 
Troy is an example of the application of Economic Gardening principles.  

IV. Action Items

Continuing the relationship between the City and its top-tier employers is strongly recommended.  Such 
relationships will not be sacrificed should the City pursue the economic gardening strategy.  In fact, top 
business should been engaged in both advising and nurturing the grass root entrepreneurs and lending 
support to the effort.

However, with limited resources, the City is recommended to follow an economic development strategy 
focused on businesses that are capable of growth.  To accomplish this, the City should spend the next two 



 6| Page
October 26, 2011

Economic Gardening: Growing Your Own Economy 

(2) – three (3) months developing a Core Strategy.  Input in this strategy should be sought from organizations 
outside City government including Automation Alley, Oakland County, the Troy Chamber and educational 
institutions.

Core Strategy 

The Core Strategy needs to address the following key elements:

A. A clear understanding and commitment to meeting the needs of growth oriented companies – no matter 
how big or small.  Part of the Core Strategy needs to identify those companies that have a desire and 
ability to grow; 

B. A commitment to a long-term strategy that is represented by economic gardening strategies in order to 
create on sustainable economic base; 

C. A better understanding of the entrepreneurial climate and the things needed to nurture it; 

D. A commitment to collaboration whether it is Oakland County, Automation Alley, the Chamber or any 
organization that can help business growth; and 

E. Finding champions, preferably outside City government.

Action Steps to Formulate Core Strategy

The following steps to create a Core Strategy, and current status of each step, are as follows:

1. Identify Core Team – Three (3) to five (5) individuals to make up the Core Team.  During this period, 
we would suggest the Team be coordinated by CWA until an individual is hired as the economic 
development (gardening) specialist.  

 Status: in progress

2. Identify and Map Community Assets – Key assets that would be attractive to business ranging from 
education and culture to business resources will be identified and, where appropriate, mapped.  In 
addition, internal assets of the City need to be identified.  See appendix for the detailed Asset Inventory 
Report.  

 Status: completed

3. Identify and Interview Local and Regional Collaborators – Automation Alley has already been 
mentioned.  Other groups could include Oakland County Planning and Economic Development, Troy 
Chamber, Walsh College, and others.  The focus of these interviews should be to ask: 

• What role should the City play in expanding business and employment in the City?

• How can you help us?

• How can we help you?



October 26, 2011
 7 | Page

Economic Gardening: Growing Your Own Economy 

Richard K. Carlisle, AICP, PCP
Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc.

Appendix

-Troy Community Asset Inventory Report

 Status: in progress

4. Conduct Focus Group Discussion with Potential Stakeholders – The best way for the City to determine 
what businesses need to grow is to ask them.  A select group of business owners will be identified 
and interviewed.  Troy’s City Manager has been meeting with key business leaders.  However, in 
collaboration with other City staff, a more defined and robust focus group discussion process should 
be established.  

 Status: incomplete

5. Create (Acquire) Database of Troy Businesses – Database should be organized both functionally what 
they do) and number of employees.  We would recommend the County be asked to assist.  

 Status: incomplete



Troy Community Asset 
Inventory Report

ZONING
ORDINANCE

605 S. Main Street, Ste. 1
Ann Arbor, MI  48104
(734) 662-2200
(734) 662-1935 Fax

Prepared by: 



 2| Page
October 26, 2011

Troy Asset Inventory Report 

Troy

I.  Community Asset Inventory

A.  Community Understanding

The City of Troy is located in southern Oakland County - one of the most prosperous counties in the United 
States. Troy, 34.3 square miles in area, is approximately 14 miles from downtown Detroit and situated 
between the cities of Pontiac and Royal Oak. In close proximity to Rochester Hills, Auburn Hills, Bloomfield 
Township, Sterling Heights, and Birmingham, Troy is centrally located within metropolitan Detroit and 
within a reasonable distance of several Midwestern and international population and economic hubs:

 A.   Downtown Detroit, MI (14 miles)  
             B.    Windsor, ON (20 miles)
 C.   Flint, MI (40 miles) 
 D.   Ann Arbor, MI (45 miles)
 E    Toledo, OH (80 miles)   
 F.    Lansing, MI (90 miles)
 G.   Grand Rapids, MI (150 miles)  
 H.   Cleveland, OH (150 miles)
 I.    Toronto, ON (260 miles)   
  J.    Chicago, IL (280 miles)

Figure 1: Troy’s Location (source:GeoBatch.com)



October 26, 2011
 3 | Page

Troy Asset Inventory Report 

City of Troy Community Profile: 2010 Census 

Troy’s demographics of a highly-educated, family-oriented population are highly sought after characteristics 
of business expansion and growth. 

City of Troy Community Profile: 2010 Census
City Population: 80,980
Median Age 41.8
Average Household Size 3.14
Occupied Household Units 30,703
Median Household Value $262,400
Educational Attainment (2008) 50% had obtained a bachelor’s degree or higher

 
B.  Business Climate

Troy holds many key advantages to starting a successful Economic Gardening campaign. An Economic 
Analysis Report published by the City of Troy in 2008 listed Troy as the 12th largest city in Michigan and the 
second-largest city in the state based on total property value1. Troy is home to several Fortune 500 businesses 
including Flagstar Bank, Delphi, Meritor, and Kelly Services, all of which are located along one of three world-
class business districts: the Northfield parkway, the Big Beaver corridor, and the Maple Road corridor.  

The City of Troy’s top employers include: 
 •   Ameritech International Publishing
 •   Beaumont Hospital
 •   Delphi Corp.
 •   Flagstar Bank
 •   Kelly Services Inc.
 •   Bank of America
 •   City of Troy Government
 •   Troy School Districts
 •   U.S. Postal Service

In addition to the aforementioned large employers, the city of Troy has a great growth potential for smaller 
‘second stage’ businesses. In 2007, The US Economic Census reported that Troy had 925 companies in the 
desired fields of professional, scientific and technical services employing 16,536 people for an average of 18 
employees per establishment2. The development and growth of these second stage businesses are essential 
to the future economic, residential, and physical design trends of Troy. 

Part of the lure for business development is not only the various business incentives offered, such as Hi-
Tech Personal Property Tax Abatement Program, Economic Development Corp., Brownfield Redevelopment 
Authority and the Downtown Development Authority in the Big Beaver Corridor Area but also Automation 
Alley, a world class business development organization that provides services and support to businesses of 
1  http://troymi.gov/EconomicDevelopment/TroyProfileOaklandCounty.pdf
2  http://www.census.gov/



 4| Page
October 26, 2011

Troy Asset Inventory Report 

all size including businesses thinking about relocating to Michigan. 

Automation Alley

Automation Alley is Michigan’s largest technology business association.  
Automation Alley aims to increase economic growth in Southeast Michigan 
through a collaborative culture that focuses on workforce and business initiatives. 
Automation Alley has university partnerships with University of Michigan, 
Oakland University, Wayne State University, Walsh College and many more.  
Automation Alley directly serves the region which includes the City of Detroit 
and the counties of Genesee, Livingston, Macomb, Monroe, Oakland, St. Clair, 
Washtenaw and Wayne.   Automation Alley combines areas of research including 
manufacturing, technology, engineering, production, and marketing to help local 
business leaders create new opportunities within the community. The association 
also helps small and midsized businesses sell their products throughout the world 
and plays a vital role in attracting new businesses to Michigan.  Highlights of Automation Alley include3: 

More than 1,000 members across Southeast Michigan.• 
Conducted 13 trade missions to countries around the world with a total of more than $153 million • 
raised.
Invested over $6 million in seed fund investments to 29 start-up technology companies in Southeast  • 
Michigan
An alliance of five member-driven committees that assist the association in executing programming • 
and services.
An annual attendance of 10,000 people at scheduled seminars and meetings.• 
Proud recipient of the Presidential “E” Award for Exporting, the nation’s highest award to honor • 
exporters  
More than 300 media articles featuring or mentioning the association in 2009• 

City of Troy Downtown Development Authority (TDDA)

The Troy Downtown Development Authority (TDDA) engages in long-range planning for the ‘downtown’ 
area.  Traditional responsibilities held by the DDA include land acquisition and improvement, building 
construction, and public facilities improvement.  

3 http://www.automationalley.com/



October 26, 2011
 5 | Page

Troy Asset Inventory Report 

C.  Transportation

Access to the movement of goods and people is a key componet of business development.  A vibrant transportation 
system provides an important foundation from which to attract new business and make Troy an attractive place 
to live and work.

Non-Automobile Transit

While there over 364 miles of road that handle over 400,000 cars per day, the City of Troy has started to maximize 
non-automobile connectivity through the existing 500 miles of sidewalks and future pathways to emphasize 
alternative transportation and non-motorized vehicle usage.  

SMART Bus System

Oakland County has been served by the SMART Bus System since 1967. SMART is southeast Michigan’s only 
regional public transportation provider, offering convenient, reliable and safe transportation. SMART’s “fixed 
route” and “small bus services” have provide alternative transportation opportunities for its riders to connect 
them to employment, educational, and entertainment centers. SMART is supported by federal and state funding, 
local contributions and bus fares.

 
Figure 2: SMART Bus System Map serving Troy and Surronding Community (source: SMART)



 6| Page
October 26, 2011

Troy Asset Inventory Report 

SMART is on the forefront of job creation, safety, environmental stewardship, and practicality4:

SMART bus routes provide access to more than 75,000 businesses and 1.3 million jobs. • 
Approximately 2.5 million people live within a ¼ mile radius of a SMART bus route. • 
New SMART drivers receive nearly 250 hours of training including 200 hours of on-the-road training. • 
SMART buses receive preventative maintenance every 3,000 miles. • 
One SMART bus potentially eliminates 60 cars on the road. • 
Public transportation produces 95% less volatile carbon monoxide and about 50% as much carbon dioxide • 
and nitrogen oxide per passenger per mile. 
SMART recycles 600 tires, 600 gallons of anti-freeze and 28,890 gallons of oil annually. • 
All SMART buses are biodiesel powered. • 

Detroit Metro Airport (DTW)

Located less than 45 minutes from Troy, the 
Detroit Metropolitan Airport (DTW) serves 
over 36 million passengers a year making it 
the twelfth busiest airport of its kind in the 
United States and the twentieth busiest in the 
world. DTW is the largest international hub 
for Delta Airlines (5th largest airline carrier 
in the United States), and 2nd largest hub for 
Spirit Airlines. DTW’s 15 passenger airlines, 
including 6 foreign flag airlines, serve 160 
nonstop flight locations throughout the 
world5. According to a study by University 
of Michigan – Dearborn, DTW helped put 
more than 7.6 billion dollars into the U.S. 
economy in 2005. DTW employs over 18,000 
employees, and indirectly relates to an 
additional 70,000 jobs throughout the state 
of Michigan6. 

Oakland/Troy Airport 

Located in Troy, the Oakland/Troy Airport serves as the County’s ‘executive’ airport.  The airport’s convenient 
location in east central  Oakland County greatly benefits both business travelers and tourists using private, 
corporate and charter aircraft. 

4 Smartbus.org
5 http://www.metroairport.com/
6 http://www.metroairport.com/pdf/DTW_Economic_Impact_Report.pdf

Figure 4: Metro Airport Location Map 
(Source: metroairport.com)



October 26, 2011
 7 | Page

Troy Asset Inventory Report 

Oakland County International Airport (OCIA)

Located less than 30 minutes from Troy, the Oakland County International Airport (OCIA) serves Oakland 
County along with rest of Southeast Michigan. Designated as a “general aviation” airport, OCIA is the twelfth 
busiest airport of its kind in the world. OCIA serves 120,000 takeoffs and landings per year on average. Over 800 
aircraft are housed at OCIA, and more than 150 corporations use OCIA as their base airport. In addition, OCIA 
contributes over $150 million to the county’s economy each year7.

Coleman A. Young International Airport 

Located in Detroit, the Coleman A. Young International Airport is located less than 30 minutes from Troy.  Opened 
in 1927, the airport first served as Detroit’s only air carrier facility, and provided Detroiters with an opportunity 
to travel to cities throughout the North America. The airport is an international port of entry, and U.S. Customs/
Immigration provides services to arriving flights requiring customs clearance. In total, the Airport encompasses 
263 acres with two runways and associated taxiway systems and is operational 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. 
The airport houses 175 planes on base8.

Bishop International Airport

Located 45 minutes from Troy in Flint, the Bishop International Airport is the the third busiest airport in Michigan, 
In 2008, 1,050,813 passengers flew through Bishop Airport9. There are currently five commercial airlines flying 
in and out daily.  In addition to commercial and private airline operations, Flint’s Bishop International Airport 
is significant in the air cargo industry due to access two major interstates, one U.S. highway, and numerous rail 
lines.  A cargo hub is in development at Bishop Airport that is predicted to become a major benefit to the Flint-
area economy.

Troy Multi-Modal Transit Center (expected completion 2012) 

Expected to break ground next year, the Troy Multi-Modal Transit center will serve as a multi-modal transit 
center. Located near the intersection of Coolidge Highway and Maple Road the center would coordinate all 
existing transit options in the region, including Amtrak train service, SMART bus service, connections to local 
corporate and international airports, taxi, and black sedan service. The transit center is also planned as a regional 
transportation hub in the Detroit Regional Mass Transit plan currently being developed, and thus an additional 
level of bus service will be added directly linking this transit center with other transit hubs across the region.

7 http://www.oakgov.com/aviation/
8 www.detroitmi.govwww.detroitmi.gov/airport/
9 www.bishopairport.org



 8| Page
October 26, 2011

Troy Asset Inventory Report 

D.  Cultural and Recreational Assets

Troy offers a number of assets that help to promote the city’s image as a well-cultured, innovative, and active 
community. These cultural and economic assets play a vital role in maintaining the City of Troy’s appeal as a 
great place to live, work, and play.

Troy Public Library

When the Troy Public Library officially opened in 1971 at 510 W. Big Beaver Road, librarian Marguerite Hart 
wrote to dozens of prominent actors, politicians, authors and artists asking them to write a letter to the children 
of Troy about the importance of books and libraries. In total, Hart received 97 responses, including the likes 
of Ronald Reagan, Pat Nixon, Neil Armstrong, and Dr. Seuss, all of which can be displayed on the Library’s 
website, www.troylibrary.info. Today, the Troy Library has expanded to 40,000 square feet, serves 56,000 patrons 
and contains over 320,000 items.

Troy Museum and Historic Village

The Troy Museum and Historic Village “preserves and interprets the history and heritage of Troy and the region 
for its diverse community and provides a unique setting for life-long learning.” The museum consists of ten 
historic buildings and a village green, as well as a collection of nineteenth and early twentieth century artifacts. 

Park System

One of the most important physical assets of the City of Troy is its parkland.  The City of Troy has twenty parks 
and recreational facilities consisting of more than 880 acres. Additionally, twelve new parks are proposed in 
the City’s Park and Recreation Plan. Parks and recreational facilities are generally located in close proximity to 
single-family housing. Troy parks can be divided into three categories (Neighborhood Park, Community Park, 
and Special Use Facility), and vary in sizes and purposes. 

Neighborhood parks are the basic unit in a typical park system and serve as social gathering places and focal 
points for residential areas and are located a quarter mile to a half mile from residential areas. These types of 
parkland aim to promote walkability in residential neighborhoods are not typically segmented by non-residential 
roads. The City of Troy has eight neighborhood parks.  The largest of the neighborhood parks is “Sylvan Glen 
Lake Park.” Located on Rochester Road, between Square Lake Road and Long Lake Road, Sylvan Glen Lake 

Neighborhood Parks Acres Recreational Opportunities
Beach Road Park 10 Play Equipment, Ball Diamonds, Soccer Fields
Beaver Trail Park 7 Play Equipment, Asphalt Walking Trails, Picnic Area, Unpaved 

Nature Trails
Brinston Park 18 Tennis Courts, Basketball Courts, Play Equipment, Ball Diamonds, 

Soccer Fields, Picnic Areas, Pavilion
North Glen Park 10 N/A
Redwood Park 3 Basketball Courts, Play Equipment, Ball Diamonds, Picnic Areas, 

Pavilion
Schroeder Park 12 Asphalt Walking Trails, Soccer Fields
Sylvan Glen Lake Park 40 Asphalt Walking Trails, Soccer Fields, Picnic Areas, Unpaved 

Nature Trails, Natural Water Features



October 26, 2011
 9 | Page

Troy Asset Inventory Report 

Park features a 16 acre lake, a ten-acre wooded area completed with nature trails, and picnic tables.
Community parks are intended to serve the broader population of the community. Community parks are 
typically larger and offer more recreational opportunities. Firefighter Park is the largest of community parks and 
offers nine recreational facilities including sand volleyball courts, picnic areas, an 18-hole disc golf course, and 
a small lake. While, swimming and boating are prohibited on the lake, shore fishing is allowed.  The location of 
community parks are generally decided on a suitability basis. The City of Troy has six community parks:

Community  Parks Acres Recreational Opportunities
Boulan Park 53 Tennis Courts, Play Equipment, Asphalt Walking Trails, Ball 

Diamonds, Soccer Fields, Sand Volleyball Courts, Flag Football / 
Lacrosse Fields, Picnic Area, Pavilion, Concession Area

Firefighters Park 96 Play Equipment, Ball Diamonds, Soccer Fields, Sand Volleyball 
Courts, Flag Football / Lacrosse Fields, 18-hole Disc Golf, Picnic 
Area, Natural Water Features, Pavilion, Concession Area

Flynn Park 25 Play Equipment, Ball Diamonds, Concession Stands
Huber Park 20 Tennis Courts, Picnic Areas, Unpaved Nature Trails
Jaycee Park 45 Play Equipment, Ball Diamond,  Soccer Fields, Sand Volleyball 

Courts, Pavilion
Raintree Park 41 Play Equipment, Ball Diamond, Soccer Fields, Sand Volleyball 

Courts, Disc Golf, Picnic Area, Pavilion

Special Use Facilities are recreational facilities oriented more towards special uses like community centers, golf, 
swimming pool facilities, beaches, skate parks, and other specific types of recreational-oriented activities. 

Special Use Facility Acres Recreational Opportunities
Stage Nature Center / Troy Farm 100 Picnic Area, Unpaved Nature Trail, Natural Water 

Features
Sylvan Glen Golf Course 143 Natural Water Feature, Concession Areas, Rest Rooms, 

Drinking Water, 18-Hole Golf Course
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 200 Natural Water Feature, Concession Areas, 18-Hole Golf 

Course
Troy Family Aquatic Center 4 Play Equipment, Sand Volleyball Courts, Concession 

Areas, Swimming Pools, Skate Parks, Shuffleboard Courts, 
Bocce Ball Courts

Troy Community Center 35 Basketball Courts, Play Equipment, Asphalt Walking 
Trails, Ball Diamonds, Soccer Fields, Concession Areas, 
Restrooms, Swimming Pool, Gymnasium, Drinking Water, 
Skate Park



 10| Page
October 26, 2011

Troy Asset Inventory Report 

Stage Nature Center / Troy Farm

The Stage Nature Center offers indoor and outdoor nature related education programs. The Stage Nature Center 
includes the main Nature Center facility,  which includes approximately two miles of nature trails, a handicap 
accessible paved trail, a pond, picnic areas, and a large wooded area.   In addition, the Troy Farm, a historic 
farm is located in the northern portion of the Stage Nature Center, and features a 1898 farmhouse and two barns 
which were constructed between 1826 and 1830. 

Sylvan Glen / Sanctuary Lake Golf Courses

The City of Troy has two 18-hole municipal golf courses; Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary Lake. Sylvan Glen is a 
popular venue, accommodating more than 55,000 rounds of golf played each year. The addition of three new tee 
boxes has added length to the course, and new wetland areas add to the difficulty and challenge of the course. 
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course is a “links-style” championship course, which provides many challenging obstacles 
for golfers of all skill levels. Sanctuary Lake and Sylvan Glen offer winter recreational opportunities including 
cross-country skiing and sledding.

Troy Family Aquatic Center

The Troy Family Aquatic Center is an outdoor water park which is open from Memorial Day weekend to Labor 
Day. The Aquatic Center includes a main pool with zero-depth entry, three water slides, two spray pools, waterfall, 
two sand volleyball courts, and play equipment area and concession stands. The Family Aquatic Center hires 
over 80 employees for the summer service hours.

Troy Community Center

In 1994, the City purchased the former Troy High School Building, for use as a community center.  Starting in 
1999, a $12.5 million renovation was started.  The renovation was completed in two phases:

Phase 1 - included a two court gymnasium, indoor aquatic center with lap lanes, play structures, and • 
therapy pool, fitness room, four dance/aerobic studios and locker rooms; and 
Phase 2 - included banquet/meeting rooms, senior computer lab, outdoor playground, pre-school rooms • 
and administrative offices for the Parks and Recreation Department, teen room, senior reading room, 
arts and crafts room, and circuit training room.

Troy Sports Center

The Troy Sports Center is “Michigan’s premier ice skating facility”. Located at 1819 Big Beaver Rd., the Sports 
Center has four ice surfaces utilized by community skating programs, youth hockey and travel organizations, 
figure-skating programs, and local high schools. Also located within the Troy Sports Complex are various sports 
medicine clinics; Buffalo Wild Wings, Joe Kools, and other restuarants; and retail including Krogers, Verizon, 
Walgreens, and Chase Bank.  



October 26, 2011
 11 | Page

Troy Asset Inventory Report 

Figure 5: Regional Park Map 

Regional Recreational Opportunities

The City of Troy’s central location in southeast Michigan allows city residents to enjoy many county and state 
recreational parks and facilities. While located in Oakland County, Troy’s location on the border of Macomb 
County should be noted when discussing regional recreational opportunities. Currently there are eight State 
Parks located in Oakland and Macomb counties. Macomb County has one county park and Oakland County has 
eleven all within close proximity to the City of Troy.

The City of Troy is also served by the Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority Park System – a system of thirteen 
large parklands in Wayne, Oakland, Macomb, Washtenaw, and Livingston Counties. The Metropark System 
occupies a total of 24,000 acres and serves over 9 million visitors annually. Five of the Metroparks are easily 
accessible from Troy: three in Macomb County (Wolcott Mill, Metro Beach, and Stony Creek) and two in Oakland 
County (Kensington and Indian Springs).



 12| Page
October 26, 2011

Troy Asset Inventory Report 

The Somerset Collection and the Oakland Mall

The Somerset Collection is a 1.44-million-square-foot super-regional upscale shopping mall located on Big 
Beaver Road. The mall features over 180 stores and restaurants, including Nordstrom, Macy’s, Neiman Marcus, 
and Saks Fifth Avenue. The Collection consists of two separate buildings (Somerset North and Somerset South) 
connected by a distinctive 700-ft long skywalk that spans over Big Beaver Road. As mentioned by Fodors.com, 
the Somerset Collection is often considered to be, “one of the top shopping malls in the country”. 

The Oakland Mall, located at the corner of 14 mile Road and John R. Road, features over 120 stores and restaurants. 
Anchored by J.C Penney, Macy’s and Sears, the mall includes a large food court and several other big box stores 
nearby.  

The Ridgedale Players

The Ridgedale Players have been performing for 79 seasons, making them one of the oldest community theaters 
in the state. Located at 205 W. Long Lake Road, the Players typically produce about four shows per year, as well 
as three Youth Actors of Ridgedale productions. 

American-Polish Cultural Center

Located at 2975 Maple Road, the American-Polish Cultural Center is utilized for membership activities, as well 
as ballroom and Polish folk dancing, and summer socials. Also located within the Cultural Center is a banquet 
facility that can be used for weddings, showers, graduations and other parties. Located in the Cultural Center is 
the Wawel Restaurant, which offers delicious Polish cuisine.

E.  Education

Quality education is an important and prominent asset of Troy. The Troy School District provides a challenging 
K-12 program that enables and motivates students to prepare for future success, whether in higher education 
or the work force.  Consisting of 12 elementary schools, 4 middle schools, and 3 high schools, the District serves 
more than 12,000 students. The Troy School District is constantly one of the highest ranked districts in the state 
and the country.     

Troy School District Awards and Recognitions10:
Troy is one of only four school districts in Metropolitan Detroit to receive an “A+” rating from the Detroit • 
News, following a comprehensive analysis of school quality factors. 
Athens and Troy High schools and the east campus of the International Academy were named among • 
the top five percent of all U.S. high schools by U.S. News and World Report. 
Troy has been selected as a “top district” by School Match, a national education consulting and research • 
firm. 
The Troy School District is among a handful of districts where every school has earned an “A” from the • 
State of Michigan’s EducationYES! Program. 
All Troy District K-12 schools have earned the prestigious Blue Ribbon award from the Michigan • 
Department of Education. 
The Troy School District has an overall dropout rate of less than one percent. • 
The Troy School District has been awarded a Gold Star Status from Expansion Management magazine, • 
placing it among the top 16 percent of school districts across the district. 

10 http://www.troy.k12.mi.us/



October 26, 2011
 13 | Page

Troy Asset Inventory Report 

Other school systems that serve the City of Troy:

In addition to the Troy School District, the City is served by 6 other school systems and 5 private schools. 
 
School Districts: 

Avondale School District• 
Birmingham School District• 
Bloomfield Hills School District• 
Lamphere School District • 
Royal Oak School District• 
Warren Consolidated School District • 

Private schools that serve the troy:
 

Bethany Christian K-12• 
Brookfield Academy Pre-5• 
Christian Leadership Academy• 
Renaissance Montessori Center• 
Troy Adventist Academy • 

University / Technical schools located in Troy

Troy also offers many higher education opportunities for adults looking to either earn their first degree, or 
take classes to sharpen their skill set and seek career advancement opportunities. Currently, 13 universities or 
technical schools have campuses within the city of Troy. 
 

Baker College• 
Central Michigan University• 
Cornerstone University• 
International Academy• 
ITT Tech• 
Michigan State University – Management Education Center• 
International Academy of Design and Technology • 
The Art Institute of Troy • 
Northwood University• 
Oakland Community College• 
Oakland University• 
Rochester College• 
Spring Arbor University• 
University of Phoenix• 
Walsh College• 



 14| Page
October 26, 2011

Troy Asset Inventory Report 

 F.  Green Incentives

The physical design aspect of Troy is very crucial to the health and wellbeing of its business community. Residents 
and workers alike desire attractive and safe communities in which to live and work. While Troy’s physical layout 
is not atypical from those of other Metropolitan Detroit communities, the City has taken measures to distinguish 
itself by providing high quality parklands, and showing a commitment to smart-growth through a recently 
updated master plan, zoning ordinance, and design guidelines. With Troy’s relatively high number of LEED 
certified buildings, green facilities, high quality parklands, and environmental protection, the City has been 
innovative towards environmental stewardship. 

Land Use Design Guidelines (Zoning Ordinance)

This past April, the City of Troy adopted a new Zoning Ordinance. The Zoning Ordinance provides rules and 
regulations for development based on the goals and objectives outlined in the Master Plan. The Ordinance has 
two main design guideline sections: Sustainable Development Option (article 12) and Site Design Standards 
(article 13).

The Sustainable Development Option promote environmentally sustainable, energy efficient design and use 
industry best practices for the construction of new or rehabilitation of existing buildings and sites within the 
City, while simultaneously remaining consistent with the goals and objectives found in the Master Plan. The City 
of Troy offers incentives to developers and city residents with the intent to:

Encourage the reuse of existing buildings and redevelopment of existing sites; • 
Conserve natural resources; • 
Reduce the use of energy in both construction and daily operations; and• 
Foster a mix of uses to promote pedestrian, bicycle, and public transit options.• 

The Sustainable Design Option also provides storm water best management practices, building and construction 
on a flood plain, wind energy conversion systems, solar energy facilities and easements, and environmental 
performance standards.

The Site Design Standards intends to improve the site design and visual appearance of buildings with the 
ultimate goal of bettering public health, safety, and welfare. The Site Design Standards establish regulations on 
site components such as landscaping, lighting, parking, loading, and site access. 

Big Beaver Design Guidelines

The Big Beaver Design Guidelines were adopted in 2010 as a supplement to the Zoning Ordinance in order to 
develop a form-based code for the Corridor. The Big Beaver Design Guidelines act as a less formal extension of 
the Site Design Standards found in the Zoning Ordinance and provide a more user friendly and streamlined 
approach to the site design process, providing examples and imagery to aid the prescribed language. 

Troy Chamber of Commerce Green Business Initiative (GBI)

The mission of the Troy Chamber of Commerce’s Green Business Initiative (GBI) is to promote the interests of 
businesses that are committed and engaged in environmentally responsible operations and practices.  These 
environmentally friendly practices include energy efficiency, green purchasing, recycling, waste material 
reduction & prevention, low impact development planning, and water conservation.



October 26, 2011
 15 | Page

Troy Asset Inventory Report 

Local Green Facilities

Cedar Pines: “Green-Built” Subdivision: Environmentally friendly features include a rainwater harvesting • 
system, compact fluorescent light bulbs, carpet made from recycled bottles, Nu-Wool insulation made 
from recycled newspapers, and wood trim from sustainable plantations. 
Kresge Foundation Headquarters: The U.S. Green Building Council awarded the Kresge Foundation • 
headquarters a Platinum-level ranking, the highest attainable level in the Leadership in Energy and 
Environmental Design (LEED).
Bank of America Corporate Office: First building in Michigan certified under LEED EB (Existing Building) • 
certification.
Walsh College: The Barry Center, a 37,000-square-foot LEED certified classroom building, gets most of its • 
power from renewable resources, captures and filters its water, and converts waste heat into electricity. 
Doshi Group:  The Doshi Group maximizes energy efficiency by incorporating task-design lighting • 
levels, energy efficient lighting fixtures and features such as occupancy sensor-controlled lighting. 

G. Healthcare

Residents of Troy of have access to two highly regarded medical centers in their municipal boundaries - Beaumont 
Hospital and Henry Ford Health Medical Center. Both serve southeastern Michigan by providing world-class 
care to their patients. 

Troy Beaumont Hospital

Beaumont Hospital was recently ranked one of the top 100 hospitals in the United States for the seventh time by 
Solucient11. In 2007, Beaumont Hospital broke ground on a project to expand the hospitals range of service and 
improve the quality of healthcare by constructing a new seven-story critical care tower and expanded emergency 
room facility. The project includes 235,670 square feet of new construction and more than 100,000 square feet of 
renovations to the obstetrics, radiology, pharmacy and security departments. In addition, Beaumont Hospital 
entered into a partnership to create a new medical school on Oakland University’s campus. 

Henry Ford Health Care System

Henry Ford Hospital / Health Care System is known throughout Michigan for providing high quality services 
to their patients. There is a Henry Ford Medical Center located in the City of Troy at 2825 Livernois, Road south 
of Big Beaver Road. Services include: dermatology, family practice, neurology, eye care, pediatrics and internal 
medicine.

1  http://www.100tophospitals.com/top-national-hospitals/



 16| Page
October 26, 2011

Troy Asset Inventory Report 

H.    Public Safety 

Police

The Troy Police Department is a full service agency, serving a population of approximately 83,000 residents 
covering 34.3 square miles.  In 2010, Troy was recognized as one of the safest cities in the United States by CQ 
Press12.  CQ Press uses six crime categories to establish criteria for the study, and targeted cities a population of 
at least 75,000. The crime categories included: murder, rape, robbery, aggravated assault, burglary and motor 
vehicle theft. The rankings in the CQ report are based upon data reported to the FBI for 2009. According to the 
CQ report, Troy has the lowest crime rate ranking in Michigan for cities with a population between 75,000 and 
99,999. Nationwide, for cities with a population between 75,000 and 99,999, Troy is ranked 10th safest overall. 

Fire

The Troy Fire Department is composed primarily of volunteer members with a career staff comprising 6% of 
the department.   The career staff members provide required training; public education; plan review; inspection 
and code enforcement; permitting; equipment acquisition and maintenance; hazardous material reporting; and 
emergency management planning to support the department and comply with both state and local mandates.   
Overall, the combination of volunteer and career firefighters saves the citizens of Troy $10-$12 million annually, 
as compared to neighboring communities of similar size and demographics13.

II. Moving Forward
12  http://os.cqpress.com/citycrime/2010/City_crime_rate_2010-2011_hightolow.pdf
13  http://troymi.gov/fire/



October 26, 2011
 17 | Page

Troy Asset Inventory Report 

According to an article by CWA which was featured in Michigan Township News, the requirements to cultivate 
the workforce of the 21st century include:

Ranging of Housing Opportunities• 
Walkable neighborhoods and open spaces• 
Physical sense of place and place making • 
Mix of land uses• 
Open space, recreation and farmland preservation• 
Alternative forms of transportation• 
Compact urban form• 
Access to technology• 

The criteria listed above are consistent with the Smart Growth principals which aim to promote goals such 
as environmental stewardship, public health and safety, and smart land use decisions. In 2007, The City of 
Troy completed the Smart Growth Readiness Assessment Tool (SGRAT), an assessments for scoring how well 
a community is prepared to develop according to Smart Growth principles.  SGRAT provides a set of online 
assessments for scoring how well a community is prepared to develop according to the Smart Growth principles.
Based on a 0-100% range, it is designed to provide communities with a baseline score, and can be used to measure 
progress.  The higher the score, the better the community adheres to the particular smart growth tenant.  

 

Smart Growth Tenants Results on SGRAT

Compact building design 38%
Create a range of housing options 20%
Create walkable neighborhoods 49%
Encourage community and stakeholder collaboration 40%
Foster distinct attractive communities 32%
Make development decisions predictable and fair 74%
Mix land uses 30%
Preserve open spaces, natural resources, farmland, and critical environmental areas 26%
Provide a variety of transportation choices 33%
Strengthen and direct development towards existing communities 37%

Maximizing these Smart Growth principals will assist in the retention and growth of Troy businesses. 
 



bittnera
Text Box
N-06



bittnera
Text Box
N-07











 

 

1 
 

  
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  

  
Date:     February 17, 2012                        
 
To:   Mayor and City Council Members 
  
From:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
   
Subject: Article from Michigan Humanities Council 
 
 
The attached article that appeared in Michigan Stories of the Michigan Humanities Council highlights 
what a great job Mrs. Loraine Campbell and the Historic Village are doing relative to cultural 
awareness. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c:   Loraine Campbell 
 Troy Historical Society 
 Mark Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 

 
 
 
 

JS/bt\my documents\szerlag\2012\To M&CC – Article from Michigan Humanities Council 

bittnera
Text Box
N-08



 
 
 
 
 

 Troy Historic Village Tackles Cultural Awareness 
A booming city since the 1960s, Troy represents a variety of cultures from around the world. 
With a population of 81,000, 
more than 80 languages are 
spoken in the area and represent 
countries such as India, Pakistan, 
China, Japan, the Philippines and 
more. With its diverse culture, 
one organization is making it 
their mission to raise cultural 
awareness in the community. 

With help from a Michigan 
Humanities Council major grant 
award, Troy Historical Society 
has launched a 10-month project 
that will engage southeast 
Michigan residents and visitors 
with stories of diverse cultures 
that combine to make the region 
so unique. In the end, the society hopes the community will learn that Troy Historic Village can 
serve as a catalyst for understanding each other. 

 “Our premise is that the best way to build bridges is through real people,” said Loraine 
Campbell, Historical Society director. “You drill down to where you could introduce individuals 
of varying backgrounds through their own stories. That’s where you find commonality and build 
relationships.” 

Creating Community Dialogue 

A portion of this project includes a monthly lecture series, which began in January and will 
stretch to May 16th. On Jan. 18, Janice Freij, curator of education at the Arab American National 
Museum, shared the personal story of her family’s immigration from Lebanon. Following the 
lecture, several attendees expressed interest in visiting the Arab American Museum, something 
Campbell plans to make happen. 

“By next month, we hope to have a series of field trips to the Arab American Museum, the 
Charles H. Wright Museum of African American History, (and) to the Holocaust Museum,” she 



said. “We don’t have a Japanese museum, but we can talk about that whole era ... and the 
repercussions we’re still feeling from that.” 

On Feb. 15, anthropologist and historian Dr. Willie McKether, University of Toledo, will share 
the oral histories he has collected of African Americans who migrated from the South to find 
jobs and homes in Detroit, Flint and Saginaw. 

All lectures are held in the old church at Troy Historic Village, and begin at 7:30 p.m. Admission 
is free for Troy Historical Society members, and $5 for non-members. Additional lecture dates 
include: 
 
March 21: Padma Kuppa – her story of 20th century immigration and balancing identities as 
Indo-Hindu-American 
April 18: Mary Kamidoi (Japanese American Citizens League in Michigan) – her family’s story 
of being placed in a Japanese Internment Camp 
May 16: Marius Sidau – his story of growing up in northwest Romania 

Although the topics themselves are important for the region, it’s also the discussion for 
participants that gets Campbell excited. 

“What’s equally important for me is the conversation that occurs before and after each lecture,” 
she said. “And if I’m standing there at 10 o’clock and people are still engaged in conversation, 
… then I know we’ve succeeded.” 

In addition, the society will host two workshops to assist participants in telling their own stories. 
These hands-on workshops are important to ensure a family’s story is never lost with one 
member of the family, whether it’s through an oral story or videos. 

One workshop will explain how to preserve family photographs, movies and other media that 
share personal heritage. The second workshop will teach guests how to conduct an oral history. 

“You have people saying, ‘we really have to tape record grandma, or grandpa, because they’re 
getting really old,’” Campbell said. “When they pass away, they take those (family) stories with 
them. It’s gone unless you preserve them.” 

While the lectures and workshops may be geared toward an older crowd, the young ones are not 
losing out. 

“We also looked at the very, very young children and said, ‘how do we stop barriers from being 
built up?’” Campbell said. “We can’t talk about multiculturalism to pre-schoolers. But when you 
look at fairy tales and folklore, and look at it cross-culturally, its telling the same stories. There is 
a Cinderella story in just about every culture you look at.” 

The society has worked to package six different stories, with follow-up activities and crafts, that 
can be used in outreach for pre-school programs in the area. Once summer arrives, those children 
can come to Troy Historic Village for story time. 



Over the holidays, Troy held an event called “Christmas 1863,” which looked at Christmas in 
that year and traditions that were celebrated. More than 200 people turned out to hear traditions 
behind the Christmas tree and foods used to celebrate the holiday, while enjoying sights of 
historical re-enactors such as Abraham Lincoln.  

For more information on this grant project and the many events hosted by Troy Historical 
Society, please visit www.troyhistory.org or call (248) 524-3570. For more information on how 
your organization can apply for a major grant from the Michigan Humanities Council, call the 
Council office at (517) 372-7770. The next major grant deadline is March 15! 

 

http://www.troyhistory.org/�

	20120220 Agenda.pdf
	AGENDA: February 20, 2012 
	COVER LETTER:
	VISION STATEMENT & GOALS:
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET:
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 Proclamation – Heart Healthy Month – February 2012 – Presented to Michele Boertman, Manager of Preventative Cardiology/Cardiac Rehab – Beaumont Hospital
	C-2 Proclamation of Appreciation – Troy Family Daze Festival
	C-3 City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program - November and December 2011 – Presented to ARC of Oakland County

	D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 Public Hearing – Michigan NextEnergy Exemption

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT:
	G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1  No Postponed Items

	I.  REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – Board of Review; Planning Commission; b) City Council Appointments – Building Code Board of Appeals; Liquor Advisory Committee

	Suggested Resolution
	I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations - Downtown Development Authority; b) City Council Nominations: None

	Suggested Resolution
	I-3 Closed Session
	I-4 Bid Waiver – Purchase of Police Radio Batteries and Chargers
	I-5 Application Regarding Class C Liquor License for El Charro Restaurant
	I-6 Boyd Street Issues Relative to Baker Middle School and International Academy
	I-7 Adoption of Rules of Procedure
	I-8 Approval of MDOT Subcontract with Tooles/Clark for Construction Manager at Risk Services for the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility
	I-9 Application Regarding New SDM License for Kamel Management, Inc. (Troy Smokers)

	J.  CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	a) Special City Council Meeting of February 6, 2012
	b) Regular City Council Meeting of February 6, 2012

	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted
	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution #3: Exercise Renewal Option – Transit Mixed Concrete
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution #3: Exercise Renewal Option - Aggregates

	J-5 Milano Development Company, Inc. v. City of Troy et. al.

	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted
	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time): None Submitted

	L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	L-1  No Council Referrals Advanced

	M. COUNCIL COMMENTS
	M-1   No Council Comments Advanced

	N. REPORTS
	N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	a) Civil Service Committee-Final-December 8, 2011
	b) Liquor Advisory Committee-Final-January 9, 2012
	c) Planning Commission-Draft-January 10, 2012
	d) Zoning Board of Appeals-Draft-January 17, 2012
	e) Civil Service Commission-Final-January 19, 2012
	f) Liquor Advisory Committee-Draft-February 13, 2012
	g) Civil Service Commission-Draft-February 14, 2012

	N-2 Department Reports:
	a) Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – January 2012
	b) Final Reporting – Greater Detroit Auto Auction Services – Auctions for Calendar Year 2011
	c) Quarterly Financial Report – December 31, 2011
	d) Tax Abatement Policy

	N-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	a) Letter of Appreciation to Troy Police Department from Rose Weber Thanking Officer Bordo for Assistance
	b) Letter of Appreciation to Officer Breidenich from Peggy Willockx of Troy People Concerned
	c) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Bonnie Bostelman Thanking Officer Cooney for Assistance
	d) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Rhonda Berger Thanking Sergeant Szuminski, Officer Barrows, Officer Villerot, Officer Bordo, Officer Denny, Officer Linton and Officer Piper for Assistance
	e) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Elise Arndt Thanking Officer Fitzpatrick and Officer Zagacki

	N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed
	N-5  Economic Development Update Information
	N-6  Allowable Restrictions on Public Comment
	N-7  Super City Smoker’s Express, LLC. SDM Liquor License
	N-8  Article from Michigan Humanities Council

	O. STUDY ITEMS
	O-1  No Study Items

	P. CLOSED SESSION:
	P-1  Closed Session

	Q. ADJOURNMENT


	Check Box1: Off
	Check Box2: Off
	Check Box3: Off
	Check Box4: Off
	Check Box5: Off
	Check Box6: Off
	Check Box7: Off
	Check Box8: Off


